< R

NAN HAI CORPORATION LIMITED

NAN HAI.CORPORATION LIMITED
BAeEiRBRAE

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability) (BB MmAIIZERAS)
(Stock Code B {3} £ : 680)

2017

ANNUAL/REPORT A

i o] P8
T - ; = | ¢’ ..
X . — — n | rl ] E
: SIS & o

e &

"""""""



Contents

About Nan Hai

)i 2
Corporate Information

NEER 5
Chairman’s Statement

TREWE 7
Management Discussion and Analysis

EIRE TR 12
Report of the Directors

EEems 33
Corporate Governance Report

EEERRE 70
Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RE Mg RERRE 90
Independent Auditor's Report

B R BN E 117
Consolidated Income Statement

e sk 124
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

e EREREK 125
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e VBRI RE 126
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

meBRemnEmE 128
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
rakn#Ehk 131
Notes to the Financial Statements

B R M L 133
List of Properties

ME—FL 291
Five-Year Financial Summary

AFUBRE 292



EEINIEZNE:




About Nan Hai
EANNEZRS!

Nan Hai Corporation Limited (“Nan Hai") (the “Company”) is a corporation
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
(stock code: 680). Given our confidence towards the continuous and steady
long-term development of China’s economy, as well as our optimistic view
on the consumption and industrial upgrade, the Company continued to
engage in three main businesses, namely culture and media services,
property development and enterprise cloud services, through Dadi Media
(HK) Limited together with its subsidiaries, Dadi Cinema Investment Limited
together with its subsidiaries, Oristar Technology (HK) Limited and its
subsidiaries (collectively as “Dadi Media”), Nan Hai Development Limited
together with its subsidiaries (collectively as “Nan Hai Development”) and
Sino-i Technology Limited together with its subsidiaries (collectively as
“Sino-i", stock code: 250). After nearly a decade of hard work, the Group has
attained splendid performance in these three industries. Alongside the in-
depth development into the industries, certain business opportunities
were identified and therefore gave rise to several businesses. The Group
has also commenced businesses stably through Dadi News Media (HK)
Limited together with its subsidiaries (collectively as “Internet Lifestyle
Platform”) and Dadi Innovation (HK) Limited together with its subsidiaries
(collectively as “Dadi Innovation”).

As for culture and media services, in the past ten years, with organic
growth and acquisitions as the starting points, Dadi Media gradually
extended to the upper reaches of the film industry based on its solid
foundation of downstream platform. At present, the scale and ecological
advantages of the entire industrial chain enterprise cluster have initially
formed, and Dadi Media has become one of the prime leaders of the film
industry. Currently, in terms of the numbers of cinemas and screens,
admission of audiences and box office revenue, the Group’s cinema
business has ranked the top two among the cinema investment
management companies in China. As for property development, the sales
income of Phase 3 of “The Peninsula”, Nan Hai Development’s flagship
project, continued to be recognized during the year. As of 31 December
2017, accumulated sales amounted to RMB18.157 billion. Phase 4 of “The
Peninsula” commenced construction in July 2015, and will be pre-sold in
2018. As for enterprise cloud services, in the past ten years, Sino-i was
committed to the continuous advancement of the corporate digitalization
and smart operation of small and medium-sized enterprises (“SMEs") in
China. With unremitting efforts, the Group has successfully established
outstanding nationwide business and service network in the industry.
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About Nan Hai
EANNEZRS:

At the same time, the Group increased its investment in the Internet
product technology for its businesses of culture and media services,
enterprise cloud services, Internet lifestyle platform and innovative
business, resulting in the rapid growth in the number of end users. In terms
of raising capital, the Group has issued a total of US$900 million of credit
enhanced notes in May and July 2017 respectively, which demonstrated
the investor's recognition on the Group's overall strength and widened the
Company's financing channels.

In the coming year, the Group will continue to be committed to its three
main businesses, i.e. culture and media services, property development
and enterprise cloud services. With a focus on the needs of its users, the
Group will continue to conduct in-depth business development through
the internet, while adhering to its multi-core business strategies and
facilitating resource sharing and strategic synergy in cross-business fields.
In addition to creating greater value for its shareholders, the Group will
determine and lay a foundation for sustainable development in the
medium and long run.
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The information of the Company up to the date of this report was as

follows:

DIRECTORS

Executive

Mr. Yu Pun Hoi (Chairman)

Ms. Liu Rong (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Lung King Cheong
Non-executive

Mr. Lam Bing Kwan

Independent Non-executive
Mr. Lau Yip Leung

Mr. Xiao Sui Ning

Mr. Ho Yeung Nang

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Chiu Ming King

AUDITOR

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

BERMUDA LEGAL ADVISER
Appleby

HONG KONG LEGAL ADVISER
Gerry K.C. Wai & Co,, Solicitors

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN
HONG KONG

12/F., The Octagon
No.6 Sha Tsui Road
Tsuen Wan

New Territories
Hong Kong
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Corporate Information
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Chairman’s Statement
FERSE

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company, | present
to our shareholders the annual report of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2017.

During 2008, out of strategic concerns, the Company has merged the
culture and media business originally under Sino-i, and it has become one
of the major businesses of the Company. Since then, the Group'’s three
main businesses have been determined, which are culture and media
services, corporate digitalization and smart operation, and property
development. This strategic layout was attributable to our prolonged
steadfast confidence towards the continuous and steady development of
China’s economy, as well as our optimistic view on the consumption and
industrial upgrade that will result from the development. After nearly a
decade of hard work, the Group has attained splendid performance in
these three industries. Alongside the in-depth development into the
industries, certain business opportunities were identified and therefore
gave rise to several businesses. The Group’s development framework has
been set up for culture and media business as well as cloud services for
corporate digitalization and smart operation, especially for motion picture
industry where economics of scales and industry-wide dominance has
taken shape through the building of enterprise clusters over the whole
industrial chains. While in the meantime, we understood that China is
rapidly moving into an unprecedented period where its economy is
boosted by a more powerful innovation-driven development in high value-
added industries. The Group's various businesses face both challenges and
opportunities in such unprecedented period. With the steady development
of three main businesses, we have commenced our comprehensive
improvement in the capacity of the Group'’s headquarters in 2017. In the
future, the headquarters will develop in synergy with its investee
businesses and play predominant role in the building of corporate culture
and values, synergy in strategic development, design of top-level
management in the organization, strategic investment into new
businesses.

RAAERRARTETS((EFE ) AAR AR
HERARTRHEMBAR (B AEE D EE
2017F 12 A3 BIEFEZFEHRE -

2008 5By - HRNEBEE B - ARAHRERTEH
BHET X CRERXFEREARRBET
VAR BE—HEBRHER - R ERTE T A%
B =REXNR XX EBERERS - XK
FIEBRELERFEHEME - XRHE BB
MEARRBAREHELESERTERNOE
FEED - A RBTARE 2 T R E)H & FHRMERTT
MONTBEEEH - KBO+ENE N AEEESE
— ARG ES T MERRKE - EETEE R
R RAEERT —LEXRESAMLCTSE
THEES  EXEBRMEXBFCEELE
MERBGEFMERZT EEEENERRE L
HEREBRTR ISR T 2EXREEEE
MRBAMERRES - BERFIBENEER - HELK
B REEAE ADEH AR FB S INE
EXRRNELER MASERAANSEE
TS E (B3 R0 B R S B L B e 2 B KA R BN
BB -BE-ZARBEBORREER  BHMAE
017FBHTEEMATENNEZEER - RKAE
MR E X RBEER  EEECME
XEENEE BRITANHBE - AELEERNTA

EBiat  BEAFEBNRESTHEERTE N
1A o



Chairman’s Statement
FERSE

Coupled with the industrial experience and market resources of Dadi
Media accumulated in the motion picture industry for the past ten years, in
2017, the Group has formulated the development strategies for internet
transformation of the entire culture and media business in the next five to
ten years, after conducting substantial research and discussion. Meanwhile,
in 2017, the Group's internet transformation of enterprise cloud service
business conducted by Sino-i has begun to take shape, while the cloud
computing services of 3t FUET A ERHE {5 B E T B FR 2 7] (Beijing Xinnet
Cyber Information Company Limited) (“Xinnet”) and the portal business of
FR B ) BHE IR 9 B BR A ] (CE Dongli Technology Company Limited)
(“CE Dongli") have enjoyed steady development, which obviously enlarged
the client base.

Globally speaking, internet development has reshaped human beings to
an extent that neither individual nor enterprise could survive without it. An
enterprise without any internet content will be quickly eliminated. Over the
past ten years, as the Group has concentrated on the competition brought
by China’s consumption and industrial upgrade and has benefited by our
correct strategy and the stringent implementation of strategies by our
employees, our businesses have been able to prosper rapidly, which
contributed to our current industrial position and scales. However, during
that time we were thinking the following questions: What challenges
would the internet bring forth to various industries in which we operate?
How could our comparative advantages be leveraged during the internet
era and the current phase of internet development? Internet 2.0 ( & 5 44
T 2 15), new retailing and business-to-business internet were the three
topics that were most heated in China’s IT industry in 2017. Actually, these
three topics entail a single notion that the era of profit-making throughout
various industries just simply by internet business is gone and OMO
(Online-Merge-Offline) is the most competitive business mode for future
enterprises of internet 2.0. We see OMO as the business model that takes
the management of clientele as its core and integrates both online and
physical business. During the past ten years, the Group was committed to
conduct in-depth development into its industries. Advantages brought
forth by physical businesses (i.e. cinema business) and its corporate scale
(i.e. CE Dongli's enormous commercial and localized service network) are
our most powerful accumulated comparative advantages. Taking
management of clientele (both individual and corporate users) as its core
and making use of the internet on the back of their industries, we will
leverage our comparative advantages to concentrate on our more
“focused” in-depth development into the industries in the future. The word
“focused” here refers not to business-focused, but to user-focused. It may
seem that our development goals are more diversified, but actually our
work are all about the size and quality of user base, which are the most
essential benchmark for evaluating the capital value of a certain enterprise
during the internet era.
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Chairman’s Statement
FERSE

The Group issued credit enhanced notes in aggregate amount of USD900
million in May and July 2017, respectively, which further diversified its
financing channel, reduced its financing cost and optimized its liability
structure, representing investors’ recognition to the overall strength of the
Company.

Steady development of our businesses contributed to sound financial
performance. The Company’s operating profit for the year continued to
grow steadily. Revenue for the year increased by 75.7% to HK$15,900.9
million (2016: HK$9,050.9 million) as compared with last year. Net profit
attributable to owners of the Company was HK$1,708.0 million (2016:
HKS$1,359.6 million). Year of 2017, despite marked as the second
consecutive year that the Group successfully attained remarkable profit, it
only represented our humble start. We believe that the Group's financial
performance will keep growing for the next few years given our non-stop
optimization on various businesses. Indeed, there is still room for the
profitability of the Group’s non-property development business to improve.
Sino-i's business transformation began to take shape. Dadi Media
consolidated its economies of scales in cinema terminal market through
the acquisition of City Entertainment Corporation Limited (“OSGH"),
however, it did not receive satisfactory operating profit returns during the
year. The above mentioned will be improved in 2018 through our
operation and integration of resources and the internet transformation of
our businesses. On the other hand, all of our business indicators show that
our “Internet Lifestyle Platform” (B B #3 &£ J& ¥ &) and “Innovative
Business” (&1 Z %), our two newly developed businesses, successfully
accommodated market needs. Specifically, the advent of HKO1 has make
up for the lack of internet lifestyle platform business here in Hong Kong,
which is seen as a good role model for developing similar business
elsewhere. Both of the businesses are now prospering with promising
future prospect. It is expected that they can bring in a new business mode
through the launch of such businesses. Nonetheless, given that both
businesses are still in the investment period where it can only have limited
contribution of revenue to the Company in short run, we are willing to
keep investing for its promising prospect. Holding its entrepreneurial
ambition in mind, the Group is endeavored to strike a balance between the
profitability of the Company and needs for sustainable development in the
medium and long run, as well as to boldly explore into new business and
conduct transformation for existing businesses so as to elevate its
enterprise value.
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Chairman’s Statement
FERSE

In the coming year, the Group will continue to commit to its three main
businesses, i.e. culture and media services, property development and
enterprise cloud services. With a focus on individual and corporate users,
the Group will continue to conduct in-depth business development
through the internet, while adhering to its multi-core business strategies
and facilitating resource sharing and strategic synergy in cross-business
fields. In addition to creating greater value for its shareholders, the Group
will determine and lay a foundation for sustainable development in the
medium and long run.

Last but not least, | would like to express my gratitude to the shareholders
for their concern and support, and also to the Board, executive committee
and all staff of the Company for their dedication and contribution.

Yu Pun Hoi
Chairman
Hong Kong, 28 March 2018
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EREH R

Revenue Wz

15,900.9

HKS million
BEBTT

In 2017, the Company continued to operate in the areas of culture and
media services, property development and enterprise cloud services. With
the experience and market resources of Dadi Media in the film industry for
the past ten years, the Group has established a development strategy
regarding the Internet transformation for the entire culture and media
business in the next five to ten years based on comprehensive research
and demonstration. At the same time, the Group's enterprise cloud services
business, which is operated by Sino-i, also began to undergo Internet
transformation in 2017. The cloud computing services of Xinnet and the
portal business of CE Dongli have also commenced stably, which has
played a significant role in promoting the growth of the number of users.
Although the two new businesses, namely “Internet Lifestyle Platform” and
“Innovative Business”, are still in the investment stage and have a limited
contribution to the Company’s revenue in the short term, their business
nature is in line with the market demand, and therefore they will have a
positive future development. The Group will continue to balance the
Company's profitability and the requirements of sustainable development
in the medium and long term; and to conduct new businesses and
transform existing businesses from the perspective of enhancing corporate
value. In terms of raising capital, the Group has issued a total of US$900
million of credit enhanced notes in May and July 2017 respectively, further
widening the Company’s financing channels. The issuance is conducive to
the Group's reducing the financing cost and optimizing the liability
structure, which demonstrates the investors’ recognition on the Company’s
overall strength.

During the year, revenue of the Group substantially increased by
approximately 75.7% to HK$15,900.9 million (2016: HK$9,050.9 million). Net
profit attributable to owners of the Company was approximately
HKS$1,708.0 million (2016: HKS$1,359.6 million). The increase in profit was
mainly attributable to the increase in revenue driven by the continuous
recognition of the sales income of Phase 3 of “The Peninsula” property
project of the Group during the year. Net assets attributable to owners of
the Company were HK$6,143.2 million (2016: HK$4,051.8 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year, revenue of the culture and media services segment was
approximately HKS$4,150.1 million (2016: HK$3,224.7 million). Loss before
income tax was approximately HK$600.9 million (2016: profit before
income tax of HK$170.3 million).

In 2017, the scale of the cinema operations of Dadi Media continued to
increase through organic growth and acquisition of OSGH, and the layout
was evenly balanced. Both the box office and admission enjoyed rapid
growth. Relying on the advantages of the scale of cinema operation, the
investment in content is strengthened under the premise of controllable
risks. Excluding the adverse effect of one-off loss due to closure, provision
for impairment and adjustment of accounting policies, & 5 A b 5 bt 32

& B B A 7 (Guangdong Dadi Cinema Construction Limited) and its
Subsidiaries (collectively as “Dadi Cinema") recorded a profit of HK$76.4
million while OSGH recorded a loss of HK$69.3 million. In 2018, the
Company will optimize the income structure of OSGH and adjust its
organizational structure to strive for a turnaround.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEE W LD

In 2017, the Group gradually shifted its focus on cinema business from
scale development to both scale and profitability. At the end of the year,
the Group reassessed cinemas with poor operating and financial
performance, and closed certain cinemas with relatively long operating
history or located in districts with irreversible changes. We have made a
provision for impairment and adjusted the changes in the accounting
estimates of the acquired OSGH, resulting in an one-off loss of HK$470.5
million. However, such strategies will have a positive impact on brand
positioning, meeting user demand and long-term profitability.

Cinema Operation

In 2017, the national gross box office in China amounted to RMB52.38
billion (excluding service charges), representing a year-on-year increase of
15.1%. The annual admission of audiences was approximately 1,620 million,
representing a year-on-year increase of 18.2% and became the second
largest film market in the world after North America. The number of screens
in China amounted to 52,670, and ranked the first in the world. In terms of
admission, in 2017, the box office of first and second tier cities recorded a
year-on-year growth of 11.15%, while the box office of third and fourth tier
cities increased by 20.9% compared to the same period last year,
demonstrating a year-on-year rising trend. In terms of movies, the box
office of “Wolf Warriors 2 (€ &k 78 2)) has reached RMB5,680 million, being
the highest gross box office film of all time in China. € [ {= )& 2% ) and
{ = -+ = ) have attracted market attentions and catered to a range of
audiences.

During the year, the cinema business of the Company achieved a box
office revenue (tax included) of RMB2,841 million (including box office from
OSGH after completion), representing a significant growth of market share
from 4.9% to 5.4%, ranking second among cinema investment and
management companies throughout China. Its admission of audiences of
91.61 million marked another record high. As at 31 December 2017, the
cinema business of the Company had an aggregate of 464 cinemas with
2,745 screens operating in 29 provinces and 177 cities in China. In addition,
there are over 300 cinemas contracted but not yet in operation.

In 2017, the Company acquired OSGH and its cinema operation in the first
and second tier cities has served as a solid complement to the market of
Dadi Cinema which mainly targeted the second to fourth tier cities, thereby
optimizing the market of the cinema operation of the Company in China,
strengthening its core competitiveness and creating scale effect.

2017%F  AEEBEREBNELORUEELRE
BB ZBTEBIREMATEENTE - FXK
REELKCERPFERANMENEIENTEE
% BRI O AERREA - FTER BT A%
AR E bRt TT T MR E FURERT
R RARHRENEREROS A 2R
THRE  EEA—RMEE405BEET  BEHR
mEERN - BRPEFRORE  UWRERHAFE
DRI EETEIRTE -

FoBr #im
017FHEHEHEFLBER ARE 238
SREE)  FEHIER151% FEEEAKL 162
B ALERI182%  BEIENAZRE KRR
B o MRREEES5267088 - BERHE— - 1
BEERE 017F G mEREFRE LG
£11.15% : M=UEM T RE R LIE K 209% @ I
EBFF LB - A KRE  (BBR2DOUARE
S68BRITEEKATRELEREE (MK
BEY (ZT)FBEAASIARE  2EREBRYEE
A0 | ==

c|

FN - ARAIEREBEREFED284118TTA
RE(GERAZARINEER)  mMiGHEKNRLY
REARA%IRAE 4% BEZEZREEETER
AE A B ARERE  BAFELH
= EE217F12A31H  ARBERERDE
TREAFI464K - IREEE274588 BE R
BU20MEA - 177 @ - Britb 2 5h - BERLIARFAE
R B2 HBB300K °

2017F - ARAIMIBERAER Bt ——&
WHRMGR BEAMERUA - ZIREmAEN
MEHREXBRITNHER AXBERE T AR
RIEMRN2EMISHE - A TROBRFE T
BAEMAREEIRFIERE -



Management Discussion and Analysis
BEE R Mo

In 2017, the Company initially explored the combination of live music and
cinema to bring a variety of entertainment and leisure experiences to the
audience. By expanding its advertising business to other cinema media
and developing innovative products, the brand’s customer base and
advertising revenue have been raised to a new level. In the future, the
Company will continue to increase pilots and innovations in high-margin
businesses such as music, dining, derivatives and advertising to achieve a
deep integration of “Film + Innovative Culture” and optimize the income
structure.
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GEOGRAPHICAL DISTRIBUTION OF CINEMA OPERATION OF THE GROUP

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2017

BZ2017F12A31B KB R E D HE

Total Number of Cinemas /fT & % :

464

National Gross Box Office
(RMB hundred million)

2EREFEAE (ARBRERT)

52330 @

2017

2016

2015

2014

2013

Number of Screens in the Group's

296.39

21769

Cinemas (pieces)

FEBRERHE ()

2017

2016

2015

2014

2013

1,481

1,262

1,033

457.12

440.69

27

1,911

Heilongjiang

Jilin

Liaoning

Beijing
Hebei
Shandong

Tianjin

Jiangsu

Shanghai

Zhejiang

Fujian

Guangdong

Hainan

Guangxi

Hunan

g Jiangxi
! Shanghai Anhui
/ Hubei
Henan

Shanxi

Shaanxi

Ningxia

Inner Mongolia

Gansu

Guizhou

Sichuan

Yunnan

Chongging
Qinghai

Box Office of the Group’s Cinemas Number of the Group’s Cinemas
(tax included) (RMB hundred million) (Number)
FEBPHEEHEE (AREET)  AREYEHE (X)

2017 [ 207 [

2016 2237 2016 350
2015 2213 2015 286

2014 15.08 2014 257

2013 | 1041 2013 215

Number of Audiences in the Group’s
Cinemas (ten thousands)

FEEZREZAR (BA)

2017 [T

2016 7325
2015 7,158
2014 4,909

2013 3456
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Dadi Film

During the year, Dadi Media (HK) Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively as
“Dadi Film") under Dadi Media continued to step up its efforts in three
businesses, namely film contents, animation and distribution .

The Company’s film content team obtained content reserves for specific
types of films through various means, including self-development,
copyright procurement, cooperation with external established creative
teams and product bundling, so as to secure multi-channel copyright
income from films, media platforms other than cinemas, derivatives and
games as well as film distribution income in combination with its
distribution business. During the year, the planning and development of
various high-quality projects were initiated. It is expected that certain
projects will gradually realize income from such rights in the coming years.

In animation contents industry, ¥ 27 A (1t 5 ) BHEZH R A 5 (Magical
Kingdom Anime (Beijing) Technology Limited) ("“Magical Kingdom Anime”),
as the main operator, provides comics and animation contents and aims at
two-dimensional and children’s market by adopting various models
including co-production, equity investments and obtaining exclusive
distribution rights in specific markets, and focusing on the development
and operation of IP (a type of intellectual property which mainly refers to
the copyright of literary and artistic works). During the year, there were
more than 20 original self-developed and co-produced works in the
inventory, and the Chinese exclusive distribution rights of more than 20
overseas kids animated series with over 15,000 episodes have been
acquired. During the year, Magical Kingdom Anime cooperated with
various enterprises such as Sumitomo Corporation in respect of domestic
and foreign IP development and operation.

As for distribution business, two models, namely buy-out distribution and
agency distribution, were mainly used. During the year, Dadi Film
distributed and promoted five films as lead distributor and jointly
distributed and promoted six films as co-distributor.
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Oristar

Oristar Technology (HK) Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to
as "Oristar”) provide one-stop total solutions for cinemas, its products and
services which covers over 30 provinces, autonomous regions and
municipalities across the country with nearly 5,000 halls as of the end of
2017.

In order to meet the demand of cinema investors for high-quality
projection solutions, Oristar continued to develop and produce its laser
screening equipment. Oristar has established a strategic partnership with
Christie, a world-famous cinema projector producer, and the newly-
established laser R&D center has been put into operation, allowing more
cinemas to enter the “laser screening” era and thus bringing ultimate
viewing experience for audiences.

PROSPECTS

In 2017, the national gross box office amounted to RMB52.38 billion
(excluding service charges). A total of 90 films recorded box office over
RMB100 million, of which 49 were domestic films. As the world's second
largest movie market, China has become the main growth driver of the
global movie market. Dadi Media has initially formed three complementary
businesses for its screening, distribution and content products. Capitalizing
on its existing advantages and channels, Dadi Media has continuously
devoted its efforts to content industry to create integrated advantages
with the Group.

As for the cinema operation business, in 2018, we will regard users as our
core to conduct various operations, continuously optimizing the user
experiences. Leveraging on OMO transformation, integrating online and
offline membership data, offering more membership benefits through
alliance with different industries and implementing precision marketing
based on big data, we aim at achieving effective cooperation with cinema-
related industries and sharing passenger flow.

As for the content, we will continue to develop strategic partnerships with
creative personnel, and carry out market research and marketing strategy
research as well as market analysis, audience analysis, marketing strategy
analysis based on the data obtained, so as to guide the Company’s content
investment strategy. By enhancing the development of high-quality
Creative content and expanding the distribution network, multi-
dimensional content can be achieved and realized.

As for the cinema screening services, Oristar, being an “all-rounded cinema
solution expert”, will pay more attention to the viewing experience and
quality services, thereby bringing positive forces to facilitate the progress
of refinement and Internet transformation in the cinema industry.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year, revenue of this business segment was approximately
HK$9,958.1 million (2016: HK$4,524.9 million) and profit before income tax
was approximately HK$5,820.4 million (2016: HK$2,695.4 million). Profit for
the year was mainly attributable to the continuous recognition of the sales
income of Phase 3 of “The Peninsula” property project of the Group during
the year.

During the year, although control policies have been increasingly
tightened, all real estate projects of Nan Hai Development continued to
develop and sell at a good pace and achieved excellent returns during the
year leveraging on their good reputation, outstanding quality and
positioning.

“The Peninsula” Project in Shenzhen

“The Peninsula” project of Nan Hai Development adheres to provide quality
products with exquisite decorations. Adjacent to Shekou-Qianhai Free
Trade Zone, the project has fully enhanced the living amenities and the
waterfront environment. Leveraging on its good reputation over the years,
“The Peninsula” enjoys a good brand effect. There are a total of five phases
in “The Peninsula” project, and the sale of Phase 3 was launched on 9 April
2016 in Shekou, Shenzhen. In 2017, large-sized units were the sales focus of
Phase 3, generating sales of RMB6.9 billion with 232 units being sold. As of
31 December 2017, accumulated sales amounted to RMB18.157 billion,
with a cumulative sales of 1,000 units and a sales area of approximately
164,200 sq.m.. Phase 4 of “The Peninsula” commenced construction in July
2015, which includes residential area of approximately 79,000 sg.m. and
commercial area of approximately 55,800 sq.m.. The residential part has
been capped during the year and will be pre-sold in 2018. The commercial
part, which will be self-owned by the Company, is expected to commence
the operation of various businesses such as smart hotel, smart enterprise
and shared office in 2019.
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“Free Man Garden” Project in Guangzhou

“Free Man Garden” project of Nan Hai Development in Guangzhou is
located at the junction of Baiyun District and Huadu District, which not
only enjoys the comprehensive ancillary facilities in Baiyun District, but also
the favorable factors brought by the airport economic area. There are a
total of eight phases in “Free Man Garden” project, of which Phase 4 and
Phase 7 were major pre-sale targets for 2017. Among them, all units in
Phase 4 had been pre-sold as of 31 December 2017, recording a total sales
of approximately RMB2.439 billion with a total sales area of approximately
181,600 sg.m.. Phase 7 was opened for pre-sale in March 2017 and all units
had been pre-sold as of 31 December 2017, recording a sales of
approximately RMB1.628 billion with a total sales area of approximately
97,600 sq.m.. The remaining Phase 5, 6 and 8 will be saleable, while Phase 3
will be self-owned for commercial use. Among them, the saleable
residential area of Phase 5 and 6 is approximately 223,200 sqg.m., which is
expected to commence pre-selling in 2018.

PROSPECTS

Since 2017, the government has continuously tightened its control policies,
and the restrictions on purchases, loans, sales and prices have gradually
escalated. Despite of the insignificant volatility of the real estate market, an
overall momentum of stable development in terms of record high
transaction volume and price of land as well as steady growth of
investment in real estate and new development projects was maintained.
Although the commaodity housing experienced a slackened growth in sales
volume, the increase in prices was basically stable, resulting in notable level
of sale.

In this context, the Company will try to strengthen its land reserve. In 2018,
we will actively expand our residential and commercial real estate projects
in Shenzhen, Guangzhou and other first and second tier cities. At the same
time, the Group will make good use of its advantages in the cultural and
communication industry to realize the linkage between culture and real
estate, and explore new models for real estate development and operation.
By upholding the business philosophy of “user-friendly designs, high
quality and building humanity community”, the Group will integrate its
resources to achieve business model innovation, which will be the future
focus of the real estate sector.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

By virtue of the comprehensive cloud computing infrastructure services,
e-commerce and total “Internet+" solutions offered for corporate clients in
the PRC, this segment remained confident about the development of
digitalization and smart operation. Leveraging on its unremitting efforts,
this segment has successfully established an outstanding national business
and localized service network in the industry, so as to effectively address
“the last kilometer” problems from service providers to corporate clients. In
the meantime, in respect of product development, after prolonged
exploration and promotion, this segment began to undergo Internet
transformation, and launched a series of leading cloud services corporate
digitalization and smart operation in the industry in 2017. Xinnet's cloud
computing services and CE Dongli's portal business have also commenced
stably, which played a significant role in promoting the growth of the
number of users.

During the year, with key subsidiaries CE Dongli and Xinnet as its main
business entities, more efforts were continuously made in the development
of cloud services for corporate digitalization and smart operation by
providing comprehensive laaS (Infrastructure as a service), cloud
application, corporate e-commerce services, total “Internet+" solutions and
big data-based business intelligence service to SMEs and individual clients
in the PRC. During the year, revenue of this segment was approximately
HK$829.3 million (2016: HK$818.1 million), representing an increase of
approximately 1.4% over the corresponding period last year. Loss before
income tax was approximately HK$66.4 million (2016: HK$18.9 million).

CE Dongli

With 18 years’ experience of being a services provider for enterprises in the
PRC, CE Dongli has successfully established a corporate “Internet+" product
operating system as well as an extensive business and localized service
network, providing one-stop corporate digitalization and smart operation
solutions. During the year, CE Dongli continued to strengthen the
management of its direct branch offices and further enhances its localized
service capacity through the establishment of customer care divisions in
various branches across the country. In particular, the enhancement in
service capacity of the “the last kilometer”, which is crucial to SMEs, would
make such services closer to user needs. In the meantime, in respect to
research and development of new products, more emphasis was put into
the needs of different industries and clients under different stages so as to
provide customized products and industry solutions to meet the needs of
enterprises or certain specific industries.
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Xinnet

During the year, Xinnet continued its cloud services such as laaS, domain
name registration and synergistic communication, and actively developed
various cloud application and value-added services for SMEs through
online direct sales and distributor channels established across the PRC. In
January 2017, Xinnet officially launched “Arrow Cloud (£7 5B )", its self-
developed new generation cloud computing product, and enhanced the
overall technical capacity and product experience and gained recognition
from the market and its client. On this basis, Xinnet will establish a direct
sales team in core first-tier cities to provide local SMEs with targeted cloud
computing solutions in a localized service model.
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PROSPECTS

The management of this segment considers that enterprises in the PRC will
continue to increase its investment in digitalization and transformation.
Meanwhile, with the further development of artificial intelligence ("Al")
technology and Internet of Things technology, business intelligence
services based on big data will be developed, and large and medium
enterprises with first-party data will take the lead in adoption. Although it
still takes some time for market ramp-up and promotion, cloud services for
corporate digitalization and smart operation and industrial solutions will
enjoy enormous room for development. Looking forward, this segment will
continue to improve its ground services capability by regarding users as its
core, relying on the industry and making full use of Internet, which allows it
to quickly respond to the needs of enterprises and provide timely solutions
to issues. Meanwhile, this segment will enhance its overall operational
capability and online services capability. Parallel operation of online
services and localized services made this segment’s services closer to the
needs of enterprises. In respect of product research and development, with
an in-depth understanding of the industry’s business scenarios, the Group
will quickly respond to the needs of business scenarios in different
industries based on the cloud product model, open platform and big data
technology. Furthermore, this segment will also increase its capital
investment in data centre, cloud computing technology, automatic
operation and maintenance technology, big data technology, Al
technology and application, and enhance its overall technical core
competence to further develop and optimize its products and services for
the enterprise’s digital intelligent business scenario.
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INTERNET LIFESTYLE PLATFORM
BUSINESS REVIEW

There are two business divisions under the Internet lifestyle platform,
namely “HKO1" and “Duowei Media". During the year, total revenue of the
Internet lifestyle platform was approximately HK$246.3 million (2016:
HKS$173.1 million), of which approximately HK$225.0 million (2016:
HKS$147.0 million) was the advertising income from other segments within
the Group. Loss before income tax was approximately HK$322.5 million
(2016: HK$253.5 million).

Focusing on news and lifestyle media, “HKO1" has gradually transformed
itself into a media-driven IT enterprise with over 670 employees in Hong
Kong. "HKO1” aims to build a localized Internet lifestyle platform in Hong
Kong and attract traffic with media content. In the future, its commercial
value will be realized through advertising, local lifestyle services and other
means, so as to make up for the lack of local Internet lifestyle platform.
"HKO1" reformed its organizational structure in response to the
transformation of the Internet in 2017, and further investment has been
made in products and technology systems to improve the development of
products that meet the needs of users. A series of transformations have
achieved initial success. In 2017, the number of monthly active users of the
website and APP achieved rapid growth, laying a good foundation for
realizing future traffic. “Duowei Media” includes two major media, namely
Duowei monthly magazine and Duowei website. Duowei monthly
magazine are sold in different places in the Asia-Pacific region with
relatively stable circulation.

PROSPECTS

For our promising prospect, we will continue to invest resources in the
future to develop innovative new products and fully explore user value.
Meanwhile, we plan to integrate the businesses of “HKO1” and “Duowei
Media” with a view to using resources more effectively and enhancing
synergies.
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INNOVATIVE BUSINESS
BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year, revenue of Innovative business was approximately
HK$878.7 million (2016: HK$411.1 million) and loss before income tax was
approximately HK$528.6 million (2016: HK$87.3 million).

2017 was a year in which Crabtree & Evelyn rejuvenated and implemented
a series of restructuring initiatives such as brand positioning, sales
strategies, product planning and development of new products, among
which the change in sales strategies are mainly aimed at eliminating the
abuse of sales discounts, resulting in a decline in sales and gross profit in
the short term. However, this move has played a positive role in rebuilding
brand image over the longer term with gradually strengthened customer
loyalty and steady growth in gross profit margin. In addition, the
development pace of new products has gradually accelerated since the
acquisition of Crabtree & Evelyn, and the development of the daily natural
care products is progressing steadily and is expected to be launched to
market gradually in 2018. Besides, Crabtree & Evelyn has successively
increased investment in informatization, optimization of supply chain and
team building which is expected to gradually show results after 2018.
Temporary inputs and losses are expected to lay a solid foundation for
long-term development.

PROSPECTS

In addition to the further implementation of the above restructuring
initiatives, Crabtree & Evelyn will fully enter the PRC market in 2018 and the
development of e-commerce platform and membership system will be its
business focus for 2018, thereby creating synergy with the e-commerce
and membership strategies of the Group’s cinema operations, which
would be beneficial to the long-term development of the Group.

ANTEEBIT) T
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FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY

The Group continued to adopt prudent funding and treasury policies. As at
31 December 2017, net assets attributable to the owners of the Company
amounted to approximately HK$6,143.2 million (31 December 2016:
approximately HK$4,051.8 million), including cash and bank balances of
approximately HK$13,069.8 million (31 December 2016: approximately
HKS$8,171.4 million) which were mainly denominated in US dollars,
Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars. As at 31 December 2017, the Group's
aggregate borrowings were approximately HK$24,156.0 million (31
December 2016: approximately HKS$15,467.4 million), of which
approximately HK$12,705.3 million (31 December 2016: approximately
HK$8,781.9 million) were bearing interest at fixed rates while approximately
HK$11,450.7 million (31 December 2016: approximately HK$6,685.5 million)
were at floating rates. The Group currently has not taken any interest rate
hedge.

As at 31 December 2017, the gearing ratio of the Group, which is calculated
as the net debt divided by the adjusted capital plus net debt was
approximately 60.64% as at 31 December 2017 (31 December 2016:
approximately 58.36%).

As at 31 December 2017, the capital commitment of the Group was
approximately HK$3,104.6 million (31 December 2016: approximately
HK$3,416.0 million), of which approximately HK$57.2 million would be
used for the renovation of the headquarters of enterprise cloud services,
approximately HK$186.8 million would be used as capital expenditures for
the expansion of its cinema business, approximately HK$2,840.4 million
would be used for property development, and approximately HK$20.2
million would be used for other business.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group's contingent liabilities were
approximately HK$19.5 million in connection with the guarantees given to
secure credit facilities (31 December 2016: approximately HK$18.6 million).

As at 31 December 2017, certain interests in leasehold land, buildings,
other property, plant and equipment, properties under development and
completed properties held for sale, investment properties and bank
deposits with a total net carrying value of approximately HK$12,025.6
million were pledged to secure the credit facilities granted to the Group (31
December 2016: approximately HK$10,160.5 million). In addition, trading
securities with a carrying value of approximately HK$0.3 million and certain
shares of several subsidiaries were pledged and bank accounts were
charged for securing the Group's credit facilities (31 December 2016:
approximately HK$0.2 million).

Details of the bank and other borrowings and financing of the Group are
set out in notes 29, 30 and 31 to the financial statements.
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EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATION IN EXCHANGE RATES

The majority of the Group’s borrowings and transactions were primarily
denominated in US dollars, Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars. Both the
operating expenses and revenue were primarily denominated in Renminbi
and Hong Kong dollars. Uncertainties in global economic development are
expected to warrant a fluctuation in Renminbi. The Group's reported assets,
liabilities and results may be affected by the Renminbi exchange rates.
During the year under review, fluctuation in Renminbi exchange rates
affected the assets and liabilities translation from Renminbi to Hong Kong
dollar in financial reporting of the Group, and the Group will keep on
reviewing and monitoring the fluctuation in exchange rate between
Renminbi and Hong Kong dollar. For the funding in US dollar, as Hong
Kong dollar is adopted as the reporting currency of the Group, the
management of the Group considers the exposure to exchange risk is
insignificant owing to the linked exchange rate system that pegs Hong
Kong dollar to US dollar. The Group proactively seeks management
measures to minimize the impact arising from risks and uncertainties as far
as practicable, and considers using foreign exchange hedging instruments
(if appropriate) from time to time, to minimize the risk exposure arising
from changes in Renminbi exchange rates. It will also proactively select the
currency of assets and liabilities according to the Group's pre-judgment of
currency movements where possible. As at the date of this report, the
Group has not used any foreign exchange hedging instruments.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICY

The Company employs and remunerates its employees based on their
qualifications, experience and performance. In addition to basic salary
payments, other benefits include housing, contributions to mandatory
provident fund, group medical insurance, group personal accident
insurance and examination leave. Employees are eligible to be granted
share options under the Company’s share option scheme at the discretion
of the Board of the Group. In general, salary review is conducted annually.
As at 31 December 2017, the Group had approximately 20,813 employees
(2016: 17,741 employees). The salaries of and allowances for employees for
the year ended 31 December 2017 were about HK$2,042.2 million (2016:
HK$1,358.9 million). The Group focuses on providing skill and quality
training for various levels of staff, and provides on-the-job capability
training to its staff; in respect of staff quality, corresponding trainings on
personal work attitude and work habits are also provided.
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MATERIAL ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 25 January 2017, the Group announced the acquisition of Orange Sky
Golden Harvest Cinemas (China) Company Limited* (¥& X 32 RS2 (FF )
B R 2 7)) through the acquisition of the entire issued share capital of
OSGH. The acquisition was completed on 28 July 2017. OSGH and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in cinema operation in Mainland
China. Through the acquisition, the Group is able to increase the number
of cinemas and screens significantly that the Group operates and manages
in the PRC, and further strengthen its position of second in ranking among
cinema investment and management companies throughout China.
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Report of the Directors
EEgHE

The Board herein present their report and the audited financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. During the
year, the Group was principally engaged in culture and media services,
property development, enterprise cloud services, and also tapped into
Internet lifestyle platform and innovative business.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Particulars of the Group's revenue and segment information for the year
are set out in notes 5 and 6 to the financial statements respectively.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The description of principal risks and uncertainties that the Group may be
facing is provided in the Risk Management and Internal Control section on
pages 84 to 89 of this annual report and a fair review of the Group's
business during the year, and the probable future business development
of each segment of the Company are provided in the Management
Discussion and Analysis section on pages 12 to 32 of this annual report.
Also, the financial risk management objectives and policies of the Group
can be found in note 50 to the consolidated financial statements.
Particulars of important events affecting the Group that have occurred
since the end of the financial year ended 31 December 2017 are provided
in the Management Discussion and Analysis section. An analysis of the
Group's performance during the year using financial key performance
indicators is provided in the Five-Year Financial Summary on page 292 of
this annual report. In addition, discussions on the Group's environmental
policies, relationships with its consumers and employees and compliance
with relevant laws and regulations which have a significant impact on the
Group are all contained in the Environmental, Social and Governance
Report on pages 90 to 116 of this annual report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated income
statement on page 124.

The Board has recommended a final dividend of 0.23 HK cents per ordinary
share for the year ended 31 December 2017 (for the year ended 31
December 2016: 0.20 HK cents per ordinary share). The proposed dividend
is subject to the approval of the shareholders at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on page 292.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in note 13 to the financial statements.

SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries and associates as at 31
December 2017 are set out in notes 16 and 17 to the financial statements
respectively.

BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS AND FINANCING

Details of the bank and other borrowings and financing of the Group as at
31 December 2017 are set out in notes 29, 30 and 31 to the financial
statements respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL

During the year, details of the movements in share capital of the Company
are set out in note 36 to the financial statements.

RESERVES

During the year, details of the movements in the reserves of the Company
and the Group are set out in note 38 to the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2017, the amount of the Company’s reserves available
for distribution was approximately HK$286.9 million. In addition, the
Company’s share premium account with a balance of HK$965.9 million
may be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group's sales to the five largest customers for the year ended 31
December 2017 accounted for less than 30.00% of the Group's total
turnover.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the percentage of purchase
attributable to the Group's five largest suppliers was 37.49% with the
largest supplier accounted for 18.38%.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS (Continued)

Other than Ms. Liu Rong, a director of the Company, who controls GD
Cinema Circuit (R AH BRI B R 2 F) (previously known as
&R A M B PR LR AR A A]) which is one of the five largest suppliers of
the Group in 2017, at no time during the year have the directors, their close
associates or any shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of
the directors owns more than 5% of the Company's share capital) had any
interest in the Group's five largest suppliers or customers.

DONATIONS

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company made charitable
donations and other donations amounting to approximately HK$180,000.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Details of directors’ emoluments are set out in note 44 to the financial
statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

The director below is deemed to be interested in the business which
competes or is likely to compete either directly or indirectly, with business
of the Group and is required to make disclosure of interests pursuant to
Rule 8.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

Ms. Liu Rong, an executive Director of the Company, is a director and
ultimate shareholder of GD Cinema Circuit. GD Cinema Circuit is engaged
in cinema investment and therefore is deemed to compete with the
cinema investment business of the Group. However, the Board believes
that the competition does not pose any material threat to the Group'’s
business prospects due to the fact that the target geographic markets of
cinemas operated by the Group and the cinemas operated by the above
director who is interested in the competing business are different.

In 2017, the cinema investment businesses of GD Cinema Circuit are
managed by the cinema management company controlled by Dadi
Cinema by way of entrusted management. We will make disclosure of such
connected transactions according to the requirements under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules when necessary.

In order to further safeguard the interest of the Group, those directors not
interested in the competing business review on a regular basis the
businesses and operations of the Group to ensure that its businesses are
run on the basis that they are independent of, and at arm’s length from, GD
Cinema Circuit.
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PENSION SCHEME

Details of retirement benefit plans in respect of the year are set out in note
43 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were as follows:

Mr. Yu Pun Hoi (Chairman)

Ms. Liu Rong (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Lung King Cheong

Ms. Chen Dan (resigned with effect from 31 March 2017)
Mr. Lam Bing Kwan?

Mr. Lau Yip Leung*

Mr. Xiao Sui Ning*

Mr. Ho Yeung Nang*

’ Non-executive directors
* Independent non-executive directors

The Company has received annual confirmation from each of the existing
independent non-executive directors of the Company confirming his
independence to the Company pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”)
and the Company considers that such directors are independent to the
Company.

In accordance with Bye-law 99 of the Company’s Bye-Laws (“Bye- Laws”),
Mr. Yu Pun Hoi, Mr. Lam Bing Kwan and Mr. Xiao Sui Ning shall retire at the
forthcoming annual general meeting ("“AGM"). All of the above retiring
directors, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of directors and senior management of the
Company as at the date of this report were as follows:

Biographical Details of Directors
Executive Directors

Mr. Yu Pun Hoi, aged 59, holding a degree of Doctor of Philosophy
conferred by Peking University, joined the Board in September 2000. Mr. Yu
is the chairman of the Board, the chairman of executive committee and
nomination committee of the Company, and a controlling shareholder of
the Company.

Mr. Yu Pun Hoi is also an executive director and a member of nomination
committee of Sino-i, and a director of a number of subsidiaries of the
Company. He served as the chairman of the board and the chairman of
nomination committee of Sino-i from January 1997 to January 2018 and
from March 2012 to January 2018, respectively.

Ms. Liu Rong, aged 46, graduated from the Law School of Anhui University
with a Bachelor degree in Laws, and got a Master of Laws conferred by the
Law Institute of Chinese Academy of Social Science, and is also a qualified
lawyer in the PRC. In addition, Ms. Liu graduated from the International
MBA School of National School of Development of Peking University in
2013. Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Liu worked in Chinese government
departments and law firms.

Ms. Liu joined Sino-i group in April 2002 and has been appointed as an
executive director and a member of executive committee of the Company
in March 2009, a member of nomination committee in March 2017, and
the chief executive officer of the Company in February 2018. Ms. Liu is
responsible for the businesses in culture and media services of the Group.

Ms. Liu is also the chairlady of the board of director and the chairlady of
nomination committee of Sino-i, and a director and/or general manager of
a number of subsidiaries of the Company.
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Mr. Lung King Cheong, aged 64, joined the Group in 2015 as a director of
Dadi News Media (HK) Limited (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company). He currently also serves as a director of each of Duowei Media
(HK) Limited, HKO1 Company Limited and WeMedia01 (HK) Limited (all of
which are wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company). Mr. Lung is
responsible for all news media business of the Group in Hong Kong, Beijing
and the USA. Mr. Lung is primarily responsible for the operations of “HK01”,
a multi-platformed news media which publishes a weekly newspaper and
operates a 24 hours’ news portal in Hong Kong. Mr. Lung is also responsible
for the publication of Duowei monthly magazine in Hong Kong, Singapore,
Malaysia and North America; as well as the overall editorial work and
general management of the “HKO1” editorial team.

Mr. Lung is an active member of the Hong Kong news media and has
extensive publishing and editorial experience. Prior to joining the Group
and starting from the 1980s, Mr. Lung had served as the deputy publisher
and general manager of Hong Kong Daily News, the chief editor and
publisher of Hong Kong Today, the editorial director and member of the
executive committee of One Media Group Limited. Mr. Lung had also been
the editor-in-chief of Ming Pao Weekly for 20 years. Mr. Lung is very familiar
with the Hong Kong media industry and is one of the most experienced
media people in Hong Kong.

Mr. Lung joined the Board in September 2016, and is also a director of a
number of subsidiaries of the Company.

Non-executive Director

Mr. Lam Bing Kwan, aged 68, graduated from the University of Oregon in
the United States of America with a Bachelor degree in Business
Administration in 1974. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Lam had been in
senior management positions in the banking and financial industry for
more than 10 years.

Mr. Lam joined the Board in September 2000, and was re-designated as a
non-executive director in April 2002. Mr. Lam is also a non-executive
director of Sino-i, and an independent non-executive director of Lai Sun
Development Company Limited, Lai Sun Garment (International) Limited,
Lai Fung Holdings Limited and eForce Holdings Limited. The securities of
the above mentioned companies are listed on the Stock Exchange.

BEEEXRE 64 RI5FMAREEBEMEAR
AEIZEWNBRARAMEE(FE)BRARIZE
FoWBENMRARAZEZEWNBE AR ZHEE
(BB)BRAR - BB ABRATLREEE—F
RERAAETES - ELLATAEFESS -
IREERCZIBEFEEEER - BLETER
E[EB 22EET [FE0] AZFEH
BIEE  REBER— 5 BARREL 24/ N
Wk - EEEENMBEESS EERIEELR(SZ
AT URBEEB0 FEER  BER
BTER—MERER-

BAAERREBHER  EHREEEEEY
HEEEKR - BAEMBREEF KRB 19804F
RUARGEEEECGIR) B E R ELE - GAR
AR BEE LA « SEREEEFRAFR
TERERHITEE SN E - AL N SIET(HR
BAIYBREE_TF - EALEHBBEEEIERE
HE REBREEENEEEEAZ—-

BELAER206FIANMAEZESTE - WELHTA
NEINBARZES -

FERTTEE

MRERE 685 MI1974FEERNEBF M
KRE BHEITREBESLEMN - MIAXEER -
MEARRITREMATH SR EIEREBR+F -

AR 2000F 9 AIIAZE SRS - 7 2002F 4 A1
FAEAIERITES - M ERBATPEEE 2 IE
HITEE URBEFMEREERAR  BHEK
BRARAG BEERERAFLERHZERSE
RARZEIIENITESE o LMl QAR ZBHRE
RETET e



Report of the Directors
EEgHE

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lau Yip Leung, aged 57, graduated from the City University of Hong
Kong and awarded an honours degree of Bachelor of Arts in Accountancy
in 1991, and also holds an MBA conferred by the University of Hull, UK. Mr.
Lau is a fellow member of The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants, a fellow member of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales, and a fellow practising member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Lau started his public practice
business in 1998, and has been a partner of Messrs. Fung Lau & Company,
Certified Public Accountants, since October 2000.

Mr. Lau joined the Board in May 2006 and is also a member of audit
committee and remuneration committee of the Company. In March 2012,
Mr. Lau has been appointed as a member of nomination committee of the
Company. Mr. Lau is appointed as the chairman of audit committee of the
Company in September 2013.

Mr. Xiao Sui Ning, aged 70, graduated from Yunnan Finance and
Management College (EERI 4 E B ##E2FT) majoring in corporate
management. Mr. Xiao is recognised as a senior economist by Bank of
Communications. Mr. Xiao is currently a consultant of Ping An Bank Co,,
Ltd,, an independent director of Beijing SPC Environment Protection Tech
Co,, Ltd,, an independent director of Zhongrun Resources Investment
Corporation and an independent non-executive director of Haitong
Securities Co., Ltd..

Mr. Xiao joined the Board in April 2016 and has been appointed as the
chairman of remuneration committee, and a member of audit committee
and nomination committee of the Company. Mr. Xiao is also an
independent non-executive director, the chairman of remuneration
committee, and a member of audit committee and nomination committee
of Sino-i.

Mr. Ho Yeung Nang, aged 68, has been in the position of chief operating
officer of a private company engaged in coal mining and iron sand mining
businesses in Indonesia and the Philippines respectively since he left the
Group in July 2009. Mr. Ho holds a Bachelor's Degree in Arts from The
University of Hong Kong and a Master’s Degree in Business Administration
from The Chinese University of Hong Kong. Mr. Ho served in different
managerial positions in banking industry both in Hong Kong and China
during the period from about 1973 to 1988. During the period from about
1989 to 1991, Mr. Ho was in Canada running his own business. In about
1992, Mr. Ho joined the Group and worked as a general manager of the
property division of the Group, who left the Group in July 2009.

Mr. Ho joined the Board in September 2016 and has been appointed as a
member of audit committee, remuneration committee and nomination of
the Company.
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Biographical Details of Senior Management

Mr. Xue Bo Ying (aged 49)
General Manager
Nan Hai Development Limited

General Manager
I Bk B Hb E 5 #5 F PR 72 A) (The Peninsula Shenzhen Property
Development Co,, Ltd.)

Mr. Xue graduated from Huazhong University and obtained a Master
degree in architecture from Tsinghua University, and is a certified first-level
architect and a certified town planner in the PRC. Prior to joining the Group,
Mr. Xue worked in such senior positions as deputy general manager, senior
architect and architectural design director in a number of corporations, and
also worked in Guangzhou City Construction Commission.

Mr. Xue joined the Group in January 2006 as an architectural design director,
responsible for overall architectural design of various property projects of the
Group in the PRC. In February 2009, Mr. Xue was appointed as an executive
deputy general manager of Nan Hai Development Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, and was promoted to general manager in July
2010 and appointed as a general manager of &4 S IR ER A
FR 22 7] (The Peninsula Shenzhen Property Development Co,, Ltd.).

Mr. Xue is also a member of executive committee of the Company, and a
director of a number of subsidiaries of the Company.

Ms. Yu Xin (aged 41)

General Manager

B R A B R B R A 7] (Guangdong Dadi Cinema Construction
Limited)

Ms. Yu has over 10 years' experience in financial management in addition
to her in-depth experience and knowledge in media and culture services
sector. Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Yu was a director of China region of
Emile Woolf International Limited.

Ms. Yu joined the Company in January 2011 in the position of controller in
fund management department. Ms. Yu was transferred to J& 5 K526
EER AR F] (Guangdong Dadi Cinema Construction Limited) (“Dadi
Construction”), a subsidiary of the Company, in August 2011 in the position
of deputy general manager, and was then promoted to executive deputy
general manager in December 2013, and further promoted to general
manager in February 2015, responsible for daily operation management of
Dadi Construction.

Ms. Yu is also a member of executive committee of the Company, and a
director of a number of subsidiaries of the Company.
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Mr. Chen Ming Fei (aged 41)
General Manager
R B) DRI B R A Bl (CE Dongli Technology Company Limited)

General Manager
3t T 48 B {5 B BT A BR A &) (Beijing Xinnet Cyber Information
Company Limited)

Mr. Chen has more than 10 years' sales, and possesses with acute insight in
IT business, and has extensive and professional experiences in product
creation, business strategy planning and business management. Prior to
joining Sino-i group, Mr. Chen worked in Vorwerk of Co. KG, a German
company.

In 2000, Mr. Chen joined CE Dongli, and was appointed as a national
commercial director, sales deputy general manager, executive deputy
general manager and business general manager. In January 2012, Mr. Chen
was promoted to a general manager, responsible for operation
management of CE Dongli. Mr. Chen was also the general manager of
Xinnet, responsible for operation management of Xinnet. Mr. Chen is also
an executive director and a general manager of Sino-i, and a director and/
or general manager of a number of subsidiaries of Sino-i. In January 2018,
Mr. Chen was appointed as the chief executive officer of Sino-i.

Mr. Chen is also a member of executive committee of the Company.

Ms. Zhao Lei (aged 38)

Ms. Zhao, with the bachelor degree in Economics from University of
International Business and Economics, the master degree in Finance from
University of York, and the accountant qualification of Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants (ACCA).

Ms. Zhao had acted as the director of Accounting Department and
Financial Department of the Company since December 2012, and was
promoted as vice general manager in February 2015.

Ms. Zhao is also a member of executive committee of the Company, and a
director of a number of subsidiaries of the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2017, the interests and short positions of the directors
and chief executive of the Company in shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO"))
as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the
SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers (the "Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules were as follows:

The Company

Long and short positions in shares in issue

EERROREERD 2ERRKE

R2017F 128318 ARAIZEEREBITHAE
RARRSEE A AE (Tx AEFRBPEK
BI(TEH R EEAEH ) ExvER) 2 i ~ BRI
B REHT - BEBALENIREE S KIS GG
FIEFEZELMP R RIE -8R A &%
10 ETBEITAZEFETESFR ZHIZESTE
(MR2ESFAL) A E A 5 R AE AR A B AP
2SRRI

LN
RERITRIDZHE AR

Approximate
Capacity/ Number of percentage
Name of Director Nature of interest shares held holding
R
Expgg B4 ERtE G A AatE
Yu Pun Hoi ("Mr. Yu") Corporate interest 40,596,627,261(L) 59.14% 1
T ([ TEED NEES 7,893,091,482(S) 11.50% 2
Notes: Bt
1. These 40,596,627,261 shares were collectively held by Rosewood Assets Ltd., Pippen 1. %% 40596627261 RIEH DA TR EBBEEEHRSE

Limited, Staverley Assets Limited, First Best Assets Limited and Unicorn Assets Group
Limited companies indirectly wholly owned by Mr. Yu through Dadi Holdings Limited, a
company wholly owned by Mr. Yu.

2. These 7,893,091,482 shares were charged by Pippen Limited, a company indirectly
wholly owned by Mr. Yu through Dadi Holdings Limited, a company wholly owned by
Mr. Yu.

3. (L) denotes long position and (S) denotes short position.

)R B K H 2 AR A BR 2 B 4% 75 # Rosewood Assets Ltd. ©
Pippen Limited * Staverley Assets Limited ~ First Best Assets
Limited & Unicomn Assets Group Limited B & 54

2. 25789309142 IR FRAEFBELEHREH LA
R A R A7) 2 & %5 & Pippen Limited K3 o

3. IREFR - MOEKRAR -
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Associated Corporations

As disclosed above, Mr. Yu is entitled to control the exercise of more than
one-third of the voting power at general meetings of the Company. As
such, Mr. Yu is taken to be interested in the shares of the associated
corporations of the Company within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO.
Sino-i is a company whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange, and is
an associated corporation of the Company within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO. As at 31 December 2017, the interests of the directors of the
Company in shares and underlying shares of Sino-i were as follows:

Sino-i

Long position in shares in issue

Name of Director Capacity/Nature of interest

510/ HENE

EEnR

Mr. Yu Corporate interest
TRE NG $
Lung King Cheong Personal interest
RS (BN E

Note:

1. These 12,835,105,316 shares were collectively held by Goalrise Investments Limited,
View Power Investments Limited and Wise Advance Investments Limited, all of which
are wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Yu was taken to be interested in
these shares by virtue of his controlling interests in shares of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, none of the directors nor
chief executive of the Company had any interests or short positions in
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO
or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 28 May 2012, the Company adopted a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”). Under the Scheme, share options may be granted to directors,
employees of the Group and those who have contributed or will contribute
to the Group at any time within ten years after its adoption at the discretion
of the Board.

Since the adoption of the Scheme and during the year ended 31
December 2017, no share options have been granted under the Scheme
by the Company. No share options were granted, exercised, cancelled or
lapsed by the Company under the Scheme during the year ended 31
December 2017 and there were no outstanding share options under the
Scheme as at 31 December 2017 and up to the date of this report.

A summary of the Scheme is as follows:

(1) Purpose

The purpose of the Scheme is to provide incentives or rewards to
participants for their contribution or would-be contribution to the
Group and/or to enable the Group to recruit and retain high-calibre
employees and attract human resources that are valuable to the
Group and any entity in which any member of the Group holds any
equity interests (the “Invested Entity”).

(2) Participants

The participants include:

a. any employee (whether full time or part time employee,
including any executive directors but not any non- executive
director) of the Company, its subsidiaries and any Invested
Entity;

b. any non-executive director (including independent non-
executive director) of the Company, any of its subsidiaries or
any Invested Entity;

C. any supplier of goods or services to any member of the Group
or any Invested Entity;

d. any customer of the Group or any Invested Entity;
e. any person or entity that provides research, development or

technological support or other services to the Group or any
Invested Entity;
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TG

f any shareholder or any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity or any holder of any securities issued by any member of
the Group or any Invested Entity; and

g. any ex-employee who has contributed or may contribute to
the development and growth of the Group and any Invested
Entity.

Maximum number of shares

The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
share options to be granted under the Scheme must not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the relevant class of shares of the
Company in issue as at the date of approval of the Scheme and the
limit on the number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the
Scheme and any other schemes must not exceed 30% of the
relevant class of shares of the Company in issue from time to time.
No share options may be granted under the Scheme and any other
schemes of the Company if this will result in such limit exceeded. As
at the date of this report, the number of shares available for issue in
respect thereof is 6,864,553,579 shares representing approximately
10% of the total number of shares of the Company in issue.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
the share options granted to each participant under the Scheme and
any other schemes (including both exercised and outstanding
options) in any 12-month period must not exceed 1 per cent. of the
relevant class of shares of the Company in issue. Any further grant of
share options above this limit shall be subject to certain
requirements as stipulated in the rules of the Scheme and to the
relevant rules under the Listing Rules.

The period within which the shares must be taken up
under a share option

The period within which the shares must be taken up a share option
shall be determined by the Board in its absolute discretion at the
time of grant, but such period must not exceed 10 years from the
date of grant of the relevant share option.

(3)

(4)

(5)
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(6) Minimum period for exercising a share option

The Board may at its discretion determine the minimum period for
which a share option must be held before it can be exercised.

(7) Acceptance and payment on acceptance

The share option shall be deemed to have been accepted when the
duplicate letter duly signed by the grantee, together with a
remittance of HK$1.00 in favour of the Company by way of
consideration for the grant thereof, is received by the Company. To
the extent that the offer is not accepted within 28 days in the
manner aforesaid, it will be deemed to have been irrevocable
declined and lapsed automatically.

(8) Basis of determining the subscription price

The subscription price for shares under the Scheme shall be a price
determined by the directors, but it must not be at least the higher of
(i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheet on the date of grant, which must be a business
day; (i) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheet for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value
of the share.

(9) Remaining life of the scheme

The Scheme will remain in force for a period of 10 years
commencing on 29 May 2012 up to 28 May 2022.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Except for the Scheme disclosed above, at no time during the year was the
Company, or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable
the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors has entered into any service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than the statutory
compensation.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company was entered into or
existed during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the paragraph “Continuing Connected Transactions”
and “Related Party Transactions” below, no contract of significance in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company or its subsidiaries
was a party, and in which any directors of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted during or at the end of the
year.

DIRECTORS’ INDEMNITIES

Pursuant to the Company’s Bye-Laws, save and except so far as the
provisions of the Bye-Laws shall be avoided by any provisions of the
statutes, the directors, managing directors, alternate directors, auditors,
secretary and other officers for the time being of the Company and the
trustees (if any) for the time being acting in relation to any of the affairs of
the Company, and their respective executors or administrators, shall be
indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets of the Company from
and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which
they or any of them, their or any of their executors or administrators, shall
or may incur or sustain by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted
in or about the execution of their duty or supposed duty in their respective
offices or trusts, except such (if any) as they shall incur or sustain through
their own wilful neglect or default, fraud and dishonesty respectively, and
none of them shall be answerable for the acts, receipts, neglects or defaults
of any other of them, or for joining in any receipt for the sake of conformity,
or for any bankers or other persons with whom any moneys or effects of
the Company shall be lodged or deposited for safe custody, or for the
insufficiency or deficiency of any security upon which any moneys of the
Company shall be placed out or invested, or for any other loss, misfortune
or damage which may happen in the execution of their respective offices
or trusts, or in relation thereto, except as the same shall happen by or
through their own wilful neglect or default, fraud and dishonesty
respectively.
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The Bermuda Companies Act permits a company to exempt and indemnify
its directors and officers from liability in the following terms:

A company may in its bye-laws or in any contract or arrangement
between the company and any officer, or any person employed by
the company as auditor, exempt such officer or person from, or
indemnify him in respect of, any loss arising or liability attaching to
him by virtue of any rule of law in respect of any negligence, default,
breach of any duty or breach of trust of which the officer or person
may be guilty in relation to the company or any subsidiary thereof.

Any provision, whether contained in the bye-laws of a company or
in any contract or arrangement between the company and any
officer, or any person employed by the company as auditor,
exempting such officer or person from, or indemnifying him against
any liability which by virtue of any rule of law would otherwise attach
to him in respect of any fraud or dishonesty of which he may be
guilty in relation to the company shall be void.

This indemnification may also cover any liabilities which the officer incurs
in defending any proceedings (criminal or civil) where relief is granted to
him, where he is acquitted, or where judgement is given in his favour. A
company may advance money to an officer for the costs of defending
proceedings, on the condition that the advance shall be repaid if any
allegation of fraud or dishonesty is proven.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance coverage for the directors and officers of the Group.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, there was no contract of
significance to which the Company or its holding company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which any controlling shareholder had a
material interest subsisted during the year ended 31 December 2017.

CONTRACTS WITH CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no contract of significance has been
entered into among the Company or any of its subsidiaries and the
controlling shareholders or any of their subsidiaries during the year ended
31 December 2017.
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CHANGE IN THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

There was no change in the Board since the date of the Company’s 2017
interim report and up to the date of this report.

CHANGES IN INFORMATION IN RESPECT OF
DIRECTORS

During the year ended 31 December 2017, there was no change to
information which is required to be disclosed and has been disclosed by
the directors pursuant to rules 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The Company remunerates its employees based on their qualifications,
experience and performance. In addition to basic salary payments, other
benefits include housing, contributions to mandatory provident fund,
group medical insurance, group personal accident insurance and
examination leave and etc. Employees are eligible to be granted share
options under the Company's share option scheme at the discretion of the
Board. In general, salary review is conducted annually.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
("Model Code").

Specific enquiries have been made to all the directors and the directors
have confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code throughout
the year ended 31 December 2017
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS

As at 31 December 2017, those persons (other than directors and chief  $22017F 12 831 B * RIEA QN BIRR B A KHE
executive of the Company) who had interests and short positions in shares &5 58 336 {17 & 2 Z 0 MATa08E - LA T AT (K
or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register required ~ ATIEERESTHABBRIN RAQ T ZRH K
to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows: BERM P IEAERRS AR -

FERRZEZRAR

Name of person holding an interest

Approximate

in shares which has been disclosed to percentage of

the Company under Divisions 2 and 3 Number of issued share capital

of Part XV of the SFO Nature of interest shares held of the Company

FERBESRHMERPIEXVEE 2R 355 BERRAERT

ERAARAREROES AL ERE BH EEME FrEROBE REAZBHNBED

Dadi Holdings Limited Corporate interest 40,596,627,261 (L) 59.14% 1

Rt ERERAR) NGl 3 7,893,091,482 () 11.50% 4

Rosewood Assets Ltd. Beneficial interest 7,964,600,210 (L) 11.60% 1
BEakn

Pippen Limited Beneficial interest 14,830,245,497 (L) 21.60% 1
EantEn 7,893,091,482 (5) 11.50%

Staverley Assets Limited Beneficial interest 4,893,197,974 (L) 7.12% 1
BEakn

First Best Assets Limited Beneficial interest 9,544,736,998 (L) 13.90% 1
Bafkn

Kung Ai Ming Corporate interest 6,530,443,498 (L) 9.51% 28&5

BEH NAEERS

Yu Ben Hei Corporate interest 6,461,043,498 (L) 941% 28&5

TARER NGIE: £

Macro Resources Ltd. Beneficial interest 4,361,043,498 (L) 6.35% 28&5
Bakn

Lim Siew Choon Corporate interest 5,514,986,997 (L) 8.03% 3

MNE NG £

Empire Gate Industrial Limited Beneficial interest 5,514,986,997 (L) 8.03% 3
BEakn

Central Huijin Investment Ltd. Security interest 5,220,000,000 (L) 7.60% 6
it Fa
Corporate interest 63,091,482 (L) 0.09% 6
NGIE: £

China Construction Bank Corporation Security interest 5,220,000,000 (L) 7.60% 6
it Fa
Corporate interest 63,091,482 (L) 0.09% 6

NS
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Notes:

Rosewood Assets Ltd., Pippen Limited, Staverley Assets Limited, First Best Assets Limited
and Unicorn Assets Group Limited are companies indirectly wholly owned by Mr. Yu
through Dadi Holdings Limited, a company wholly owned by Mr. Yu. Their interests in
shares are disclosed as the corporate interests of Mr. Yu above.

Macro Resources Ltd. and K Resources Group Limited are held as to 50% each by Ms.
Kung Ai Ming and Mr. Yu Ben Hei, the son of Mr. Yu. Their respective interest in
4,361,043,498 and 2,100,000,000 shares were included as interest held by Ms. Kung Ai
Ming and Mr. Yu Ben Hei. Ms. Kung Ai Ming owns interest of 69,400,000 shares through
Redmap Resources Limited, her wholly owned company.

Empire Gate Industrial Limited is wholly owned by Mr. Lim Siew Choon. Its interest in
shares was included as interest held by Mr. Lim Siew Choon.

These 7,893,091,482 shares were charged by Pippen Limited, a company indirectly
wholly owned by Mr. Yu through Dadi Holdings Limited, a company wholly owned by
Mr. Yu.

Pursuant to Part XV of the SFO, if certain conditions are met, the shareholders of the
Company are required to submit a disclosure of interest notice. In the event of changes
in the shareholding of the shareholders in the Company, the shareholders will not be
required to notify the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange unless certain
conditions are met. Therefore, the latest shareholding of the shareholders in the
Company may be different from the shareholding submitted to the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange.

These 5,283,091,482 shares were indirectly held by Central Huijin Investment Ltd.
through China Construction Bank Corporation, CCB International Group Holdings
Limited, CCB Financial Holdings Limited, CCB International (Holdings) Limited and CCB
International Overseas Limited.

(L) denotes long position and (S) denotes short position.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, no person (other than
directors and chief executive of the Company) had notified to the
Company any interests or short positions in shares or underlying shares of
the Company which was required to be recorded in the register kept by
the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of related party transactions of the Group are set out in note 49 to
the financial statements.

Save for the transactions mentioned in the below section headed
“Connected Transaction” and the section headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions” which are subject to the disclosure and annual review
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and are subject to all
connected transaction requirements when any of the relevant the
agreements is renewed or its terms are varied pursuant to Rule 14A.60 of
the Listing Rules, certain transactions mentioned under the note also
constituted connected transactions or continuing connecting transactions
as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules but are exempt from the
disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

On 11 May 2017, Nan Hai Zhichen Investment Consultancy (Beijing)
Company Limited (an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company)
as lender, China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited as lending agent and Dadi
Century Culture Media (Beijing) Company Limited (“Dadi Century Beijing")
as borrower, entered into entrusted loan contract, pursuant to which Nan
Hai Zhichen Investment Consultancy (Beijing) Company Limited entrusted
China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited to grant the entrusted loan in the
principal amount of RMB200,000,000 to Dadi Century Beijing, with a term
of three years.

On 11 May 2017, Ms. Liu Rong, an executive Director of the Company,
owns 80% of Dadi Century Beijing. In addition, Mr. Yu Cheung Hoi, an
associate of Mr. Yu Pun Hoi (an executive Director of the Company), owns
20% of Dadi Century Beijing. Given the foregoing, Dadi Century Beijing is a
connected person of the Company and the transactions under the
entrusted loan contract therefore constitutes connected transactions of
the Company. For details please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 11 May 2017.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the financial year under review, certain subsidiaries of the Company
entered into certain continuing connected transactions (particulars of
which have been disclosed in the announcement dated 19 August 2015
(the “Announcement”) issued by the Company). As per the Listing Rules, all
such continuing connected transactions are required to be disclosed in the
annual report of the Company (all capitalized terms used hereinbelow shall
have the same meanings used in the Announcement unless otherwise the
contexts hereinbelow specify):

1. On 1 January 2009, Dadi Cinema entered into a cooperation
agreement with GD Cinema Circuit, pursuant to which GD Cinema
Circuit shall supply Dadi Cinema various motion pictures and license
Dadi Cinema to project such motion pictures in its digital cinemas in
the PRC for a fixed term of five (5) years, having a provision of
automatic extension of one (1) year upon the end of the fixed term,
i.e. a total period of six (6) years, from 1 January 2009 to 31 December
2014. Upon expiration of the extended term under the cooperation
agreement on 31 December 2014, Dadi Cinema and GD Cinema
Circuit entered into the Dadi Cinema Cooperation Agreement on 1
January 2015, for a fixed term of five (5) years, having a provision of
automatic extension of one (1) year upon the end of the fixed term,
i.e. a total period of six (6) years, from 1 January 2015 to 31 December
2020.

Major terms: (1) Provision of motion pictures and advisory
services

(@) GD Cinema Circuit shall supply various
motion pictures to Dadi Cinema from time
to time and license Dadi Cinema to project
such motion pictures in digital cinemas
operated by Dadi Cinema in the PRC during
the Term; and

(b) GD Cinema Circuit shall provide advisory
services in respect of interior design and
operations of each digital cinema operated
by Dadi Cinema.
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(2) Sharing of Net Box Office

(@) During the period from 1 January 2015 to
30 June 2015:

U]

Licensed Motion Picture: the Net Box
Office of each Licensed Motion Picture
shall be distributed in the following
sequences:

(@a) pay all license fees payable to the
distributor for obtaining a license
to sub-license the Licensed Motion
Picture to Dadi Cinema for
projection of the Licensed Motion
Picture in its cinemas; and

(bb) the whole portion of the Net Box
Office after deduction of the
amount in (aa) shall belong to Dadi
Cinema, i.e. the GD Cinema Circuit
shall not be entitled to share the
Net Box Office of the Licensed
Motion Picture; and

(i) Fixed-Term Motion Picture: the sharing

ratio of the Net Box Office of all Fixed
Term Motion Pictures between GD
Cinema Circuit and Dadi Cinema is 1:1,
i.e. the Net Box Office is equally shared
between GD Cinema Circuit and Dadi
Cinema (however, GD Cinema Circuit
shall be solely responsible for all costs
and expenses incurred in obtaining a
fixed-term license to sub-license each
Fixed-Term Motion Picture to Dadi
Cinema for projection in its cinemas).
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(b) During the period from 1 July 2015 till the
end of the Term:

(i)

Licensed Motion Picture: the Net Box
Office of each Licensed Motion Picture
shall be distributed in the following
sequences:

(@a) pay all license fees payable to the
distributor for obtaining license to
sub-license the Licensed Motion
Picture to Dadi Cinema for
projection of the License Motion
Picture in its cinemas;

(bb) pay 1% of the Net Box Office of the
Licensed Motion Picture to GD
Cinema Circuit for supplying and
licensing the Licensed Motion
Picture and providing advisory
services and analyses; and

(cc) the whole portion of the Net Box
Office of the Licensed Motion Picture
after deduction of the amounts in (aa)
and (bb) shall belong to Dadi
Cinema; and

Fixed-Term Motion Picture: the sharing
ratio of the Net Box Office of all Fixed-
Term Motion Pictures between GD
Cinema Circuit and Dadi Cinema is 1:1,
i.e. the Net Box Office is equally shared
between GD Cinema Circuit and Dadi
Cinema (however, GD Cinema Circuit
shall be solely responsible for all costs
and expenses incurred in obtaining a
fixed-term license to sub-license each
Fixed-Term Motion Picture to Dadi
Cinema for projection in its cinemas).

In addition to the main terms as mentioned above, Dadi Cinema
shall give priority to GD Cinema Circuit in respect of publication of
advertisements in the cinemas of Dadi Cinema (i.e. it will be an
income for Dadi Cinema) on the condition that the terms and
conditions offered by GD Cinema Circuit are at least the same as
those offered by other clients of Dadi Cinema.
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On 4 February 2009, Dadi Development entered into a cooperation
agreement with GD Cinema Circuit, pursuant to which GD Cinema
Circuit shall supply Dadi Development various motion pictures and
license Dadi Development to project such motion pictures in its
digital cinemas in the PRC for a fixed term to 31 December 2013,
having a provision of automatic extension of one (1) year upon the
end of the fixed term, i.e. from 4 February 2009 to 31 December
2014. Upon expiration of the extended term under the cooperation
agreement on 31 December 2014, Dadi Development and GD
Cinema Circuit entered into the Dadi Development Cooperation
Agreement on 1 January 2015, for a fixed term of five (5) years,
having a provision of automatic extension of one (1) year upon the
end of the fixed term, i.e. a total period of six (6) years, from 1 January
2015 to 31 December 2020.

Major terms: (1) Provision of motion pictures and advisory

services

(@) GD Cinema Circuit shall supply various
motion pictures to Dadi Development from
time to time and license Dadi Development
to project such motion pictures in digital
cinemas operated by Dadi Development in
the PRC during the Term; and

(b) GD Cinema Circuit shall provide advisory
services in respect of interior design and
operations of each digital cinema operated
by Dadi Development.

(2) Sharing of Net Box Office

(@) During the period from 1 January 2015 to
30 June 2015:

(i) Licensed Motion Picture: the Net Box
Office of each Licensed Motion Picture
shall be distributed in the following
sequences:

(@a) pay all license fees payable to the
distributor for obtaining a license
to sub-license the Licensed Motion
Picture to Dadi Development for
projection of the Licensed Motion
Picture in its cinemas; and
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(bb) the whole portion of the Net Box
Office after deduction of the
amount in (aa) shall belong to Dadi
Development, i.e. the GD Cinema
Circuit shall not be entitled to share
the Net Box Office of the Licensed
Motion Picture; and

(i) Fixed-Term Motion Picture: the sharing
ratio of the Net Box Office of all Fixed
Term Motion Pictures between GD
Cinema Circuit and Dadi Development

is 1:1

, i.e. the Net Box Office is equally

shared between GD Cinema Circuit and
Dadi Development (however, GD
Cinema Circuit shall be solely
responsible for all costs and expenses
incurred in obtaining a fixed-term
license to sub-license each Fixed-Term
Motion Picture to Dadi Development
for projection in its cinemas).

(b) During the period from
end of the Term:

1 July 2015 till the

(i) Licensed Motion Picture: the Net Box
Office of each Licensed Motion Picture
shall be distributed in the following

sequences:

(@a) pay all license fees payable to the
distributor for obtaining license to
sub-license the Licensed Motion
Picture to Dadi Development for
projection of the License Motion
Picture in its cinemas;

(bb) pay 1% of the Net Box Office of the
Licensed Motion Picture to GD
Cinema Circuit for supplying and
licensing the Licensed Motion
Picture and providing advisory
services and analyses; and

(if)
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(cc) the whole portion of the Net Box
Office of the Licensed Motion
Picture after deduction of the
amounts in (aa) and (bb) shall
belong to Dadi Development; and

(i) Fixed-Term Motion Picture: the sharing
ratio of the Net Box Office of all Fixed-
Term Motion Pictures between GD
Cinema Circuit and Dadi Development
is 1:1, i.e. the Net Box Office is equally
shared between GD Cinema Circuit and
Dadi Development (however, GD
Cinema Circuit shall be solely
responsible for all costs and expenses
incurred in obtaining a fixed-term
license to sub-license each Fixed-Term
Motion Picture to Dadi Development
for projection in its cinemas).

In addition to the main terms as mentioned above, Dadi
Development shall give priority to GD Cinema Circuit in respect of
publication of advertisements in the cinemas of Dadi Development
(i.e. it will be an income for Dadi Development) on the condition that
the terms and conditions offered by GD Cinema Circuit are at least
the same as those offered by other clients of Dadi Development.

On 1 January 2014, Digicine Oristar Technology Development
(Beijing) Company Limited (“Oristar Technology”) entered into the
Oristar Technology Cooperation Agreement with GD Cinema Circuit,
pursuant to which Oristar Technology shall use its reasonable
endeavours to sale the Projection Equipment (or any part of it)
(including installation and training) to GD Cinema Circuit upon
fulfillment of certain conditions for coping with its business
development during a fixed term of six (6) years, from 1 January 2014
to 31 December 2019.
Major terms: (1) Undertakings of Oristar Technology
Oristar Technology shall use its reasonable
endeavours to provide the Projection
Equipment (or any part of it) (including
appropriate installation and training) for GD
Cinema Circuit within a reasonable period of
time for the purpose of coping with GD Cinema
Circuit's business development.
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(2) Undertakings of GD Cinema

GD Cinema Circuit shall purchase the Projection
Equipment (or any part of it) from Oristar
Technology on the conditions that (a) the
selling price of the Projection Equipment (or
any part of it) quoted by Oristar Technology
shall not be higher than the selling price of (i)
such Projection Equipment (or any part of it) or
(i) any other compatible equipment, apparatus
or system, quoted by other suppliers obtained
by GD Cinema Circuit; and (b) the quality of the
Projection Equipment (or any part of it)
(including but not limited to functionality and
operation) and after-sales service (including but
not limited to maintenance and repair) quoted
by Oristar Technology shall not be lower and
less than those quoted by other suppliers
obtained by GD Cinema Circuit.

On 19 August 2015, Ms. Liu, a director of the Company, who is a connected
person of the Company under Rule 14A.07 of the Listing Rules, (1) acquired
80% of Dadi Century Beijing (the remaining 20% has been owned by Mr.
YCH, an associate of Mr. YPH, who is a connected person of the Company
under Rule 14A.07 of the Listing Rules) which directly owns 85% equity
interest of GD Cinema Circuit; and (2) gained an effective control of 15%
equity interest of GD Cinema Circuit through 1t A E FF 12 & &K
% (Beijing Dadi Legend Investment Partnership) (‘Dadi Legend”) which is
an associate of Ms. Liu. Given the foregoing, Ms. Liu has gained control in
GD Cinema Circuit, and each of Dadi Century Beijing and GD Cinema
Circuit has become an associate of Ms. Liu pursuant to Rule 14A.12 of the
Listing Rules. As a result, the continuing transactions contemplated under
the Dadi Cinema Cooperation Agreement, the Dadi Development
Cooperation Agreement and the Oristar Technology Cooperation
Agreement have become continuing connected transactions effect from
19 August 2015.

The annual cap under Rule 14A.53 shall not be applied for the continuing
connected transactions contemplated under the Dadi Cinema Cooperation
Agreement, the Dadi Development Cooperation Agreement and the
Oristar Technology Cooperation Agreement as such transactions have
already been taken place since 1 January 2009, 4 February 2009 and 1
January 2014 under the Dadi Cinema Cooperation Agreement, the Dadi
Development Cooperation Agreement and the Oristar Technology
Cooperation Agreement respectively, i.e. before such transactions become
connected transactions upon the gaining control in GD Cinema Circuit by
Ms. Liu on 19 August 2015.
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On 30 November 2017, the Company entered into the Business
Cooperation Framework Agreement with GD Cinema Circuit for a fixed
term from 1 December 2017 to 30 November 2020, pursuant to which GD
Cinema Circuit shall supply the Group with motion pictures and license the
Group to project such motion pictures in its cinemas. Upon
commencement of the Term, the Dadi Cinema Cooperation Agreement
and the Dadi Development Cooperation Agreement shall be terminated
and cease to take effect. As at the date of the Business Cooperation
Framework Agreement, Ms. Liu Rong, an executive Director, owns 80% of
Dadi Century Beijing, which directly owns 82.49% equity interest of GD
Cinema Circuit. Ms. Liu Rong also has an effective control of 12.95% equity
interest of GD Cinema Circuit through Dadi Legend, which is an associate
of Ms. Liu Rong. In addition, Mr. Yu Cheung Hoi, an associate of Mr. Yu Pun
Hoi (an executive Director), owns 20% of Dadi Century Beijing. Given the
foregoing, GD Cinema Circuit is a connected person of the Company.

The fee payable for the motion pictures procured through the GD Cinema
Circuit will either be paid as a Fixed Fee Motion Picture or a Box Sharing
Motion Picture, both of which are explained below.

(a) Fixed Fee Motion Pictures

The Group shall pay monthly, a fixed licensing fee to the GD Cinema
Circuit for licensing each Fixed Fee Motion Picture from the GD
Cinema Circuit during the motion picture projection period and
such fixed licensing fee shall be in accordance with the same terms
offered by GD Cinema Circuit to its other cinema operators. GD
Cinema Circuit shall not be entitled to sharing of the Net Box Office
of the Fixed Fee Motion Pictures.

(b) Box Sharing Motion Pictures

The Net Box Office of each Box Sharing Motion Picture shall be
distributed in the following manner:

(i) a sum equivalent to all fees payable to the distributor (from
whom GD Cinema Circuit obtained its right to permit the
Group to project such motion pictures in its cinemas) (the
"Distributor Fees") shall be paid to the GD Cinema Circuit;
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(i) the Group shall, during the Term, pay an amount of not more
than 1% of the Net Box Office of the Box Sharing Motion
Picture to the GD Cinema Circuit and the exact percentage of
such payment shall be agreed upon between the Group and
the GD Cinema Circuit prior to the screening of the motion
picture; and

(i) the remaining portion of the Net Box Office shall belong to
the Group.

Pursuant to the Business Cooperation Framework Agreement, the
maximum amount of payment to be made by the Group to the GD
Cinema Circuit in relation to the provision of motion pictures, less
the Distributor Fees (the “Annual Caps”) are set out below:

For the eleven
months ended
30 November
2020

HZE2020F
11 A30H
IE11{EA
(HK$’000)

(F#&x)

Maximum amount AEBFERME A M 92,000

payable by the Group Kb 4R FET 2
to the GD Cinema =R BT A
Circuit in relation to &

provision of motion
pictures, less the
Distributor Fees

All the independent non-executive directors of the Company have
reviewed the above continuing connected transactions, and confirmed
that all such continuing connected transactions were entered into:

(1) inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(2)  on normal commercial terms or better; and

(3)  according to the agreements governing them on terms that are fair

and reasonable and in the interests of the Company’s shareholders
as a whole.
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In accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Company has
engaged its auditors to report on all continuing connected transactions as
mentioned above, and the auditors have issued to the Board a letter dated
28 March 2018 confirming that nothing has come to their attention that
causes them to believe that all such continuing connected transactions:

(1) have not been approved by the Board;

(2) in the event that there would be any transaction involving the
provision of goods or services by the Group, the transactions were
not, in all material respects, in accordance with the pricing policies of
the Group; and

(3)  were not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance with
the relevant agreements governing the transactions.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-Laws or the law
in Bermuda.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

On 25 May 2017 and 21 July 2017, Amber Treasure Ventures Limited (a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) issued US$500,000,000 credit
enhanced notes at a rate of 3.00% per annum and US$400,000,000 credit
enhanced notes at a rate of 3.15% per annum, respectively, both of which
are due 2020 and are listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
has purchased, sold or redeemed any of its listed securities during the year
ending 31 December 2017.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the publicly available information and to the best knowledge of
the directors, the Company has maintained during the year and up to the
date of this report sufficient public float as required under the Listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Particulars of the Company's corporate governance practices are set out in
the “Corporate Governance Report” on pages 70 to 89.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises all the independent non-executive
directors of the Company, namely Mr. Lau Yip Leung, Mr. Xiao Sui Ning and
Mr. Ho Yeung Nang. The Audit Committee has reviewed with the auditor
of the Company and management the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group, the audited consolidated financial statements of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017, and discussed the
auditing, financial control, internal control and risk management systems.

AUDITOR

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017 were
audited by BDO Limited ("BDO"). A resolution will be proposed at the
forthcoming AGM of the Company to re-appoint BDO as auditor of the
Company.

STRUCTURED AGREEMENTS

Reference is made to the joint announcements of the Company and its
listed subsidiary, Sino-i, dated 15 November 2013, 6 December 2013 and
31 July 2015 (collectively, the “Announcements”) in relation to a
discloseable transaction under which Xinnet Technology Information
Company Limited ("XWHT"), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Sino-i,
by means of the Structured Agreements, shall be entitled to control over
Xinnet's management, businesses and operations in substance in addition
to recognize and receive all economic benefits of the business of Xinnet.
All capitalized terms used hereinbelow shall have the same meanings as
those defined in the Announcements unless otherwise stated in this
annual report.

The Board hereby provides updated information in relation to the business
operations of Xinnet through the Structured Agreements and the
implications thereof as follows:

(a) Particulars and business activities of Xinnet:

Xinnet is a limited liability company established in the PRC and a
wholly-owned subsidiary of ZQHT. Mr. Jiang is a PRC citizen, and an
ultimate beneficial owner of 100% equity interest of ZQHT. Xinnet's
main businesses are provision of virtual server hosting and
maintenance services, provision of email services and registration of
domain names in the PRC, which are all regarded as a kind of
internet content services. Xinnet has obtained a valid licence for
providing internet content services, issued by It RTBIEEEB
(Beijing Communications Administration).
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(b) Summary of main terms of the Structured
Agreement:

(1)

)

3)

Loan Agreement (dated 15 November 2013):

U]

(i)

(i)

Parties: XWHT as lender; and Mr. Jiang as borrower

Loan amount: RMB1,500,000

The loan is interest free, and has no maturity date for
repayment. Mr. Jiang shall have no right to effect any
early repayment unless having the written consent from
XWHT.

Equity Pledge Agreement (dated 15 November 2013):

U]

(i)

(iff)

Parties: XWHT as pledgee; ZQHT as pledgor; and Xinnet

Assets pledged: 80% equity interest of Xinnet, free from
encumbrance, as first fixed charge to XWHT as security.

ZQHT shall not dispose of the pledged 80% equity
interest to any other party without obtaining the written
approval of XWHT.

Management and Technology Services Agreement (dated 15
November 2013):

0]

(if)

(iif)

Parties: XWHT; and Xinnet

XWHT shall provide certain exclusive management and
technology services to Xinnet.

The Management and Technology Services Agreement
is solely terminable by XWHT but not Xinnet. In return
for the provision of the exclusive services, XWHT shall be
entitled to receive a service fee which is equivalent to
the net profit of Xinnet as per its yearly audited financial
statements.
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(c)

(4)  Option Agreement (dated 15 November 2013):
(i) Parties: XWHT as grantee; ZQHT as grantor; and Xinnet

(i) ZQHT shall grant an exclusive option to XWHT at an
option price of RMB1.00 to acquire up to 100% equity
interest in the registered capital of Xinnet (no limit on
the number of times the option may be exercised by
XWHT). The total subscription price for 100% equity
interest of Xinnet shall be equivalent to the total loan
amount (being RMB1,500,000) under the Loan
Agreement, and the subscription price for each option
exercised shall be paid by direct set off on a dollar-for-
dollar basis against the outstanding loan amount under
the Loan Agreement.

(5)  Power of Attorney (dated 15 November 2013):
(i) Parties: ZQHT; and XWHT

(i) Itis an irrevocable power of attorney under which
XWHT shall be the sole attorney of ZQHT. XWHT shall
have full power, without having to obtain ZQHT's any
further consent or approval, to exercise such rights in
Xinnet as (a) all shareholder’s rights and voting rights in
accordance with the corporate memorandum of Xinnet;
and (b) rights of nomination and appointment of legal
representative, chairman of the board, directors, general
manager and other senior management personnel of
Xinnet.

The Loan Agreement, the Equity Pledge Agreement, the
Management and Technology Services Agreement, the
Option Agreement and the Power of Attorney shall be
executed simultaneously with each other.

The significance of business activities of Xinnet to
the Group:

By means of the Structured Agreements, the Group may engage in
the business of virtual server hosting and maintenance in the PRC
and such business may widen the spectrum of services of the Group.
The widened services are expected to lead the Group to having not
only a stronger foothold against its competitors in the PRC but also
an achievement of efficiency and cost-effectiveness in provision of
virtual server hosting and maintenance services to the customers of
the Group.

(c)
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(d) The financial impact of the Structured Agreements on

(e)

(f)

the Group:

XWHT is a parent company of Xinnet as XWHT has the right to
control Xinnet by virtual of the Structured Agreements. As a result,
the financial position and operating results of Xinnet and its
subsidiary shall be consolidated in the XWHT's financial statements
from the date on which XWHT has gained control in Xinnet in
accordance with the HKFRS.

During the year, Xinnet's revenue was approximately
HKS$117,937,000 (2016: approximately HK$129,847,000); loss before
income tax was approximately HK$44,516,000 (2016: profit before
income tax of approximately HK$3,659,000); and total assets were
approximately HK$144,339,000 (2016: approximately
HKS$121,684,000) have been consolidated into the Group's financial
statement.

The loss for the year was mainly due to the fact that the Group has
put more efforts in research and development to improve product
quality, resulting in increased research and development expenses.

The extent to which the Structured Agreements
relate to requirement of applicable laws, rules and
regulations other than the foreign ownership
restriction:

In view of the PRC legal opinion, (i) the Structured Agreements have
complied with the laws, rules and regulations in the PRC, and
complied with the respective articles of association of XWHT, ZQHT
and Xinnet; (i) there is no law, rule or regulation specifically disallows
foreign investors from using any structured agreement to gain
control of or operate the business of Xinnet; and (jii) the Structured
Agreements would not be deemed as concealing illegal intentions
with a lawful form and void under the PRC contract law.

Reasons for using the Structured Agreements and
the risks associated therewith including actions
taken to mitigate such risks:

Xinnet's main businesses are classified as value-added
telecommunication services which is a kind of business restricted to
foreign investors in the PRC. By virtue of JMNEIR B BEEEIEH
7E (Provisions on the Administration of Foreign Investment
Telecommunication Enterprises), foreign investors are not allowed to
hold more than 50% in the equity interest of a PRC enterprise
providing value-added telecommunication services.

(d)

(e)

(f)
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The main businesses of Xinnet are considered as value-added
businesses which widen the spectrum of services of the Group for its
customers and in turn enhance the Group’s competitiveness in the
PRC market. As the Group faces the aforesaid restriction in equity
interest of a PRC company, the Structured Agreements shall be
regarded as a strategic arrangement by which the Group may fully
and effectively control Xinnet, which in turn enables the Group to
achieve the aforesaid purposes. In addition, the Structured
Agreements offer flexibility to the Group in control of Xinnet — (a)
control of its management, businesses and operations; and (b)
owning of its 100% equity interest by exercising the call option
under the Option Agreement when the restriction in having more
than 50% equity interest of a PRC enterprise by foreign investors is
removed or repealed.

In addition to the foreign ownership restriction under the prevailing
applicable laws and regulations, the Structured Agreements do not
violate any PRC laws, rules and regulations, and the execution of the
Structured Agreements by the parties thereto does not violate any
article in the articles of association of the contracting parties; and
such prevailing provision and notice issued by the PRC authorities as
() CHNEREBELEEEHRTE) (Provisions on the
Administration of Foreign Investment Telecommunication
Enterprises) (amended in 2008) and (M & & EEIEE B 8%)
(Catalogue for Guidance of Foreign Investment Industries) (@amended
in 2015) issued by the State Council of the PRC, under which foreign
investor shall not have more than 50% in a corporation providing
value-added telecommunication services; and (i) BFIN3&5NE
WEKEILEEEFEHEERMA) (Notice of Strengthened
Administration of Foreign Investment in and Operation of Value-
Added Telecommunication Business) issued by the Ministry of
Industry and Information Technology of the PRC in July 2006 under
which a local PRC company holding an internet content provider
licence shall not lease, transfer or sell the licence to foreign investors
in any form, or provide any assistance to foreign investors to provide
internet content services in the PRC, but such provision and notice
are not governing or restricting the control of a PRC company
through structured agreements.

Given the foregoing, the Structured Agreements shall be regarded
as valid documents binding all parties thereto as at the date of this
report. However, if any new applicable law or regulation were
enacted in the future in the PRC, the validity and enforceability of the
Structured Agreements might have been affected, and as a result,
the structured agreements of controlling Xinnet would have been
disruptive which in turn would have affected the business of the
Group.
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The Ministry of Commerce of the PRC has issued certain consultation
paper (B ZRHEEKE RHR) in respect of a bill namely (& A R £
FNEINER LA 5L ) (Foreign Investment Law of the PRC) (the “Bill") in
January 2015, which is to be enacted into an act or statute. As per
sections 15 and 18 thereof, foreign investment means foreign
investors directly or indirectly conduct certain investment activities,
e.g. through structured agreements or trust arrangement to control
a PRC company or holding equity interest of a PRC company. Any
foreign investment in any business under the catalogue of restricted
investment shall apply for an access permit from foreign investment
authority under the State Council of the PRC as per section 27
thereof. There is no indication in the Bill that contracts under the
contractual arrangement would be void.

Application for an access permit cited in the Bill could be viewed as
a kind of administrative procedure rather than a prohibitive
threshold, therefore, failure in obtaining the permit by fulfilling
certain administrative procedures would not be very high. As Mr.
Jiang is not a connected person of the Group, the risk of direct
conflict of interest with the Group will be very low. It is unlikely for
Mr. Jiang setting up another entity conducting business having a
direct competition with Xinnet's, otherwise, Mr. Jiang would not
execute and procure the execution of the Structured Agreements by
which Mr. Jiang has given up the businesses of Xinnet. As at the date
of this report, the Group is not aware that Mr. Jiang has carried out or
is involved in any business having a direct competition with the
businesses of the Group. If Mr. Jiang or ZQHT breaches any
obligations or undertakings under any Structured Agreements, the
operations of Xinnet would not be affected as the position of the
Group in controlling Xinnet has been fully secured by (a) full control
of the board of directors of Xinnet; and (b) obtaining a charge of
100% equity interest in Xinnet (as per the provision of the Loan
Agreement, the pledgor has further charged the remaining 20%
equity interest in Xinnet as first fixed charge in favour of the pledgee
in October 2014).

Since the Bill has yet been enacted into an act or statute, the sections
or provisions thereof might be further modified and amended after
the consultation period, it is uncertain whether there will be any
additional conditions imposed on foreign investors.

The Structured Agreements might be subject to scrutiny of the tax
authorities in the PRC, and additional tax might be imposed, but the
Group does not expect that such tax risk is high and will lead to any
substantial financial impact on the Group.
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)

(9)

(h)

TG

Material change in the Structured Agreements:

No Structured Agreement has been supplemented or modified since
the date of execution of all such Structured Agreements.

Unwinding of the Structured Agreements:

No Structured Agreement has been unwound since the date of
execution all such Structured Agreements. None of the Structured
Agreement is to be unwound until and unless the restriction on
ownership by foreign investors is removed or not in force. In the
event of such restriction in foreign investment is removed or not in
force, XHWT will exercise its option under the Option Agreement to
acquire the entire equity interest in Xinnet. Upon completion of
formal acquisition of the entire equity interest in Xinnet, the
Structured Agreements will then be unwound.

On behalf of the Board
Yu Pun Hoi
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2018
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The Board is pleased to present the Corporate Governance Report of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2017.

The Company is committed to maintain high corporate governance
standard and unambiguous procedures to ensure the integrity,
transparency and quality of disclosure in order to enhance its shareholders’
value.

COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
CODE

In the opinion of the Board, the Company has complied with the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code") as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules throughout the year ended 31 December 2017, except for the
deviations from Code Provisions A.2.1 and A.4.1. Explanations for such
non-compliance are provided below.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
The Company has adopted the Model Code.

Specific enquiries have been made to all the directors and the directors
have confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code throughout
the year ended 31 December 2017.

The Company has also established written guidelines on no less exacting
than the Model Code (the “Employees Written Guidelines”) for securities
transactions by employees who are likely to be in possession of
unpublished inside information of the Company.

No incident of non-compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines by
the relevant employees was noted by the Company.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As at the date of this report, the current Board is made up of seven
directors including three executive directors, one non-executive director
and three independent non-executive directors (the “INEDs"). The directors
are, collectively and individually, aware of their responsibilities to the
shareholders. The directors’ biographical information is set out on pages 37
to 41 under the heading "Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management”. During the year ended 31 December 2017 and up to the
date of this report, the Board consisted of the following:

Executive Directors

Mr. Yu Pun Hoi (Chairman)

Ms. Liu Rong (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Lung King Cheong

Ms. Chen Dan (resigned with effect from 31 March 2017)

Non-executive Director

Mr. Lam Bing Kwan

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lau Yip Leung
Mr. Xiao Sui Ning
Mr. Ho Yeung Nang

The overall management of the Company’s businesses is vested in the
Board, which assumes the responsibility for leadership and control of the
Company and is collectively responsible for promoting the success of the
Company by directing and monitoring its affairs. All directors should take
decisions objectively in the best interests of the Company.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the
Company are delegated to the senior management. The delegated
functions and work tasks are periodically reviewed. Approval has to be
obtained from the Board prior to any significant transactions entered into
by the abovementioned senior management of the Company.

The Board has the full support of its board committees and the senior
management of the Company to discharge its responsibilities.

To the best knowledge of the Company, the Board members do not have
any financial, business and family or other material/relevant relationship
with each other. During the year, the Board held 22 meetings.
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Code Provision A.2.1 stipulated that the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer (the "CEQ") should be separated and should not be
performed by the same individual.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company has not complied
with CG Code Provision A.2.1 as it has not appointed a CEO. During the
year ended 31 December 2017, the role of CEO is also performed by Mr. Yu
Pun Hoi who is the chairman of the Company. The Board believes that
vesting the roles of both chairman and CEO in the same person provides
the Company with strong and consistent leadership, and allows for
effective and efficient planning and implementation of business decisions
and strategies. For good corporate governance, the Company appointed
Ms. Liu Rong as the CEO on 12 February 2018. The Company has therefore
complied with the requirements under CG Code Provision A.2.1 since 12
February 2018.

During the year, the chairman held a meeting with each of the non-
executive director and independent non-executive directors of the
Company and obtained independent opinions relating to affairs of the
Board and the Company without the presence of other executive Directors.

Non-executive Directors

Code Provision A4.1 stipulated that non-executive directors should be
appointed for a specific term subject to re-election.

During the period from 1 January to 24 May 2017, the Company has not
complied with CG Code Provision A4.1 as not all non-executive directors of
the Company were appointed for a specific term. However, all non-
executive directors are subject to the retirement and rotation requirements
in accordance with the Company’s Bye-Laws. As such, the Board considers
that sufficient measures have been taken to ensure that the Company’s
corporate governance practices are no less exacting than those in the CG
Code. Since 25 May 2017, the Company has entered into service contracts
with each of its non-executive directors (including independent non-
executive directors) for a term of two years with effect from the signing
date of service contracts. The Company has therefore complied with the
requirements under CG Code Provision A4.1 since 25 May 2017.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Pursuant to Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules, during the year
ended 31 December 2017, the Company has appointed three INEDs of
whom Mr. Lau Yip Leung is a certified public accountant in Hong Kong.

The Company has received, from each of the INEDs, an annual confirmation
of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers all of the INEDs are independent.

Notwithstanding that Mr. Lau Yip Leung has served as an independent
non-executive director of the Company for more than nine years, (i) the
Board has assessed and reviewed the annual confirmation of
independence based on the requirement set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules and affirmed that Mr. Lau Yip Leung remains independent; (i) the
Nomination Committee of the Company has assessed and is satisfied of
the independence of Mr. Lau Yip Leung; and (iii) the Board considers that
Mr. Lau Yip Leung remains independent of management and free of any
relationship which could materially interfere with the exercise of his
independent judgement. Notwithstanding the length of his service, the
Company believes that his valuable knowledge and experience in the
Group's business will continue to benefit the Company and the
shareholders as a whole.

Directors’ Training

According to the Code Provision A.6.5, all directors should participate in a
programme of continuous professional development to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution to the
Board remains informed and relevant. The Company should be responsible
for arranging and funding training, placing an appropriate emphasis on the
roles, functions and duties of the directors.

From time to time, directors are provided with written materials to develop
and refresh their professional skills on the latest development of applicable
laws, rules and regulations for the purpose of assisting them in discharging
their duties. The Company had received from each of the directors the
confirmations on taking continuous professional training during the year.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established four board committees, namely Executive
Committee, Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee, to oversee particular aspects of the Company'’s affairs and to
assist in the execution of the Board's responsibilities.

Executive Committee

The Company formulated written terms of reference for the Executive
Committee. During the year ended 31 December 2017 and up to the date
of this report, the Executive Committee consisted of executive directors
and senior management of the Company as follows:

Mr. Yu Pun Hoi (Chairman of the Executive Committee)
Ms. Chen Dan (resigned with effect from 31 March 2017)
Ms. Liu Rong

Ms. Yu Xin*

Mr. Xue Bo Ying*

Mr. Chen Ming Fei*

Ms. Zhao Lei*

* Senior Management

The primary duties of the Executive Committee are empowered to plan,
determine, approve, implement, handle, arrange, review and amend all
policies, operations, corporate governance functions and internal control
of the Group, ensuring that the delegation of its powers to the senior
management is clearly defined, and that a transparent reporting procedural
system is in place and effectively monitored.

During the year, the Executive Committee held 4 meetings, in particular, to
review the financial performance of the segments in the Group, review the
Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance, make
decisions on the strategic layout of Dadi Media and formulate long-term
development strategies for each segment.

Audit Committee

The Company formulated written terms of reference for the Audit
Committee in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules.
During the year ended 31 December 2017 and up to the date of this report,
the Audit Committee consisted of all INEDs as follows:

Mr. Lau Yip Leung (Chairman of the Audit Committee)
Mr. Xiao Sui Ning
Mr. Ho Yeung Nang
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The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to ensure the objectivity
and credibility of financial reports and internal control procedures as well
as to maintain an appropriate relationship with the external auditor of the
Company.

During the year, the Audit Committee held 2 meetings, in particular, to
review with management the accounting principles and practices adopted
by the Group, the audited financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2016 and the unaudited interim results for the six months
ended 30 June 2017, and discussed the auditing, financial control, internal
control and risk management systems.

Remuneration Committee

The Company formulated written terms of reference for the Remuneration
Committee in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules.
During the year ended 31 December 2017 and up to the date of this report,
the Remuneration Committee consisted of all the INEDs as follows:

Mr. Xiao Sui Ning (Chairman of the Remuneration Committee)
Mr. Lau Yip Leung
Mr. Ho Yeung Nang

The Remuneration Committee has adopted the second model described
in paragraph B.1.2(c) under the CG Code (i.e. making recommendation to
the Board on the remuneration packages of individual executive director
and senior management member). The primary duties of the Remuneration
Committee are responsible for making recommendations to the Board on
the establishing of formal and transparent procedures for developing
remuneration policies and the remuneration packages of individual
executive directors and senior management. It takes into consideration on
salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment and
responsibilities and employment conditions elsewhere in the Group.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee held 1 meeting, in
particular, to review and recommend to the Board the remuneration
policies and the remuneration packages of the Company.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the emoluments paid or payable to
members of senior management were within the following band:

Emolument band

HEEE

Nil-HK$ 1,000,000 Z 1,000,000 7 7T
HK$1,000,001-HK$2,000,000

1,000,001 78 7T —2,000,000 78 7T
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Nomination Committee

The Company formulated written terms of reference for the Nomination
Committee in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules.
During the year ended 31 December 2017 and up to the date of this report,
the Nomination Committee consisted of the directors of the Company as
follows:

Mr. Yu Pun Hoi (Chairman of the Nomination Committee)
Ms. Liu Rong (appointed with effect from 31 March 2017)
Ms. Chen Dan (resigned with effect from 31 March 2017)
Mr. Lau Yip Leung*

Mr. Xiao Sui Ning*

Mr. Ho Yeung Nang*

* INED

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are responsible for
reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board, identifying
individuals suitably qualified to become directors, assessing the
independence of INEDs, and making recommendations to the Board on
appointment of directors, and review the board diversity policy annually.
The Nomination Committee has the authority given by the Board to seek
external professional advice in the selection and recommendation for
directorship, when required, fulfilling the requirements for professional
knowledge and industry experience of any proposed candidates.

During the year, the Nomination Committee held 1 meeting, in particular,
to review and assessment of the independence of all INEDs of the
Company; to consider and recommend to the Board for approval the list of
retiring directors for re-election at the annual general meeting held on 25
May 2017 (the “2017 AGM"); and to review the structure, size and
composition of the Board.

The Nomination Committee will assess the candidate or incumbent on
criteria such as integrity, experience, skill and ability to commit time and
effort to carry out the duties and responsibilities. The recommendations of
the Nomination Committee will then be put to the Board for decision.
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Procedure for Nomination of Directors

When there is a vacancy in the Board, the Nomination Committee
evaluates the balance of skills, knowledge and experience of the Board, and
identifies any special requirements for the vacancy. The Nomination
Committee will then identify suitable candidates and convene a
Nomination Committee meeting to discuss and vote on the nomination of
directors and make recommendation to the Board on the candidate(s) for
directorship.

Criteria for Nomination of Directors

The Nomination Committee will consider candidates who possess the
particular skills, experience and expertise that will best complement the
Board effectiveness at that time.

In considering the overall balance of the Board’s composition, the
Nomination Committee will give due consideration to the board diversity
policy of the Company.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy in relation to the
nomination and appointment of new directors, which sets out the
selection of board candidates shall be based on a range of diversity
perspectives with reference to the Company’s business model and specific
needs, including but not limited to gender, age, race, language, cultural
background, educational background, industry experience and professional
experience. Board appointments will continue to be made on a merit basis
and candidates will be considered against objective criteria, with due
regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board. The Nomination
Committee will give consideration to the board diversity policy when
identifying suitably qualified candidates to become members of the Board,
and will review the board diversity policy, so as to develop and review
measurable objectives for the implementing the board diversity policy and
to monitor the progress on achieving these objectives.

The directors’ biographical information as at the date of this report is set out on
page 37 to 41 under the heading “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management”. The Nomination Committee reviewed the board diversity
policy and achievement of objectives and effectiveness of the board diversity
policy, and recommended the Board that the existing Board was appropriately
structured and no change was required.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Executive Committee of the Company is responsible for performing
the duties on corporate governance functions set out below:

a. To develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations to the Board;

b.  To review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management;

C. To review and monitor the Company'’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

d.  To develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and directors;
and

e. To review the Company’s compliance with the code and disclosure
in the Corporate Governance Report.
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NUMBER OF MEETINGS AND DIRECTORS’
ATTENDANCE

The attendance record of each director at the Board, Board committee
meetings and general meetings of the Company held for the year ended
31 December 2017 is set out in the table below:

BHERRBRESHFELE

TRIREESEHFEHE2017F12A831BIEFE
BITHARRERELH EFZETTHMR
BAEHIBER

Attendance/Number of Meetings
/SRRy

Executive

Committee

Nomination  Continuous
Committee  Committee  Committee  Professional

Meeting Meeting Meeting Development
B R’E B
ZE883 #® ZE883 BXER

Audit Remuneration
Board General
Meeting Meeting

LEON-|

Name of Director

Executive Directors BiTES
Mr. Yu Pun Hoi TmEtE 8 1 4 NATER  NATER 1 /
Ms. Liu Rong ElE S e 18 - 4 NATER  NATER NATER /
Mr. Lung King Cheong ESEAH 17 - 4 NATER  NATER NATER /
Ms. Chen Dan (Note 1) Rftat(Wit1) 3 ONATNER  NATER  NATER  NATER 1 /
Non-executive Director FHTES
Mr. Lam Bing Kan HREEE 10 1 NAMER NANER NVAMER NATER /
Independent Non-executive ~ BUFHTES

Directors
Mr. Lau Yip Leung AEREE 7 1 NATER 2 1 1 /
Mr. Xiao Sui Ning BRELE 7 - NATER 2 1 1 /
Mr. Ho Yeung Nang f&sEE 7 - NATER 2 1 1 /
Nurnber of meetings held ERBRERERE

during the year 2 1 4 2 1 1

Note: Hiat -

(1) Ms. Chen Dan resigned with effect from 31 March 2017.

M
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RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports, inside
information announcements and other disclosures required under the
Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements.

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2017.

The statement of the external auditor of the Company about its reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the “Independent
Auditor’s Report” on pages 117 to 123.

The remuneration paid to the external auditors of the Group in respect of
audit service and non-audit services for the year ended 31 December 2017
amounted to approximately HK$14,385,000 and HK$2,633,000, respectively.
The non-audit services include professional advice on transactions as well
broader business advisory and advisory service to assist the Company to
comply with laws and regulations. An analysis of the remuneration paid to
the external auditors of the Group is set out in note 8 to the financial
statements.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company engaged Mr. Chiu Ming King, the executive director of
Corporate Services of Vistra Corporate Services (HK) Limited, external
service provider, as its company secretary. His primary contact at the
Company is Ms. Zhao Lei, the vice general manager of the Company.

In compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, during the year ended 31
December 2017, Mr. Chiu has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional trainings to update his skills and knowledge.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

1.

Procedures for shareholders to convene an Special
General Meeting (“SGM”)

Pursuant to the Bye-law 62 of the Bye-Laws, the board may,
whenever it thinks fit, convene an SGM, and SGM shall also be
convened on requisition, as provided by the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda (the “Companies Act”), or, in default, may be convened by
the requisitionists.

Under Section 74 of the Companies Act, the directors of the
Company, notwithstanding anything in its Bye-Laws shall, on the
requisition of shareholders of the Company holding at the date of
the deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of such of the
paid-up capital of the Company as at the date of the deposit carries
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company, forthwith
proceed duly to convene an SGM of the Company.

The requisition must state the purposes of the meeting, and must be
signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the registered office of
the Company and may consist of several documents in like form
each signed by one or more requisitionists.

If the directors do not within twenty-one days from the date of the
deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a meeting, the
requisitionists, or any of them representing more than one half of
the total voting rights of all of them, may themselves convene a
meeting, but any meeting so convened shall not be held after the
expiration of three months from the said date.

A meeting convened under Section 74 of the Companies Act by the
requisitionists shall be convened in the same manner, as nearly as
possible, as that in which meetings are to be convened by directors.
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Procedures for putting forward proposals at
shareholders’ meeting

Subject to Section 79 of the Companies Act, it shall be the duty of
the Company on the requisition in writing of such number of
shareholders as is hereinafter specified, at the expense of the
requisitionists unless the Company otherwise resolves:

—  togive to the shareholders of the Company entitled to receive
notice of the next AGM notice of any resolution which may
properly be moved and is intended to be moved at that
meeting;

—  to circulate to shareholders entitled to have notice of any
general meeting sent to them any statement of not more than
one thousand words with respect to the matter referred to in
any proposed resolution or the business to be dealt with at
that meeting.

The number of shareholders necessary for a requisition under
Section 79 of the Companies Act shall be:

(@)  either any number of shareholders representing not less than
one-twentieth of the total voting rights of all the shareholders
having at the date of the requisition a right to vote at the
meeting to which the requisition relates; or

(b)  notless than one hundred shareholders.

Notice of any such intended resolution shall be given, and any such
statement shall be circulated, to shareholders of the Company
entitled to have notice of the meeting sent to them by serving a
copy of the resolution or statement on each such shareholder in any
manner permitted for service of notice of the meeting, and notice of
any such resolution shall be given to any other shareholders of the
Company by giving notice of the general effect of the resolution in
any manner permitted for giving him notice of meetings of the
Company, provided that the copy shall be served, or notice of the
effect of the resolution shall be given, as the case may be, in the
same manner and, so far as practicable, at the same time as notice of
the meeting and, where it is not practicable for it to be served or
given at that time, it shall be served or given as soon as practicable
thereafter.
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Shareholders’ enquiries

Shareholders should direct their questions about their shareholdings
to the branch share registrar of the Company in Hong Kong.
Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to
the Board in writing at the Company’s principal place of business in
Hong Kong at 12/F., The Octagon, No.6 Sha Tsui Road, Tsuen Wan,
New Territories, Hong Kong, or to the Company by email at
info@nanhaicorp.com. Shareholders may also make enquiries with
the Board at the SGM/AGM.

The details of the rights of shareholders of the Company can be found in
the Company’s website at www.nanhaicorp.com.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company is committed to safeguard shareholders’ interests and
believes that effective communication with shareholders and other
stakeholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and investor
understanding of the business performance and strategies of the Group.

The Board adopted a Shareholders Communication Policy which aims to
set out the provisions with the objective of ensuring that the shareholders
of the Company and potential investors are provided with ready, equal and
timely access to balanced and understandable information about the
Company, in order to enable shareholders of the Company to exercise their
rights in an informed manner, and to allow shareholders of the Company
and potential investors to engage actively with the Company.

The Company endeavours to disclose all material information about the
Group to all interested parties on a timely basis. All such publications
together with additional information of the Group are timely updated on
the Company’s website at www.nanhaicorp.com.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

Pursuant to the special resolutions passed at the Company's annual general
meeting on 25 May 2017, the shareholders of the Company resolved to
amend the Bye-Laws by incorporating the amendments made to the Bye-
Laws for the purpose of allowing the Company to send and supply
corporate communications within the meaning ascribed to it by the Listing
Rules to the shareholders by electronic means pursuant to Rule 2.07A of
the Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed above, there is no significant change in the Company’s
constitutional documents during the year.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for overseeing the Group's risk
management and internal control systems and reviewing their
effectiveness at least annually through the Audit Committee. The Audit
Committee assists the Board in monitoring the risk exposures and the
operating effectiveness of the underlying risk management and internal
control systems.

The Company assists the management in identifying, assessing,
responding, monitoring and reporting corresponding risks through risk
management and internal control structure. The system aims at managing
instead of eliminating the risks of unfulfilled business goals that reasonably
but not absolutely prevents the impact of material risks.

RISK MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE

The Company has established a sound risk management and internal
control structure, adopting a top-down organizational structure from the
Board to the specific internal control units with well-defined duties. The
Group's Internal Audit Department assists the Board and/or the Audit
Committee in the ongoing review of the effectiveness of the Group’'s risk
management and internal control systems. The Board, through these
committees, is at least annually informed of significant risks that may
impact on the Group’s performance.

The Board
Exg

[\ i HE SR A

Audit Committee Board.
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ensure the maintenance of appropriate and effective risk management and internal control
systems in order to safeguard the shareholders” investment and assets of the Group;
formulate a management structure with specific terms of reference; and

determine the nature and extent of significant risk that the Company is willing to take in
achieving the strategic objectives, and formulate the Group's risk management strategies.
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REBCRIRE RAEBEE

oversee the risk management and internal control systems of the Group;

review and discuss with the management annually to ensure that the management has
performed its duty to maintain effective risk management and internal control systems; and
consider major findings on internal control matters and make recommendations to the
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design, implement and monitor the risk management and internal control systems properly
and ensure the systems are executed effectively;

monitor risks and take measures to mitigate risks in day-to-day operations;

give prompt responses to, and follow up the findings on, internal control matters raised by
internal or external auditors; and

provide confirmation to the Board on the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems.
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The Management
(including heads of
business units,
departments
and divisions)
EEE
(BEEBEN -
AR DEEE)

carry out the analysis and independent appraisal of the adequacy, appropriateness and
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems as well as their
execution;

make recommendations for improvement of any deficiencies in the design and execution
of the risk management and internal control systems; and

follow up from time to time the implementation of recommendations made by auditors to
promote the standardization of all works.
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Internal Audit
Department

AR

CONTROL APPROACH AND TOOLS

During the year, the management analyzed the control environment and
the risks identified, and implemented various controls measures.

EERERAR
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approach taken: the management conducts interviews with
relevant staff members, reviews relevant documentation of the
internal control system and evaluates findings of any deficiencies in
the design of the Group's internal control system, provides
recommendations for improvement and assesses the effectiveness
of such recommendations, where appropriate. The scope and
findings of review on the risk management and internal control are
reported to and reviewed by the Audit Committee annually.

management information systems and technologies: such
systems and technologies are employed to keep track of the inputs
and outputs of the Group's operations, such as financial data system
and human resources. They are also employed to track the audit
process in the authorization system, in which permissions and
responsibility of authorisation are clearly identified and adequate
records can be maintained in the system.
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ii.  reports and variance analysis: such reports and analysis of each
segment are conducted on a regular basis such that the
performance of each segment can be easily accessible.

iv.  audit and supervision: during the year, the Group conducts overall
deployment and management of risk management and internal
control according to the “Nan Hai Corporation Limited Internal Audit
System (F/E1ERR B PR A AR EBE&HHI/Z)". By analyzing various
internal control points relating to the business processes, we have a
better picture of the current conditions of internal control, and
unearthed and rectify defects and weaknesses of the internal control
system in order to prevent the potential risks of operation
management, and improve corporate governance and cost-
effectiveness. Each subsidiary of the Group formulates a more
targeted and detailed internal audit system based on its own
circumstances. The internal audit department of each subsidiary
performs follow-up inspection, audits and supervision in accordance
with the internal audit system, and rectifies the lack of internal
control system of the Company, in order to ensure the compliance,
rationality and risk controllability of the main business processes of
the Company.

RISK MANAGEMENT

As an important element of quality corporate governance, the overall risk
management process is overseen by the Board through the Audit
Committee. Rather than a separate and standalone process, risk
management is integrated into the business and decision-making
processes, including strategy formulation, business planning, capital
allocation, investment decisions, internal control and day-to-day
operations.

The management is entrusted with duties to identify, analyze, evaluate,
respond, monitor and communicate risks associated with any activity,
function or process within its terms of reference. It endeavours to evaluate
the level of risk and compare it against the predetermined levels of risk
acceptable to the Company. For risk control and monitoring, it involves
making decisions regarding acceptable risks and the ways to address
unacceptable risks. The management will develop contingency plans for
possible loss scenarios. Incidents and other situations incurring actual or
potential loss will be investigated and properly documented as part of the
effort to manage risks.
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RISK EXPOSURES

The following illustrates the major risks of the Group. Since the last annual
review, there was no significant change in the nature and extent of risks
during the year.

Risk of China’s policies on real estate — the property development business
of the Company is operated in China. In 2017, the PRC government further
established a long-term mechanism for the steady development of the real
estate market, and strengthened local regulation to lead expectations
actively. However, these policies are persistent and stable, and will not
induce excessive volatility in the market. The management of the Company
will monitor closely the development of the relevant policies and industry
development trend to mitigate the risk.

Quality risk on property projects — quality of property projects not only
affects the profitability of property developers, but also exerts a
considerable impact on their corporate image and culture, and in turn their
core competitiveness. The Company established a sound project control
mechanism in relation to organizational structure, function division,
recruitment and project management by clearly defining job flows,
standards and reward and punishment system to enhance the
implementation of other systems. Hence, the quality of the projects is
guaranteed and improved.

Risks associated with single revenue structure of cinemas — subject to the
nature of industry, box office receipts represent a large part of revenue
structure of Dadi Cinema, which means that the revenue of cinemas relies
highly on the films. If the performance of the overall movie market or the
quality of movie content is poor, it will aggravate the Company’s financial
performance. To mitigate such risk, Dadi Cinema adopts a strategy to
manage the film sources in a proactive and flexible manner, and also put
more efforts into the introduction of other cultural and entertainment
elements into cinemas to mitigate the risks associated with single revenue
source.

Risks relating to technical upgrading — the Company is a technology-
intensive company and its profitability depends largely on “Internet+”,
cloud computing, big data and other related technologies, which affect
the Company’s competitiveness directly. If the Company could not
upgrade its technology in time or develop new technology to meet market
demand in the future, the Company will be exposed to declining
profitability and loss of customers, which in return will adversely affect the
Company's operation. The Company is exposed to technical upgrade risk.
In view of the above risks, the Company will put more efforts in research
and development and enhance business structure. The Company will also
recruit high-calibre research personnel and optimize the composition of
our research staff, providing technical support for product innovation and
business growth of the Company.
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Exchange risk — the Group is exposed to fluctuation in exchange rates as
the Group's revenue is denominated in Renminbi while Hong Kong dollars
are the reporting currency of the Group. The management will closely
monitor the exchange exposure in order to keep the net exposure at an
acceptable level and will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arises.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Internal Audit Department is assigned with the task to perform regular
reviews on the Group’s internal control systems in respect of operational,
financial and compliance aspects and will report the audit review findings
or irregularities, if any, to the management and advise on the
implementation of steps and actions required to enhance the Group's
internal controls. The result of internal audit reviews and agreed action
plans are reported to the Audit Committee and the Board.

Apart from reviewing the systems, the Audit Committee has also reviewed
and is satisfied with the adequacy of resources, qualifications and
experiences of staff of the Company's accounting and financial reporting
function, and their training programs and budget. The Board acknowledges
that the management has been progressively implementing an adequate
internal control system to ensure the effective functioning of the Group's
operational, financial and compliance areas, including the following key
measures, policies and procedures:

financial reporting management:

proper controls are in place to ensure the maintenance of a
complete, accurate and timely record of accounting and
management information;

regular reports on revenue and ageing analysis of receivables
and internal financial reports giving a balanced and
understandable assessment of the Group’s financial
performance are prepared for the management;

quarterly updates on internal financial statements giving a
balanced and understandable assessment of the Group’s
performance, financial position and prospects in sufficient
details are provided to all Directors; and

annual audit is carried out by external auditor to ensure that
the consolidated financial statements are prepared in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
the Group's accounting policies and the applicable laws and
regulations.
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the mechanism and procedures on disclosure of inside
information to ensure, with the assistance of an internal work team
(if required), that any material information which comes to the
knowledge of any one or more officers should be promptly
identified, assessed and forwarded to the Board (if appropriate);

the policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements which shall be reviewed and monitored
regularly by the Audit Committee designated by the Board;

the Audit Committee designated by the Board to monitor, control
and regularly review continuing connected transactions of the
Company and ensure proper compliance with all relevant laws and
regulations, the Listing Rules and the disclosure requirements; and

a whistle-blowing policy for employees of the Group and those
who deal with the Group (e.g. customers and suppliers) to raise
concerns, in confidence, about possible improprieties in financial
reporting, internal control or other matters. The Group encourages
reporting with real names and implements award policy if the
reported suspicion is proved to be the case. Such arrangement will
be reviewed by the Audit Committee to ensure that proper
arrangement is in place for fair and independent investigation into
the matters.

The Board and the Audit Committee have reviewed the Group's systems
and are not aware of any significant issues that would have an adverse
impact on the effectiveness and adequacy of the systems, accordingly
consider the systems effective and adequate.
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This Report is prepared in accordance with the “Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide” set out in Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules of
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Following the disclosure of
information regarding Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG") for
the first time in 2016, the Group issued its ESG report for the second
consecutive year, covering the policies, measures and performance

regarding environmental, social and governance issues of the Group and
its subsidiaries. During the year, the Group has complied with the “comply
or explain” provisions set out in the “Environmental, Social and Governance
Reporting Guide”.

1.

ESG MANAGEMENT

The Group places emphasis on the harmonious integration of ESG
management and day-to-day operations in order to create a
sustainable development model. In 2017, the Group enhances the
satisfaction of stakeholders, such as government, investors,
customers, employees and partners, by continuous improvement on
its corporate system and communication methods for stakeholders,
to contribute to the sustainable development of society. The Group
reviews the relationship between business development and ESG
topics. Each relevant department is responsible for the collection
and management of ESG-related data and information, as well as the
communication with relevant stakeholders, to improve the
effectiveness of ESG management and the ability to communicate
with stakeholders, contributing to the long-term development of the
Group and its various stakeholders.

1.1 Communication with stakeholders

In order to fully understand the needs and expectations of
stakeholders regarding the Group’s economic, environmental
and social sustainable development, the Group has identified
key stakeholders and established various communication
methods for stakeholders to listen to the voices of
stakeholders, to build up a harmonious and trustworthy
cooperation and win-win relationship with stakeholders, to
sincerely respond to the wishes and requests of stakeholders,
and to assume various social responsibilities.
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Stakeholders Expectations and requirements Methods of communication and responses
MEAERES MRERER BENMEES X
Government — to comply with the laws and regulations — compliance management
BT — EBERER —EHER
— to pay taxes in accordance with the laws — proactive tax payment
— HROEMR — EHAB
— support for economic development — to implement national policies
— XEHREBER — TR RBR
Investors — returns and growth — timely information disclosure on operation
REE — [ElFREE R — ERRELEER
— to enhance profitability — general meetings
— R B FIEE —BRERE
— stable operation — continuous growth
— B —FEER
— information disclosure — to guarantee shareholders' return
— EERE — RERREH
Customers — provision of high-quality products and services — innovative products
BS9S] — Rt mENERTRS — BIFEm
— to meet various needs of customers — to guarantee quality of products
—WREFZTHEK —REEREE
— to create value for customers — provision of diversified services
— REFRIEEE — R Z LIRS
— customer satisfaction survey
—EPmBERE
Employees — to protect employees' interests — remuneration payment in full and on time
8T —HEE TR — REERERIE
— established career path — to pay social insurances
—B2ERBE — BUmALIR
— to protect occupational health — establishment of occupational health
— (RIS ZE (R BR and safety management system
— work-life balance —BRUBEERLZEEEER
— FEITIEERE — career development
—RBEREREE
— staff training
— BT
Partners — open, fair and equal procurement — performance of contracts in accordance
AR — 2R AT RIEERE with the laws
— fulfillment of contracts —EBITAER
—EFEH — open tender
— sharing of experience — AABIEZ
—&BH= — to commence cooperation on projects
—HRERAKE
Environment — energy conservation and emission reduction — management of emission
RN — ERREIRE — EEEERY
— tackling climate change — enhancement of efficiency of resources and
— EHREE energy utilization
— conservation of ecology — R B R R BRI R
— [REELERE — participation in environment protection and
public welfare activities
— 2ERBRRIH
Society and general public — participation in community development — public welfare and charities
HEMAR —2EtRER —DmBEEE
— contribution to public welfare — volunteer services
—XFHRREE — ERERS
— environmental protection — health and culture

— RAERIR —fEXE
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Case: Nan Hai fulfilled its obligation of information disclosure in a timely manner and provided investors with

communication channel

Rf - mEEREEETEERERY  BEURREEBEBERR

The Group disclosed relevant company information to investors in a timely
manner according to the true and reliable principle. Each year, the Group
regularly compiles and publishes annual reports and interim reports,
reporting annual operating performance and financial status to investors
and bond investors. In the process of strengthening communication with
investors and regulating information disclosure, the Group formulated
guidelines for policies and systems to guide its listed subsidiaries to
perform information disclosure obligations in strict accordance with the
requirements of domestic and overseas listing places.

In order to maintain good relationship with investors, the Group
introduced its condition to the investors and answered their questions by
holding annual general meetings, investor field visits, performance
roadshows, telephone conferences, answering relevant inquiries and
reverse roadshows to provide investors with communication channel. In
2017, the Group participated in more than 30 investor conferences held in
Hong Kong, Shenzhen and other places, and met with or had telephone
conferences with more than 50 equity and debt analysts from all over the
world. In November 2017, at the request of reverse roadshows from bond
investors, a number of bond investors were invited to visit “The Peninsula”
in Shenzhen.
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1.2 Materiality analysis

Pursuant to the requirements of the “Environmental, Social
and Governance (ESG) Reporting Guide” of the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange, the Group continuously improved the
procedures specifying contents of report, identified the key
issues concerned by stakeholders through the full
communication with stakeholders, determined their
importance according to substantive principles, so as to
finalise the content and extent of disclosure and to ensure a
more accurate and complete disclosure of related operating
and management information.
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Advice from management of the Group
SEEEEEZ

Analysis and advice from internal and external experts
WINBER DT ZE

Multimedia information analysis

SEBERDN

Case studies conducted by domestic and foreign
industry peers
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"Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG)
Reporting Guide” of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
FEBRZACRE g RERmEES)D
Guidelines on standards of social responsibilities

T @R TREER

Requirements under “Environmental, Social

and Governance (ESG) Reporting Guide” of the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange
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Contribution to sustainable development
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General concerns of stakeholders

MEiAREh TR

To be in line with the strategic

development of the Group
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The importance to the sustainable development of Nan Hai
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STABLE OPERATION

With diversified industry development, reasonable allocation of
resources and optimization of asset structure, the Group strives to
become a sizable and solid enterprise in the fields of culture and
media services, property development and enterprise cloud services,
and to actively expand and develop new businesses. The Group
strictly abides by the laws and regulations, continuously improves its
internal control system, regularly conducts internal audits, and
resolutely eliminates corruption. We attach great importance to the
protection of intellectual property and fully respect the intellectual
property of others. The Group has in-depth understanding towards
customers’ needs, strives to improve service quality and
management level of suppliers. The Group also supports and
encourages suppliers to take the initiative to assume social
responsibility.

The Group’s awards:

CE Dongli won the Best Employer of the Year Award awarded
by Zhaopin (5 B HR )

CE Dongli won the 2016-2017 Success Enterprise of the Year
in IT Market in China (2016-2017 % B ITTH 35 F E Ak T (B 3 £%)
awarded by the Annual IT Market Conference (ITT % F &)

CE Dongli won the “Best Enterprise Digitalized SaaS Product
Award in China” (7 B 5 1 1& 3 {7 SaaS 2 fn #2) awarded
by the China Saa$S Industry Conference Committee (71 B Saa$S
= N RS

Xinnet won the Best Cloud Platform Solution Award (£ &
8 7 #R 7R 75 22 #¥) and Excellent Practice Award for Cloud
Computing (E &t H 855 B B ) at the China International
Telecommunication Exhibition 2017 organized by the State
Ministry of Industry and Information Technology (B1ZX T{5 &)
and the China Council for the Promotion of International Trade

(PEERES)

Dadi Cinema was awarded “2017 China Innovation Cinema
Brand” (2017 4 /R B 4F E &I 37 1 52 Bt oh h&) for "Popular
China Real Estate Award” (77 iﬂléﬂr‘]?ﬁﬁ
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Integrity and compliance in operation

In the process of building excellent reputation, the Group
adheres to the belief of “compliance” and requires all staff to
strictly abide by industry norms, comprehensively improving
the ability to manage enterprises according to the laws. The
Group strictly abides by the Company Law of the People’s
Republic of China ({ # A R £ A B 2 7] J%), the Listing
Rules of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and the
local laws and regulations in the localities of its operation. The
Group has established a complete and effective internal
control system and a top-down, responsibility-specific risk
management and internal control framework covering from
the board of directors to specific internal control positions,
and developed an internal control and supervision mechanism
for corporate level to various business process levels to ensure
that the Group's business management is complied with the
laws and regulations. (for details on the condition and functions
of risk management and internal control system, please refer to
the “Corporate Governance Report” section in the annual report)

The Group has formulated and implemented the Nan Hai
Corporation Limited Internal Audit System (E3/84ZRE AR A
AN EBEFTHIE ) to conduct overall deployment, guidance,
evaluation and management of risk management and internal
control. Each subsidiary of the Group has formulated a more
targeted and detailed internal audit system based on its own
circumstances. The internal audit department of each
subsidiary performs follow-up inspection, audits and
supervision in accordance with the internal audit system, and
rectifies the lack of internal control system, in order to ensure
the compliance, rationality and risk controllability of the main
business processes.
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The Group eliminates bribery, money laundering and
extortion. In order to resist corruption, commercial bribery and
unfair competition in economic activities, to enhance
employees’ awareness of compliance, to strengthen integrity
education and to enhance the sense of anti-corruption, the
Group requires all employees to abide by the Code of Ethics
and Basic Principles ({81247 &3 E2 X AN HI]) in the Staff Code
of Conduct (& T =F All), to sign a commitment letter on
honesty and self-discipline, and to conduct business in
accordance with work process and approval process. The
Group has set up a variety of reporting channels to carry out
in-depth investigations against credible reports, to deal with
verified violations of the laws and regulations seriously, and to
refer the suspected violations to the judiciary. In 2017, the
Group had no corruption lawsuit.

Case: Complaint and reporting channels of Dadi Cinema

P KB IRFRERE

Dadi Cinema has set up an independent complaint mailbox to receive
various complaints, reports and evidence from employees, and persistently
protected the complainant to keep the incentive system working. In 2017,
the Dadi Cinema complaint mailbox received and successfully dealt with
66 complaints, among which 7 cases were investigated by the audit and
supervision department and the results were issued. The remaining 59
cases were referred to the responsible departments, such as regional
division and human resource center, and already investigated and issued
the results.

2.2 Protection of intellectual property

The Group highly emphasizes on the protection of intellectual
property, and at the same time fully respects the intellectual
property of the techniques, software, image and texts of the
others. Each subsidiary of the Group has formulated the
Intellectual Property Management System ( &M 5 2 4 & 32 41
[£) in accordance with the Patent Law of the People’s
Republic of China ( 2 A & & F1 B & F %), which
stipulated the application procedures, applications and
supervision of the trademarks, patents, copyrights and domain
name, and regulated the intellectual property and
management of intangible assets, to prevent the loss,
improper use, unauthorized disclosure and misappropriation
of intellectual property, so as to maintain the competitiveness
of enterprise and to ensure it complied with the laws and
regulations.
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The nature of the various business segments of the Group
varies greatly. There are more issues related to intellectual
property in the fields of culture and media services and
enterprise cloud services. The subsidiaries of the Group as for
culture and media services and enterprise cloud services have
set up dedicated departments to conduct centralized
management of patent businesses, and assigned designated
personnel to coordinate the tasks and to deliver messages in
respect of intangible assets between different departments, so
as to improve work efficiency. The Group encourages
invention and innovation, granting cash awards to inventors
or research and development teams, who have obtained
invention patents, and regarding the possession of patent
certificates as a crucial condition for the internal promotion of
employees. In 2017, the Group applied for 17 patents and was
granted 7 patents.
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Case: Oristar continues to improve its intellectual property protection system to encourage technology innovation
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As an emerging representative company in the field of
culture and media, Oristar has formulated the Intellectual Property
Management System and Procedure (#03% ZE # & 32 %I & & it 12) and
Intellectual Property Application Approval Process (&7 B 18 A s5 B L7
#2) to protect patents, trademarks and copyrights. In 2017, Oristar
continued to conduct related work: applied for 5 patents and being
granted 7 patents; applied for 5 trademarks, being granted 3 registered

trademarks; applied for 4 software copyrights.
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2.3 Enhancement of customer services

With the advancement of business diversification strategy, the
Group's customer base covers various types of companies,
institutions, consumers, readers and proprietors. As the basis
for business operations, the Group regards customers as its
core, continuously enhances and improves its capabilities and
quality, and strengthens communication with customers. Each
subsidiary establishes a communication mechanism and after-
sales service system to timely understand customers’ needs
and to respond to their advices. The Group constantly
improves the service quality and satisfies the customers’ needs
to the maximum extent. The Group protects customers’
information and privacy and prevents the illegal use,
disclosure and sale of customers’ information and privacy. In
2017, the number of complaints from the Group’s customers
was 4,030. The percentage of customer complaints addressed
was over 96%. The customer service satisfaction was over 84%.

As for culture and media services, Oristar has established a
management system with Business Relationship Management
Process Manual (3 7% @ & & 12 & B F ), Service
Management Manual (AR # & 32 F ffit) and Service Desk
Management Specification (AR & & 12 7 &), and set up a
service management system, which comprised of service
structure, organizational structure, process structure, file
structure and technology structure, with an aim to ensure the
smooth implementation of the system through supervision,
review, audit, reporting and improvement, and in turn to
guarantee the safety and quality of services.
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As for property development, the Group is responsible for
property development, operation and management. Our
customers are mainly the owners. The Group regularly
conducts owner survey activities and customer satisfaction
surveys to understand the needs of the owners. In order to
motivate the employees and improve service quality, = &
¥ % A &) has formulated the Working Star Selection
Regulation (AR 7% 2 2 #F & T {E R #2). In each quarter, it
selects the winner of the “Star of Customer Service” (& iR B
TR 2 £ ), “Star of Security Service” (ZRE TRGZ £),
“Star of Engineering Service" (T2 8 T iR 2 &), “Star of
Cleaning/Gardening Service’ (1R 2 B /#{t TRR1E 2 £)
and “Star of Basic Management Service” (ZHEE 12 8 T iR
Z 2).The employees who won the “Star Awards” (fR7% 2 £)
will be given cash awards.

As for enterprise cloud services, the Group continued to
strengthen customer communication and to conduct
satisfaction surveys, responding to various requests from
customers in a timely manner. Sino-i established a professional
customer service center and provided 400 service hotlines to
ensure the customer complaint and feedback channels
smooth. CE Dongli also established a comprehensive
customer satisfaction survey mechanism, in which telephone
interviews will be conducted to understand the customers’
satisfaction towards our products and services, and the
performance of customer service personnel will be evaluated
to ensure the provision of quality services to customers.

As for Internet lifestyle platform, HKO1, as a media-driven IT
enterprise, aims to build a localized Internet lifestyle platform
in Hong Kong and attract traffic with media content. HKO1
reformed its organizational structure in response to the
transformation of the Internet in 2017, and further investment
has been made in products and technology systems to
improve the development of products that meet the needs of
users. In 2017, the number of monthly active users of the
website and the mobile app of HKO1 achieved rapid growth.
HKO1 also provided subscription hotlines, 24-hour enquiry
hotline and email for inquiries. Any criticisms and admiration
of readers are taken seriously and responses are made as soon
as possible.
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Case: Dadi Cinema innovates and diversifies its service model to meet customers’ individual needs

A - KT BRAFSHECRBES - REFFERLETER

Dadi Cinema provides diversified services to the audience by taking into
account their comfortability. In 2015, Dadi Cinema proposed the “Movie +"
strategy for the first time to enhance the viewing experience. In June 2017,
Dadi Cinema teamed up with X T & It {8 £ [ to offer a month-long
special exhibition of Transformers valuable exhibits for the “frenzied fans” in

Beijing and Tianjin. The audience is therefore enabled to recall their
memories with Transformers while watching movies.
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2.4 Strengthen the supplier management

While performing its social responsibility, the Group attaches
great importance to the social responsibility of its suppliers.
The Group is committed to establishing long-term mutual
trust and close partnership with suppliers. The Group provided
assistance to its suppliers on the improvement of product and
service quality by timely communication and information
exchange with suppliers, field visits and supervision of
suppliers’ service processes, so as to create value and facilitate
the win-win cooperation with suppliers.

The Group regulates tendering, procurement and supplier
management to ensure the fairness and impartiality of
procurement, and provides suppliers with a platform for long-
term cooperation. Each subsidiary of the Group has formulated
relevant systems, such as the Tendering and Procurement
Management System (1 12 £ & & 12 %l J£) and Supplier
Management System (it F& & & 32 | /£ ) based on their
operating conditions to manage suppliers. The nature of the
Group's businesses in various areas varies greatly, so there is a
big difference between the suppliers involved. For example, as
for culture and media services, the types of suppliers for
centralized procurement involve projectors, servers, screens
and beverages. The types of suppliers for centralized
procurement in the property development field involve
construction engineering, equipment installation and
decoration design services. The types of suppliers for
centralized procurement in the enterprise cloud service field
involve servers, network equipment, spare parts and
computers. Each subsidiary of the Group establishes a
directory of its own suppliers for centralized procurement,
evaluates suppliers based on certain factors, such as supplier
qualifications, product quality, timeliness of delivery and after-
sales services, and provides evaluation results to suppliers. The
Group and suppliers jointly figure out the causes of the
problems and take corresponding measures to encourage
suppliers to continuously improve the performance.
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The number of suppliers for centralized procurement of the Group in 2017

2017 FXAEEETRBEHERYE

Culture and media services AL EHERE AR TS
Property development B AR
Enterprise cloud services PEERB

Number of suppliers
in oversea,

Number of suppliers  Hong Kong, Macau

in Mainland China EL G RENTE]

B AR BARBRE

HEFBHE HEBHE
(R) (R)

124 15
873 6
25 1



102

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Nan Hai Corporation Limited F/EHEA AR A

RE - HgkeEams

NURTURING TALENTS

The Group takes employees as the core, protects employees’ rights
and interests, and formulates a differentiated management system
for different groups of talents. The employees in key positions are
encouraged to have multi-position, cross-functional and cross-
industry experiences for the purposes of promotion and incentive.
The Group also organizes various cultural and sports activities in daily
life to create a harmonious and relaxing working atmosphere for
employees.

Number of employees by gender

(Unit: person)
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3.1 Protecting the lawful rights and interests of

employees

The Group strictly complies with the laws and regulations,
such as the Labor Law of the People’s Republic of China
(P EE AR MBI & B) %) and Labor Contract Law of the
People's Republic of China (2 A R B & 8 & [F%).
Recruitment adheres to the principle of openness, equality
and anti-discrimination to effectively protect the rights and
interests of employees. The Group prohibits the employment
of child labor and forced labor. The Group has signed labor
contracts with all employees on the principle of equality,
voluntariness and consensus, and provided social insurance
and housing provident funds for employees. As of 31
December 2017, the Group had 20,813 employees, of which
female employees accounted for 52.19%.

Each subsidiary of the Group has formulated the Human
Resource Planning and Recruitment Management Regulation
(AN E R R 8B R EEE 1 48 5F), which provides the
requirements on remuneration, recruitment and promotion,
working hours, rest period, equal opportunities, diversification,
anti-discrimination, etc., and regulates the process of human
resource planning, recruitment and employment. Each
subsidiary of the Group also carries out a series of measures to
provide employees with fair and impartial job opportunities
and competitive compensation and benefits. As for property
development, in order to avoid the recruitment of child labor,
F 2 FB requires employees to provide identity cards when
they join the company to ensure that employees reach the
legal age for employment. As for culture and media services,
Dadi Cinema implements a relative avoidance system.
Recruiting employees who have kinship with the company’s
employees must report to the company on their own initiative.
If the position of recruited employees reached a certain level,
the approval of the relevant department heads must be
obtained, thereby creating an environment for fair
competition. As for enterprise cloud services, CE Dongli has
formulated the Remuneration and Benefits Management
System (37 B %28 T & 12 §l &) to provide employees with
benefits, such as different subsidies, supplementary medical
claims and accident insurance, as well as birthday and holiday
care.

3.1
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The Group has been listening to the feedback of our
employees and optimizing the channel for employee to
appeal and commute so as to encourage employee reflect
their difficulties encounter at work. If the matter of transfer of
employees to one of the official staff, change in remuneration
or positions, work appraisal, career development planning and
resignation (removal) of employees arises, leaders of
departments and human resource development will conduct
interview, on selective basis, with the concerned employees in
accordance with the practical situation so as to understand
their view and concerns. Employees can raise their questions,
opinions and suggestions on the company through
telephone, interviews and written forms. The Group will reply
within a certain period of time and keep the identity of the
employee confidential. When an employee believes that
personal interests have been arbitrarily violated or has
different opinions on the company’s management measures,
he/she may report to the company. The responsible personnel
will conduct an investigation after receiving an employee’s
complaint and make the handling decision as soon as
possible. The handling decision will be notified to the
complainant and the head of human resources department in
writing or by e-mail. If employees are dissatisfied with the
handling decision, he/she can insist to appeal to a higher level
manager. The Group conducts employee satisfaction surveys
from time to time, to consult employees on different aspects,
such as the business and management, so as to understand
employees’ overall satisfaction towards the working
environment.
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3.2 Promoting employees’ career development

The Group focuses on the common growth of enterprise value
and employee value. With the concept of “Respecting the
Employees, Developing the Employees, Accomplishing the
Employees”, the Group gives the employees the opportunities
to learn, work and challenge ego, creating interests
community, undertaking community and fate community
between the organization and the employees.

In order to enhance the knowledge and skill of employees, the
Group has improved its staff management system on trainings.
Each subsidiary has established Management System on
Trainings (FFIEIEHIZ) to standardize the process of
training and management. The Group not only organizes
trainings of various forms and contents, but also encourages
them to make use of their own professional knowledge to
train other colleagues. The Group organizes on-the-job
training to all new employees in order to make them familiar
with the company and its projects, as well as the corporate
culture, to make them comply with relevant rules and
regulations, and to master the company’s business processes
and working methods. Thus, employees can rapidly enter the
working condition once taking up posts. The Group also aims
at regular training for all employees. The forms of training
include online videos, internal lecturers, external lecturers,
external visits, and academic exchanges and training and etc.
The content includes employee mentality, service etiquette,
management philosophy, management system, and overall
quality and etc. The Group expects to deepen employees’
understanding of the company’s management and system
through conducting targeted, effective and forward-looking
trainings so as to improve employees’ integrated vocational
quality.
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In order to satisfy the demand of talents for business
development, each subsidiary of the Group has established
Management System on Promotion (BEF&EE4IE) to
provide employees with diversified promotion platforms. In
line with the principle of valuing moral integrity and
performance, the Group comprehensively inspects employees’
integrated quality and capabilities, as well as their
achievements in their work. The employee promotion process
shall be completed in accordance with the process of
nomination, qualification examination, promotion evaluation,
promotion approval and appointment announcement. If
employees make outstanding contributions for the company,
they can leapfrog and be promoted.

During the reporting period, the number of trainees was
18,239, covering 87.63% of the total number of the Group. The
percentage of male trainees was 87.67% while the percentage
of female trainees was 87.60%. The employees’ per capita
training hours are 67.42.
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Case: Nan Hai Development held reading and sharing workshops

P EBRREERRIRIZE

Since March 2017, Nan Hai Development has commenced departmental
internal reading and sharing workshops. Employees were able to
understand the essence of the books in a short period of time through text
or audio and live broadcast. The books include “A Stitch in Time Saves
Nine" (fE 3t BB FEMHCE B 28), “Crucial Conversations” (B8 %1 :5), “Sharing
Economy” (FZF4E), "The Impact of Shantytown Renovations and
Tenants Enjoy the Same Right as Home Buyers” (#i2 + 70 & R4 75 K 59
222 and "Contract Review Experience Sharing’ (BRI BB &% D F),
etc., Also, by way of inviting internal experts to give lectures and
encouraging employees to share their personal experience, employees’
horizon is broadened and their understanding of business knowledge is
deepened.
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Case: CE Dongli commencing “Housekeeping Department” Training

=6 : pEEHRRERIIEI

In August 2017, CE Dongli conducted “House Keeping Department”
Training for three days. "Housekeeping Department” of CE Dongli is a
professional service team established by the company for its customers. CE
Dongli communicates with the "housekeepers” comprehensive knowledge
on how to establish trust with customers, optimize service quality as well
as follow up with and seek potential customers and etc. through
experience sharing, case studies, work reports and summaries and etc,, to
enhance the business capabilities of “housekeepers” participated in the
training, and meanwhile their professionalism and personal skills.

3.3 Caring employees’ physical health and mental
health

Due to the business diversity, the Group has a wide range of
health and safety management content. Each subsidiary has
targeted management of employees’ health and safety risks
based on the nature of its operations. As for property
development, Nan Hai Development has tightened site safety
management and control, formulated safety management
rules and implemented safety assessment system to ensure
that employees’ occupational health and safety risks are
managed and controlled. The Group requires its staff to strictly
implement regulations for production safety and operation
procedures, to acquire necessary first aid knowledge and to
receive necessary production safety education and training.
The Group also distributes safety helmets, work clothes, shoes
and etc. to engineering staff, regularly organize fire drills to
prevent occupational diseases and accidents. As compared
with the employees in property development segment, the
employees in culture and media and enterprise cloud services
segments mainly work indoors and have lower occupational
health risks. The Group has set air purification systems in the
office area to improve air quality in response to office work
health needs. The Group also organizes health checkups for
employees, implements medical insurance, holds health talks,
provides various health protection such as social insurance
and supplementary medical insurance to care for employees’
physical and mental health as well as to promote healthy
lifestyles.

In addition, the Group has commenced vivid cultural activities
such as photography competitions, outings, sports
competitions, Spring Festival annual dinners, staff birthday
parties, mother’s day celebration and etc., to relax our
employees, relieve their work stress and help them achieve
work-life balance.

During the reporting period, no work-related deaths occurred.
Work days were lost for 112 days due to work injuries.
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Case: Nan Hai Development held staff development training to improve team cooperation ability

=6 BERRBNRETARIIR  EFAERIGEED

In 2017, Nan Hai Development organized trekking activity “Nature Power
Training CampRoute of Xuanzang” (KX B A E) Il & — 22 7 §K%).
About 30 employees set off from Dunhuang, walked nearly 70 kilometers
along the westbound route of Xuanzang and successfully reached the
destination. Employees participated in the event enhanced their mutual
relationship, expanded their personal networks, and improved teamwork
and cohesion through this activity.

017FMBERMBMETIZLE[ XKERB NI
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Case: Dadi Cinema organizing birthday parties for employees to enhance team cohesiveness

Rpl: KERASETRREAEES  HARAEBRREN

Dadi Cinema organizes a collective birthday party every month. Each
month, the activities held and the gifts distributed are innovative. This
helps employees relax their body and mind despite stressful work, enhance
their relationship, and improve team cohesiveness. In 2017, Dadi Media has
organized a number of collective birthday parties for employees, and
thousands of employees have participated in activities such as games,
recreational activities, and customized gift distribution.
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Case: CE Dongli organized trekking team building programme

B B HABESERTED

In April 2017, CE Dongli organized trekking team building programme for
headquarter and districts employees to go to the Great Wall. This fostered
the mutual understanding between colleagues through group games,
completion of collaborative tasks to enhance team awareness, laying
proper foundation for future work.

20174F 4 A » A {8 ) 48 A% 48 50 % 1 15 [R] B kb K
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4. PRACTICING ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group actively mitigates to climate change, promotes green
operation, adopts various effective measures to lower energy and
resource consumption, realises energy conservation and emission
reduction, and protects the ecology.

4.1 Actively promoting the development of green
buildings

Property development is one of the Group’s core business
sectors. The Group's subsidiaries of property segment actively
explore the green building sector, design and develop green
building products, and share green building experiences with
peer corporates.
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Case: Nan Hai Development designed and developed “Free Man Garden” eco-community project

P mBRRRIFEBEAARE | £ENE

In 2017, Nan Hai Development designed and developed Phase 7 of “Free
Man Garden” with the aim of achieving low-carbon greening as well as
energy conservation and environmental protection. The greatest feature of
the project is to follow the nature of biological organization in the form of
organic integration of space through multi-level network design, maximize
the rational use of space, meet the multiple needs of occupants such as
living, work, leisure, learning and etc., while reducing resource use. The
project also reduces rainwater discharge by conserving water sources
through green plants, realising the ecological cycle of water.
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Case: Nan Hai Development promoting the development of green building industry

RO BERREDROBETERR

In July 2017, Nan Hai Development took the lead in establishing
Stereoscopic Greening Committee of Shenzhen Green-Building Association
(AU T RER S LB EZE)and participated in the
stereoscopic greening sub-forum of XIX International Botanical Congress
(BT HLEHFRENSE KRG LB 5 IE) At the congress, the
Company shared its perception during the process of realising stereoscopic
greening and green buildings. Nan Hai Development and more than a
dozen of the committee members jointly issued an industry proposal
“Developing Stereoscopic Greening and Building Green Residence” (2% &
B ZERE © AE)to promote the development of green
buildings. In September 2017, Nan Hai Development joined hands with
approximately 30 people of peer corporates of Shenzhen to participate in
Singapore International Green Building Conference (IGBC) (3713 BIPR 4%
BESEKE). IGBC is Asia’s top green building industrial conference. The
conference attracted over 1,200 industry professionals from more than 50
countries.
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4.2 Improving efficiency of energy and resource

utilization

The Group complies with national laws and regulations and
continuously strengthens the management over the use of
energy such as electricity, gas and natural gas, as well as the
use of resources, such as water, office paper and etc. Each
subsidiary of the Group formulates energy saving and
emission reduction related policies and systems based on
their own business characteristics, standardizes the
management of energy and resources, and takes various
measures to enhance the efficiency of energy and resources
utilization and to reduce greenhouse gas emission. In 2017,
the Group's comprehensive energy consumption was 23,839
tons of standard coal; the comprehensive energy
consumption density was 1.15 tons of standard coal per
person; the greenhouse gas emission was 130,836 tons of
CO.e; and the greenhouse gas emission density was 6.29 tons
of CO,e per person.

As for property development, Nan Hai Development has
established various energy and resource management
systems and processes which strictly control the consumption
of electricity, water, gasoline and materials, and thus eliminate
waste. Nan Hai Development adopts OA system for daily office
use, reducing paper use, promoting video conferencing,
reducing unnecessary travel, using energy-saving air-
conditioners in offices, replacing energy-saving lighting,
turning off lighting during non-office hours so as to reduce
energy consumption.

As for culture and media services, Dadi Distribution advocates
paperless office. Tasks involving personnel such as attendance,
leaves, overtime, working outside office and etc. are processed
through mobile apps; financial related work such as travel,
payments, loans, reimbursement and etc. are processed
through OA. Based on the headquarter-resident office style,
conference calls are used at all staff meetings to reduce
unnecessary travel. In daily work, printers print in black and
white by default and double-sided printing is promoted.
Headquarter staff are equipped with shuttles, meanwhile, staff
are encouraged to use public transport to and from work by
providing transportation subsidies.
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As for enterprise cloud services, Sino-i actively promotes green
office, using reclaimed water to reduce the use of fresh water,
encouraging employees to use public transportation to travel
so that unnecessary travel can be reduced, and promotes
water and electricity conservation. Sino-i Campus has
accumulated power savings of about 980,000 kWh in 2017 by
increasing the frequency conversion function of air-
conditioning systems, using body-sensing lights, and using
LED energy-saving lamps.
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The Group's energy and resource consumption in 2017

2017 EAREBERERMETREEE

Indicator

BE

Electricity kilowatt hour
ES FRE
Municipal water tonnes
mBAK U

Municipal water consumption intensity tonnes/HK$10,000
MRAKETE Wa,EET
Reclaimed water tonnes

Ak U7

Gasoline liter

pai:i 7t

Natural gas cubic meters
RAR TR
Outsourcing heat tonnes
SNEBEL N 7]

Consumption
HEE
188,860,338
867,932

0.55

23,569

138,857

2,353

3,708

Dadi Cinema’s packaging material purchase volume in 2017*

2017 £ K

Indicator

BE

Food packaging box!

RmBEER

Drink cup?

BRI

Drink cup lid?

SRR E

Packing Bag*

TR
1 Food packaging boxes include popcorn boxes. 1
2 Drink cups include coke cups, hot drinks cups, clear plastic cups, etc. 2
3 Drink cup lids include clear plastic lids with a straw slot, hot drink lids, clear plastic lids 3

with stoppers, etc.

4 Packing bags include packing bags for double grid packages (18 E&).
As the Group does not produce any products, the indicator of total packing material
used for finished products and its intensity (i.e. per unit produced) is not applicable.

THREEMBREBEE

*

Purchase volume
(piece)

REE (@)

120,105

161,889

149,771

26,745

RMBEZNELR -
REHTBIE AT - BAF - BAMNE -
BHTEBEELERE B8N E  SHEERES -

TERNERERTE& -

MRARE TS REREE - WEKRAA RN
HweLERE (AEEESMK)EELTEM -
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Case: Energy and Resource Saving Measures in Nan Hai Development

P - mERREERERE

Nan Hai Development has formulated water conservation procedures,
power consumption management rules and material management rules
to strictly control over the consumption of electricity and water as well as
material management, and to rationalize work processes. In 2017, Nan Hai
Development re-organized its official vehicle management system to
strengthen the management of official vehicles, to control the refueling of
vehicles with fuel cards, and to promote energy conservation and emission
reduction. Nan Hai Development has installed air-conditioning system and
lighting control system with sensors, depending on the time, the degree of
light and darkness and conditions to adjust the brightness or to switch on/
off the light, for the purpose of saving energy in daily operation.

4.3 Disposal of solid wastes and emissions
legitimately

The Group disposes its solid wastes and emissions properly
and legitimately according to the national laws and
regulations. For the wastes of used furniture, equipment,
computers, waste paper products, etc,, the Group collects and
sorts the wastes, sells the valuable wastes, and periodically
passes the remaining solid wastes to an external company for
centralized disposal. For hazardous wastes, such as used toner
cartridges and used light tubes, the Group collects the waste
in a timely manner, and passes them to an external qualified
company for centralized disposal. The Group will not generate
industrial sewage. The domestic sewage generated is
completely connected to the urban municipal sewage
pipeline network, and treated and discharged by urban
sewage treatment plants according to the required standards.
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Waste generation of the Group in 2017

4,995

573

868

017 FAEEBERVELE
Indicator
BE
Obsolete assets pieces
BEEE 1
Used toner cartridges pieces
REE S i
Used light tubes pieces
BREEE Ui
Waste paper products tonnes

BEERRSR 7

42
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PUBLIC WELFARE

The Group actively participates in public welfare activities. Each
subsidiary carries out various charitable activities based on its own
business characteristics. The Group has actively contributed to the
community and the society by charitable donation, volunteer
services and promotion of community culture. CE Dongli, the
Group's subsidiary, has consistently adhered to the “Management
measures on donation of micro public welfare activities of CE Dongli”
(P AE — BOBKEEME) to manage the donations
from employees and within the Company. During the reporting period,
the Group made charitable donation amounting to approximately
HK$180,000.

Case: Dadi Cinema held charitable film-watching activities

ESE

R A BB R D

In October 2017, when the film “ = J\ & # " with the theme of targeted
poverty alleviation was released, Dadi Cinema carried out free charitable
film-watching activities across the country to deliver the national spirit of
self-improvement, solidarity and uniting to the public, and to provide
comprehensive support for domestic main-melody film production. 217
cinemas have participated in the event, totaling 3,759 screenings. It
attracted 23,431 audiences to watch the film, including government
organizations, trade unions, enterprises, non-governmental organizations,
university students and welfare agencies throughout the country.

5. ERfDm

AEFRBBLEATEE  SWEBRFIRE
BEEEEE BHEEEZVYMNRREH -
BBATBE - TEERY - (LESUCEE
ZREA - BRERLE - FEtE - A5FH
WEBARF B NS FRAKREFEE(P
AT — BLERERFHEIEA
RIS BRI ITEE - AAREHA
AEB N IBEEL) A 180,000 T ©

2017108 R RERMBRIBERB BEMK
AT/ VR L2 E2BAE T 288
FAmEE  MARBEESRTE BE&EEHH
R 2ARAREIREYASEREY D -
SEENHEAM KRBT E T 217 Kb 88 7 I K&
&) - HEHER 3750458 - 3| T 2B & M &9 BT
M- Te 0% ERAE- - K24 B
5503431 NIREE o



“ZE—+HFEFHR AnnualReport 2017 115

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RE g kEams

Case: HKO1 engages in building a harmonious community

20 BRI HEENELE

In November 2017, HKO1 became a digital media partner of the event “Get
Redressed x Miele Clothing Drive 2017 (Get Redressed x Miele JiE 45 B i
% ¥[8 U 2017). It placed recycling bins at the restaurant “01 Space” in
Wan Chai and the office in the Octagon to encourage the public and
employees to donate unwanted secondhand clothing.

On the eve of the Dragon Boat Festival in 2017, HKO1 and the Junior
Chamber International Harbour (878 & & &) visited a nursing home in
the Tsuen Wan District. During which, they hold a charity event of sending
rice dumplings for the Dragon Boat Festival and played interactive games,
showing their care for the elderly in the community.
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Case: CE Dongli makes children’s wishes come true

RO hBHEE N ARKERE

On 26 July 2017, in response to the call from the company’s micro-charity
activities, CE Dongli's employees participated in the event “Warm heart
station” (B8 /0 5¥ Uh) organized by the community service center in
Shantou( ¥ BE#T [@ 4R & BR7GH 1)), to make the wishes of the children in
community come true.

The company's employees have donated books to the children, played
games and drew a wish tree together and sent little gifts to them, which
made the children deeply feel the care from the society.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BN A% BRRD

|IBDO

EEE ¢ +852 2218 8288
{5E : +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

To The Shareholders of Nan Hai Corporation Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Nan Hai
Corporation Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (herein referred
to as the “Group”) set out on pages 124 to 290, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2017, and
the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December
2017, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's “Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Impairment assessment of goodwill and other assets
attributable to the cash generating units (“CGUs")

(Refer to note 21 to the consolidated financial statements and the Group's
critical accounting estimates and assumptions set out in note 4.1)

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had goodwill of HK$5,200,337,000
which is allocated to the CGUs of cinema business, innovative business,
enterprise cloud services and property development segments for annual
impairment testing.

The Company’s directors have concluded that there was an impairment
loss on goodwill amounted to HK$79,612,000 for the CGUs of innovative
business segment. This conclusion was based on the impairment testing
carried out by the management for these CGUs in accordance with the
Group's accounting policy 2.23 which is set out in detail in note 21 to the
consolidated financial statements, which involved significant judgement
and assumptions with respect to the determination of the pre-tax discount
rates and the estimation of the underlying future cash flows.

We identified the impairment testing of goodwill and other assets of the
relevant CGUs as a key audit matter because of its significance to the
consolidated financial statements and because the impairment testing
involved significant management judgement and estimates as explained
above.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Our response

Our procedures in relation to management’s impairment assessment
above included:

—  Evaluating the models used by management in the value in use
calculations for impairment testing;

—  Assessing the reasonableness of discount rates and growth rates
applied to the impairment testing;

—  Challenging the reasonableness of other key assumptions based on
our knowledge of the business and industry;

—  Checking input data to supporting evidence, such as approved
budget and considering the reasonableness of the budget;

—  Checking the value in use calculations mathematically;

—  Comparing the actual performance in 2017 with the forecast in 2016;
and

—  Performing sensitivity analysis including assessing the effect of a
change in the key assumptions to the recoverable amounts of the
CGUs.

Identification of assets and liabilities for newly acquired
business

(Refer to note 42(a)(i), 42(a)(ii) to the consolidated financial statements and the
Group's accounting policy set out in note 2.2)

In July 2017, the Group completed the acquisitions of City Entertainment
Corporation Limited and @ F I XL IR EBREF A A, which the
purchase price allocation (“PPA") involved significant judgement and
assumptions.

Management has engaged independent valuer to assist management to
determine the fair value of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed at the completion dates. Fair value and corresponding deferred
tax adjustments were made based on the PPA exercise, and goodwill has
been recognised for the difference being the fair value of the purchase
considerations in excess of the fair value of identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed in each case.

We consider this as a key audit matter because of its significance to the
consolidated financial statements and because the fair value determination
of certain items in the PPA involved significant management judgement
and estimates.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Our response

Our procedures in relation to the management’s PPA above included:

—  Testing the mathematical accuracy of the calculations which we
considered necessary;

—  Checking the purchase consideration amounts against relevant
supporting information;

—  Considering and evaluating the reasonableness of the identification
of assets acquired and liabilities assumed;

—  Evaluating the PPA and fair value determination of the assets
acquired and liabilities assumed by reference to independent
valuer’s reports obtained by the management; and

—  Assessing the reasonableness of assumptions and inputs adopted in
the fair value determination.

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit,
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BN Az BIED R

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group'’s financial
reporting process The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging
their responsibility in this regard.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Act 1981, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BN Az BIED R

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits
of such communication.

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Chiu Wing Cheung Ringo
Practising Certificate Number P04434

Hong Kong, 28 March 2018
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Consolidated Income Statement

fra R

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z 2017412 A31 B IEFE

2017 2016
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B TExT FETT
(Re-presented)
(&F=5)
Revenue Wz 5(a) 15,900,885 9,050,870
Cost of sales and services provided SHE RIRMH RS 2 B 8 (5,763,012) (3,551,224)
Gross profit E A 10,137,873 5,499,646
Other operating income H &g A 5(b) 586,911 369,293
(Loss)/Gain on deemed disposal of BIEHE —MEBtE AR 2
an associate (|i8) has (162) 595,270
Selling and marketing expenses HERMSEHEERY (3,021,316) (2,054,090)
Administrative expenses THHRZ (1,083,184) (771,054)
Other operating expenses Hthe g% (1,622,025) (763,753)
Finance costs BLE KA 7 (823,731) (516,714)
Fair value change on financial liability BEARBENERERRE Y
at fair value through profit or loss SRMBEARBEES 32 26,809 48,374
Share of results of associates e NG T 12,913 (36,426)
Share of result of a joint venture FElE—HEahEHE 18 165 (116)
Gain on fair value change on HWEYH AR BEED 2 W
investment properties 14 2,137 30,127
Profit before income tax T8 AIEF 8 4,216,390 2,400,557
Income tax expense Frisfif = 9 (2,613,955) (1,122,165)
Profit for the year FRER 1,602,435 1,278,392
Profit/(Loss) for the year attributable to: LA~ A 4G FEREF,(E58) :
Owners of the Company ZAN/NGIEZ 2= DN 1,708,027 1,359,553
Non-controlling interests SEPERR (105,592) (81,161)
1,602,435 1,278,392
HK cent HK cent
A B
Earnings per share for profit FAXRDTRHEE AEMLRER 2
attributable to the owners of BREF
the Company during the year 11
— Basic — EK 2.49 1.98
— Diluted — 2.49 198
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ConsoHdated Statement of Comprehensive Income

e SRS HRE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &/ ZE 2017412 A31 B IEFE
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2017 2016
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FERT FAT
Profit for the year FREF 1,602,435 1,278,392
Other comprehensive income, Htt 2wz BEEHIEAE
including reclassification adjustments
Items that may be reclassified HEREEN D EE B iR IAE ¢
subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange gain/(loss) on translation of MEBINETSEI R 2
financial statements of foreign operations fE 5 Uk es (518) 511,812 (186,582)
Exchange gain/(loss) on translation of MBI E R R I Bk 2
financial statements of foreign associates fE 5 Uk es (518) 6,266 (6,618)
Exchange gain on translation of financial BE RSN ELETBRK 2
statements of a foreign joint venture b 5 W as 187 =
Exchange differences reclassified on deemed RIEME—MBE R RREN I HEZ
disposal of an associate, net of tax b H =58 (FBRTHIE) 359 (14,808)
Other comprehensive income for the year, FREMZEKE  SEEHIE
including reclassification adjustments TR 518,624 (208,008)
Total comprehensive income for the year FREEKZELE 2,121,059 1,070,384
Total comprehensive income attributable to: LT A T2 E 44 ¢
Owners of the Company VN/NEIE 2N 2,228,829 1,156,244
Non-controlling interests FEIE IR 2 (107,770) (85,860)
2,121,059 1,070,384
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

NN B

As at 31 December 2017 #2017 12 A 31 H

2017 2016
Notes HK$’000 HKS'000
B aE F#&T FAT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEERERE
Non-current assets FEREBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - R M ERE 13 5,863,807 4,076,090
Investment properties TEYE 14 112,448 230,394
Prepaid land lease payments under KEAE N BN L HER
operating leases 15 24,606 23,429
Interests in associates N AN ol 17 145,593 79,963
Interest in a joint venture R—HE &R ER 18 5,413 -
Amount due from a related party JEUN —Z R 28 49 254,324 950
Available-for-sale financial assets At EZeRmEE 135,915 324
Held-to-maturity investment A ZEIHKRE - 111,707
Long term trade receivables REFFEWE 5 5108 24 2,370 3,303
Deposits, prepayments and & BARIER
other receivables H A e U RIAE 20 901,850 438,892
Intangible assets mEE 21 6,438,083 3,024,760
Deferred tax assets EETIRE = 35 596,985 161,448
Pledged and restricted bank deposits B & SRR B SR 1T 25 3,591,605 3,489,355
18,072,999 11,640,615
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 22 15,319,232 13,122,375
Held-to-maturity investment BRI E 120,106 -
Financial assets at fair value through BAREBEREREREEZ
profit or loss CREE 23 199,474 24,597
Trade receivables FEWE 5 518 24 677,298 321,488
Deposits, prepayments and %  BNRIER
other receivables o fEURIR 20 2,992,945 2,743,457
Amounts due from associates JiE Wi Bt & X B FR0B 28(b) 11,238 6,485
Amount due from a joint venture JE—M & &R 28(c) 2,491 =
Amounts due from related parties FEUR FAE TS 5RIE 49 4,064 192,190
Pledged and restricted bank deposits B R Z B HIRITFR 25 5,080,474 3,509,457
Cash and cash equivalents RekERRSIEE 25 4,397,710 1,172,620
28,805,032 21,092,669
Non-current assets held-for-sale BELEZIERBEE 19 15,018 13,767
28,820,050 21,106,436
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2017 2016
Notes HK$’000 HKS$'000
B aE F#ExT FAET
Current liabilities REAEE
Trade payables JEHE 5308 26 2,137,185 1,454,678
Other payables and accruals H b A~ 3 IE&JE Jr;%?}ﬂ 27 1,439,633 212,914
Receipt in advance and deferred revenue ?EJ%Z RIE N R T W s 6,851,766 6,793,907
Provision for tax TRIEEE 3,823,364 1,410,014
Amount due to a director R—ZEEFHIHE 28(a) 9,878 30,108
Amounts due to associates REEE N R RIR 28(b) 5,492 5,505
Amounts due to related parties R B 5 A 49 135,669 99,138
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE 29 9,653,920 4,784,912
Finance lease liabilities MEHREEE 30 59,189 33,330
Convertible and exchangeable bonds AJARS K Al R fE A 31 1,172,381 1,010,036
Financial liability at fair value through BRARBERERKREEZ
profit or loss TRIBE 32 86,908 113,717
25,375,385 16,948,259
Net current assets REEEZFE 3,444,665 4,158,177
Total assets less current liabilities EEHAERRBARE 21,517,664 15,798,792
Non-current liabilities FREBEME
Long term trade payables REAFERTE 578 26 7,757 42,482
Other employee benefits H g BEF 33 2,064 -
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE 29 13,242,534 9,596,954
Finance lease liabilities MEHEARE 30 27,984 42,171
Provision for warranty RIS B 34 3,917 4,296
Deferred tax liabilities ELEFIBEE 35 1,038,158 906,890
14,322,414 10,592,793
Net assets EEBE 7,195,250 5,205,999
EQUITY Ez
Share capital A&z 36 686,455 686,455
Reserves B 38 5,456,775 3,365,311
Equity attributable to RAGEE AEEER
the Company’s owners 6,143,230 4,051,766
Non-controlling interests IR S 40 1,052,020 1,154,233
Total equity ERBE 7,195,250 5,205,999
On behalf of the Board REREES
Yu Pun Hoi Liu Rong
FmE 25
Director Director
= EFE
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ConsoHdated Statement of Cash Flows

FeRTMERK

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z= 201

7FE12 A3 BHIEFE

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before income tax

Adjustments for:

Interest income

Finance costs

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Amortisation of intangible assets
other than goodwill

Write-off of property, plant and equipment

Write-off of intangible assets other than
goodwill

Loss/(Gain) on deemed disposal of an associate

Operating lease charges on prepaid land leases

Bad debt written-off and provision for
impairment of receivables

Provision for impairment of inventories

Write-back of provision for impairment of
other receivables

Provision for impairment of interest in
an associate

Provision for impairment of property,
plant and equipment

Provision for impairment of intangible assets
other than goodwill

Provision for impairment of goodwiill

Provision for warranty

Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment, net

Fair value change on financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss

Fair value change on financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss

Gain on fair value change on
investment properties

Gain on trading of financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss

Dividend income

Share of results of associates

Share of result of a joint venture

2017
HK$’000
T
RETHHRERE
PS8 Al A 4,216,390
L TFIIEE A
A EHA (241,316)
EEp®N 823,731
Yz - BB REETE 912,603
TERIEEEZEREEHH
67,049
Y2 - R M s I es 142,574
TERIEEE ZEREEME
670
RIEHE—RHBE A ZEE/

(Yazs) 162
A L E 2 EE B ERE 513
T 55 B U SR TR R BR RO B

22,197
GFEREREE -
H th MR IR (B B i ]
(21,142)
R— B & AR 2 R B E
Y~ BB R SR ERE
125,762
BREEEZELEERBEREE
5,707
e AR 79,612
RIEEE 639
HEME  BER&EFEE
182
BEANBENEEREEY

CREEZAABEE (13,834)
BARBENEBREREEZ

TRBEZAAEBEE (26,809)
KEMERARBEEZH WS

(2,137)
BEARBENRERKRER Y

TREEZEE WG (34,192)
R% B U A (6,464)
NI (12,913)
Efh—HaE RS (165)

2016
HK$'000
TAT

2,400,557

(117,910)
516,714
510,804

18,528
11,092

(595,270)
517

21,789
4,397

6,373

34473
695

1,317
(781)
(48,374)

(30,127)

36,426
116
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)
mrelEenE®mk (B
For the year ended 31 December 2017 &/ ZE 2017412 A31 B IEFE

2017 2016
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FERT FAT
Operating profit before working capital changes — ‘“&3& & & & B) i 2 48 & i 7l 6,038,819 2,771,336
Increase in inventories FE#Em (622,569) (1,422,761)
Decrease/(Increase) in trade receivables, deposits, FEWE ZFIE « &4  FANRIE X
prepayments and other receivables E{ﬁ%HQMEHQ/(iM) 185,581 (679,636)
Increase in trade payables, other payables JERTE S8 - HAbFERFRIE &
and accruals E§§‘|‘§ﬁﬁi ?JD 113,001 156,464
(Decrease)/Increase in receipt in advance TR TR IB SRR S R,/ hn
and deferred revenue (606,260) 5,215,447
Decrease in amounts due from related parties e W5 883 75 SR IR R A 35,703 1,751
Increase in amount due from a joint venture fEdy —F & & EFIRE N (212) =
Decrease in amounts due to associates IR B N B SRR (230) (5,955)
Increase/(Decrease) in amounts due to RBE@ T IR I, CR )
related parties 25,934 (6,753)
Cash generated from operating activities AT BT E 5,169,767 6,029,893
Income taxes paid B FSH (810,454) (475,754)
Net cash generated from operating activities AT BT {31 % R EE 4,359,313 5,554,139
Cash flows from investing activities RETHZRERE
Payments to acquire intangible assets BEELEE MR (93,527) (56,274)
Payments to acquire property, BEYE - BB MBI
plant and equipment (1,071,146) (1,351,051)
Decrease in held-to-maturity investments ¥ 2 B BRI B R D - 34,969
Net cash outflow arising from acquisition of BEMBAREREE Y
interest in subsidiaries REMHFEE (4,133,019) (2,200,774)
Increase in long term deposits, other receivables, R HIHZ S -« H b EU K IB &
and amount due from a related party FEl— F‘Ejgﬁ T IE 3% ) (376,231) (35/445)
Increase in pledged and restricted bank deposits 2 # # & 52 R #1| R 1717 203 A1 (1,328,827) (5,144,768)
Interest received B U F 2 129,746 103,864
Payments of guarantee deposits S RFR S (269,248) (180,924)
Increase in financial assets at fair value BEAREBERESZEREREE Y
through profit or loss SR EEZ (127,337) (23,196)
Increase in available-for-sale financial assets At E S RE EE N (135,591) -
Decrease in time deposits maturing B3A = & A 253 2 & B 17 50k >
over three months - 12
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE - WE RSHEFTEHRIE
plant and equipment 459 201
Proceeds from disposal of partial interests 2016 5 ST B AR 2 2B e
in subsidiaries in 2016 PS508 175,968 —
Net cash from dissolution of a joint venture R —RAeE X HEFHE - 2,049
Dividend received from an associate Bl — R = A RRE 11,067 19,834
Dividend received from financial assets BERRAREBERIE=ERE
at fair value through profit or loss TREERE 6,464 -
Payments for setting up and acquisition of DAV Gi- L NI AR
associates (56,142) (266)
Net cash used in investing activities RE)FE TR 2 F5E (7,267,364) (8,831,769)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)

el RERK (B

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #ZE20174F 12 A31 B IEFE

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FH&TT
Cash flows from financing activities AMEETH2RERE
Proceeds from bank and other borrowings RITREMEEMBRIE 12,722,113 9,730,781
Proceeds from convertible and AR & ] RHRE S PTG 5RIE
exchangeable bonds - 1,168,907
Repayments of bank and other borrowings EERITREMES (5,206,663) (5672,117)
Repayments of capital element of finance lease ~ EERMEHEBEASIHH
liabilities (43,760) (37,259)
Interest paid BERFE (1,241,634) (862,252)
Repayments of interest element of finance Eiﬁﬁlﬁ*ﬁﬁﬁ%
lease liabilities F2 &P (7,974) (6,803)
Repayment to a shareholder m—% Hxﬁ%a%\ - (1)
(Repayment to)/advance from a director (M—BEEER),KE
—RERZ2BK (21,664) 17,482
Payments to acquire non-controlling UL BB BT BB A B FEAE AR AE S 1 3k
interests of subsidiaries (12,717) (631,293)
Dividend payment to non-controlling ERRELENGIE R 2
interest of a subsidiary SRR B - (70)
Capital contribution by non-controlling — P A R FE AR =
equity holder of a subsidiary BAENEE 3,715 226
Dividends paid relating to 2016 BT 2016 FAHE 2 X5 (137,291) -
Net cash generated from financing activities BE LB TS % FEE 6,054,125 3,707,601
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents ReEMERRSIEE BINFR 3,146,074 429,971
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January M1 A1BZRe RERBFEEE 1,172,620 803,694
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, INEETE R BB HFTIFIR e 2 8
on cash held 79,016 (61,045)
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December R12831AZBHERERRLIER 4,397,710 1,172,620
Analysis of the balances of cash and REeERERRSEEERDN
cash equivalents
Cash at banks and in hand WITREFRS 4,397,710 1,172,620
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
GAEREDE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #ZE2017F 12 831 HIEFE

Equity attributable to the Company's owners

NG 2PN T 3
Non-
Share Share Capital General Exchange Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve profits Total Interests equity
B REGEE ERRE -RiER ESifE REER BE  FERER EiniE
(note 36) (note 38) (note 38) (note 38) (note 38) (note 38) (note 40)
(K336) (Hz3s) (K338) (HzE3s) (K338 (Hz3s) (Hf=E40)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THT TR THT Tz THT Tz TET T
At1 January 2017 W17 51818 686,455 95911 1564656 181722 235,866 115 4051766 L1423 5205999
Profit/(Loss) for the year ExEH/ (58 - - - - - 1,708,027 1,708,027 (105,592) 1,602,435
Other comprehensive income b2 ENE
Iterns that may be reclassified HRREN I BZ Rkl
subsequently to profit or oss: A :
Exchange gain/(loss) on translation of financlal - E BN ERBBRR 2
statements of foreign operations EihE/(B8) - - - - 513,990 - 513,990 (2,178) 511,812
Exchange gain on translation of financil BEBINGE NN
statements offoreign associates BRZERNE - - - - 6,266 - 6,266 - 6,266
Exchange gain on translation of financil BE-HRGNLELEHE
tatements of a foreign joint venture BRZERNE - - - - 187 - 187 - 187
Bxchange differences reclassfied on RIELE B ENAN
deemed disposal of an associate, i §EZER§§E
net of tax (Me5tE) - - - - 359 - 359 - 359
Total comprehensive income ER2ENEER
for the year - - - - 520,802 1,708,027 2,228,829 (107,770) 2,121,059
Transferto generalreserve BA-REE - - - 2312 - (2312) - - -
Dividends relating to 2016 NIeFRERE - - - - - (137,291) (137,291) - (137,291)
Acquisition of non-controlling interests -~~~ REEBHBA R 2 JFHRRIER
subsidiaries - - (3,952) - - - (3,952) (8,765) (12,717)
Acquisition of subsidiaries WERERR - - - - - - - 12,028 12,028
Capital contrbution by a non-controlling HEARFEERRE A
shareholder of subsidiaries - - - - - - - 3,715 3,715
Partial disposal of nterest in a BALER-FHBRAZ
subsidiary without oss of control BEMARKERHE - - 3,878 - - - 3,878 (1421) 2,457
At31December 2017 ®2017E128318 686,455 965,911% 1,564,582* 184,034*% 756,668+ 1,985,580* 6,143,230 1,052,020 7,195,250
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (Continued)

Nan Hai Corporation Limited /&R B R A A

AR EER (E

For the year ended 31 December 2017  #ZE 20174512 A31 HIEFE

Equity attributable to the Company's owners

NG I
(Accumulated
losses)/ Non-
Share Share Capital General Exchange Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserve Teserve reserve profits Total Interests equity
(ZitEB)/
e RiaE ERGE —HREE 31 RE&T #E  FERER EREE
(note 36) (note 38) (note 38) (note 38) (note 38) (note 38) (note 40)
(3£ 36) (hiiE3) (i3t 39) (HiE3) (K3t 3g) (i) (GiEZ0)
HKY000 HKS'000 HK000 HKS000 HKY000 HK$'000 HKY000 HK$'000 HK000
ThL ThL T ThAL ThT TAL ThT TAL ThT
At1January 2016 B2016F1 818 686455 965911 1911436 181,722 439175 (942397) 3242302 674263 3916,565
Profit/(Loss) for the year ERER/(58) = - - - - 1359553 1359553 (81,161) 1278392
Other comprehensive income 2 2EKE
Items that may be eclassfed AR EN IR R
subsequently to profitor loss: ZEE
Exchange loss on transation of financial BEENRBHBRE
statements of foreign operations ZERER - - - - (181,883) - (181,883) (4699) (186,582)
Exchange loss on transation of financial BERIBER A BRR
statements of foreign associates ZERER - - - - (6618) - (6618) - 6618)
Exchange differences reclassfied on RIELE-HRERAR
deemed disposal of an associate, BHARCERER
net of tax (SR7E) - - - - (14:808) - (14.808) - (14.808)
Total comprehensive income EREENEAE
for the year - - - - (203309) 1359553 1,156,244 (85,860) 1070384
Partaldisposal ofinterest in  subsidiary BALER-FHBARZ
withoutloss of control BRMARAERE - - 30,780 - - - 30780 136,780 167560
Acquisition of non-controling interests in KRB AR ER
subsidiaries - - (377,560) - - - (377,560) (253733) (631.293)
Acquisition of subsidiaries WERBAR - - - - - - - 682627 682627
Capital contribution bya non-controlling —RNBAFAERRR A
shareholder of a subsidiary - - - - - - - 26 26
Dividends paid to non-controling A-EHBAR FERER
interest of a subsiciary ZfkE = - = - = = = (70) (70
At31 December 2016 016512531 686455 BT 1A 181722° 35866" aniss 40516 1154233 5205099
3 These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of HK$5,456,775,000 (2016: @ HWEFEEREBKG AT BERRAERZ2GEREE

HK$3,365,311,000) in the consolidated statement of financial position.

5,456,775,000 7 7T (2016 FF : 3,365,311,00077T) °



Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 &= 2017412 A31 HIEFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Nan Hai Corporation Limited (the “Company”) is a limited liability
company incorporated in Bermuda. The address of the Company’s
registered office is Canon's Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM 12,
Bermuda, and its principal place of business is 12/F., The Octagon,
No. 6 Sha Tsui Road, Tsuen Wan, New Territories, Hong Kong. The
Company’s shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong Stock Exchange”).

The Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are principally
engaged in culture and media services, property development,
enterprise cloud services, internet lifestyle platform and innovative
business. Details of the principal activities of the Company’s
subsidiaries are set out in note 16.

As at 31 December 2017, the directors of the Company consider the
ultimate holding company to be Dadi Holdings Limited, a limited
liability company incorporated in Hong Kong.

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017 were
approved for issue by the board of directors (the “Board”) on 28
March 2018.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

2.1 Basis of preparation

The financial statements on pages 124 to 290 have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") which collective term includes all
applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs") and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. The financial
statements also include the applicable disclosures required by
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

The significant accounting policies that have been used in the
preparation of these financial statements are summarised
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the
years presented unless otherwise stated. The adoption of new
or amended HKFRSs and the impacts on the Group's financial
statements, if any, are disclosed in note 3.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017

2.

HE2017F 12831 BIEFEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1

2.2

Basis of preparation (Continued)

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical
cost basis except for investment properties and certain
financial instruments classified as available-for-sale and at fair
value through profit or loss which are stated at fair values as
explained in the accounting policies set out below.

It should be noted that accounting estimates and assumptions
are used in preparation of the financial statements. Although
these estimates are based on management's best knowledge
and judgement of current events and actions, actual results
may ultimately differ from those estimates. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial
statements, are disclosed in note 4.

Business combination and basis of
consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries. Inter-
company transactions and balances between group
companies together with unrealised profits are eliminated in
full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of impairment on the asset transferred, in
which case the loss is recognised in profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income from the effective dates of acquisition
or up to the effective dates of disposal, as appropriate. Where
necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line with
those used by other members of the Group.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Business combination and basis of consolidation

(Continued)

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted for using
the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured
at the aggregate of the acquisition-date fair value of assets
transferred, liabilities incurred and equity interests issued by
the Group, as the acquirer. The identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed are principally measured at acquisition-date
fair value. The Group's previously held equity interest in the
acquiree is re-measured at acquisition-date fair value and the
resulting gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss. The
Group may elect, on a transaction-by-transaction basis, to
measure the non-controlling interests that represent present
ownership interests in the subsidiary either at fair value or at
the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. All other non-controlling interests are measured at fair
value unless another measurement basis is required by
HKFRSs. Acquisition-related costs incurred are expensed unless
they are incurred in issuing equity instruments in which case
the costs are deducted from equity.

Changes in the Group’s interest in subsidiaries that do not
result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group's interest and
the non-controlling interest are adjusted to reflect the
changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any
difference between the amount by which the non-controlling
interest is adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid
or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to
owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or loss
on disposal is calculated as the difference between (i) the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and
the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the previous
carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and
liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interest.
Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to the subsidiary are accounted for in the
same manner as would be required if the relevant assets or
liabilities were disposed of.

2.
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2.

HE2017F 12831 BIEFEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2

2.3

Business combination and basis of consolidation
(Continued)

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiary is the amount of those interests at
initial recognition plus such non-controlling interest’s share of
subsequent changes in equity. Total comprehensive income is
attributed to such non- controlling interests even if this results
in those non- controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Group is able to
exercise control. The Group controls an investee if all three of
the following elements are present: power over the investee;
exposure, or rights, to variable returns from the investee; and
the ability to use its power to affect those variable returns.
Control is reassessed whenever facts and circumstances
indicate that there may be a change in any of these elements
of control.

De-facto control exists in situations where the Company has
the practical ability to direct the relevant activities of the
investee without holding the majority of the voting rights. In
determining whether de-facto control exists the Company
considers all relevant facts and circumstances, including:

The size of the Company's voting rights relative to both
the size and dispersion of other parties who hold voting
rights;

Substantive potential voting rights held by the Company
and other parties who hold voting rights;

Other contractual arrangements; and
Historic patterns in voting attendance.

In the Company's statement of financial position, investments
in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any impairment loss
unless the subsidiary is held for sale or included in a disposal
group. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividend received and receivable at
the reporting date. All dividends whether received out of the
investee’s pre or post-acquisition profits are recognised in the
Company's profit or loss.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor a joint
arrangement. Significant influence is the power to participate
in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee
but not control or joint control over those policies.

Associates are accounted for using the equity method
whereby they are initially recognised at cost and thereafter,
their carrying amount are adjusted for the Group's share of the
post-acquisition change in the associates’ net assets except
that losses in excess of the Group's interest in the associate are
not recognised unless there is an obligation to make good
those losses.

Profits and losses arising on transactions between the Group
and its associates are recognised only to the extent of
unrelated investors’ interests in the associate. The investor’s
share in the associate’s profits and losses resulting from these
transactions is eliminated against the carrying value of the
associate. Where unrealised losses provide evidence of
impairment of the asset transferred they are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Any premium paid for an associate above the fair value of the
Group’s share of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities acquired is capitalised and included in
the carrying amount of the associate. Where there is objective
evidence that the investment in an associate has been
impaired, the carrying amount of the investment is tested for
impairment in the same way as other non-financial assets.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, investments
in associates are carried at cost less impairment losses, if any.
The results of associates are accounted for by the Company
on the basis of dividends received and receivable during the
year.

2.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.5 Joint arrangements

The group is a party to a joint arrangement where there is a
contractual arrangement that confers joint control over the
relevant activities of the arrangement to the group and at least
one other party. Joint control is assessed under the same
principles as control over subsidiaries.

The group classifies its interests in joint arrangements as
either:

Joint ventures: where the group has rights to only the
net assets of the joint arrangement; or

Joint operations: where the group has both the rights to
assets and obligations for the liabilities of the joint
arrangement.

In assessing the classification of interests in joint arrangements,
the Group considers:

The structure of the joint arrangement;

The legal form of joint arrangements structured through
a separate vehicle;

The contractual terms of the joint arrangement
agreement; and

Any other facts and circumstances (including any other
contractual arrangements).

The Group accounts for its interests in joint ventures in the
same manner as investments in associates (i.e. using the
equity method — see note 2.4).

Any premium paid for an investment in a joint venture above
the fair value of the Group's share of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired is capitalised and
included in the carrying amount of the investment in joint
venture. Where there is objective evidence that the
investment in a joint venture has been impaired the carrying
amount of the investment is tested for impairment in the
same way as other non-financial assets.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.5

2.6

Joint arrangements (Continued)

The Group accounts for its interests joint operations by
recognising its share of assets, liabilities, revenues and
expenses in accordance with its contractually conferred rights
and obligations.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, investment
in joint ventures are stated at cost less impairment losses, if
any. Results of joint ventures are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividends received and receivable
during the year.

Foreign currency translation

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
("HKS"), which is also the functional currency of the Company.

Transactions entered into by the group entities in currencies
other than the currency of the primary economic environment
in which they operate (the “functional currency”) are recorded
at the rates ruling when the transactions occur. Foreign
currency monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the
rates ruling at the end of reporting period. Non-monetary
items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date
when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items carried at fair value are included in profit or
loss for the period except for differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of which gains
and losses are recognised in other comprehensive income, in
which case, the exchange differences are also recognised in
other comprehensive income.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

On consolidation, income and expense items of foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the average exchange rates
for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during the period, in which case, the rates approximating to
those ruling when the transactions took place are used. All
assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated at the
rate ruling at the end of reporting period. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity as foreign
exchange reserve (attributed to minority interests as
appropriate). Exchange differences recognised in profit or loss
of group entities’ separate financial statements on the
translation of long term monetary items forming part of the
Group's net investment in the foreign operation concerned
are reclassified to other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity as foreign exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative exchange
differences recognised in the foreign exchange reserve
relating to that operation up to the date of disposal are
reclassified to profit or loss as part of the profit or loss on
disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation on or
after 1 January 2005 are treated as assets and liabilities of that
foreign operation and translated at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of reporting period. Exchange differences
arising are recognised in the foreign exchange reserve.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.7 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at acquisition cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. The cost of
an asset comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition
and location for its intended use.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost less their residual
values over their estimated useful lives on a straight-line
method, at the following rates per annum:

Buildings 5%
Leasehold improvements, 2.5% to 33-'/5%,
furniture, fixtures and or over lease terms
equipment whichever involves
shorter period
6-*/3% to 33-'/5%
No depreciation

Motor vehicles and yachts
Freehold land

The assets’ residual values, depreciation methods and useful
lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each
reporting date.

An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if its carrying amount is higher than the asset'’s
estimated recoverable amount.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their
expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets, or
where shorter, the term of the relevant lease.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sale proceeds
and its carrying amount, and is recognised in profit or loss on
disposal.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it
is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
recognised as an expense in profit or loss during the financial
period in which they are incurred.

2.
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2.

HE2017F 12831 BIEFEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.7

2.8

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Construction in progress represents assets under construction
and is stated at cost less impairment losses. Cost comprises
direct costs of construction as well as borrowing costs
capitalised during the periods of construction and installation.
Capitalisation of these costs ceases and the construction in
progress is transferred to the appropriate class of property,
plant and equipment when substantially all the activities
necessary to prepare the assets for their intended use are
completed. No depreciation is provided for in respect of
construction in progress until it is completed and ready for its
intended use.

The buildings comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals
and the other portion that is held for administrative purpose.
As the portion held to earn rentals cannot be sold separately
and is insignificant, the building is classified as owner-
occupied property rather than investment property.

Investment properties

Investment property is property held either to earn rentals or
for capital appreciation or for both, but not held for sale in the
ordinary course of business, use in the production or supply of
goods or services or for administrative purposes. Investment
property is measured at cost on initial recognition and
subsequently at fair value with any change therein recognised
in profit or loss.

Properties under construction or development for future use
as investment properties are classified as investment
properties under construction. If the fair value cannot be
reliably determined, the investment properties under
construction will be measured at cost until such time as fair
value can be determined or construction is completed.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in profit or loss in the year
in which they arise.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.8 Investment properties (Continued)

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in profit or loss in the year

of the retirement or disposal.

For a transfer from inventories to investment properties, any
difference between the fair value of the property at that date
and its previous carrying amount is recognised in profit or loss.

2.9 Operating lease prepayments and land use right

Upfront payments made to acquire land held under an
operating lease are stated at costs less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses. The
determination if an arrangement is or contains a lease and the
lease is an operating lease is detailed in note 2.17.
Amortisation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the
term of the lease/right of use except where an alternative
basis is more representative of the time pattern of benefits to

be derived by the Group from use of the land.

2.10 Goodwill

Set out below are the accounting policies on goodwill arising
on acquisition of a subsidiary. Accounting for goodwill arising
on acquisition of investment in an associate is set out in note

24.

Where the fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities exceed
the aggregate of the fair value of consideration paid, the
amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and
the acquisition date fair value of the acquirer's previously held
equity interest in the acquiree, the excess is recognised in

profit or loss on the acquisition date, after re-assessment.

2.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.10 Goodwill (Continued)

Goodwill is measured at cost less impairment losses. For the
purpose of impairment testing, goodwill arising from an
acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant cash-generating
units ("CGUs") that are expected to benefit from the synergies
of the acquisition. A cash-generating unit is the smallest
identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows that
are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets
or groups of assets. A CGU to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually, by comparing its
carrying amount with its recoverable amount (see note 2.23),
and whenever there is an indication that the unit may be
impaired.

For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial year, the
cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment before the end of that financial year.
When the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is
less than the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss
is allocated to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the unit first, and then to the other assets of the
unit pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount to each asset
in the unit. However, the loss allocated to each asset will not
reduce the individual asset’s carrying amount to below its fair
value less cost of disposal (if measurable) or its value in use (if
determinable), whichever is the higher. Any impairment loss
for goodwill is recognised in profit or loss and is not reversed
in subsequent periods.

On subsequent disposal of a subsidiary, the attributable
amount of goodwill capitalised is included in the
determination of the amount of gain or loss on disposal.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FESHBEME(E)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.11 Other intangible assets and research and

2NN EBEFEERWRES

development activities
Other intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially recognised at
cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business
combination is fair value at the date of acquisition. After initial
recognition, intangible assets with finite useful lives are carried
at cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible assets with
finite useful lives is provided on straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives. Amortisation commences when the
intangible assets are available for use. The following useful
lives are applied:

Computer software 4 years
Customer relationships 2 years
Development cost 2-4 years
Licenses, brand name and franchise right 8-10 years
Distribution channel 6.5 years

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases
the future economic benefits embodied in the computer
software to which it relates. All other expenditure is expensed
as incurred.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are carried at cost
less any subsequent accumulated impairment losses.

Intangible assets, with finite and indefinite useful lives, are
tested for impairment as described below in note 2.23.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (Continued)

2.11 Other intangible assets and research and
development activities (Continued)

Research and development costs

Costs associated with research activities are expensed in profit
or loss as they occur. Costs that are directly attributable to the
development activities are recognised as intangible assets
provided they meet the following recognition requirements:

(i) demonstration of technical feasibility of the prospective
product for internal use or sale;

(i) there is intention to complete the intangible asset and
use or sell it;

(i) the Group's ability to use or sell the intangible asset is
demonstrated;

(iv)  the intangible asset will generate probable economic
benefits through internal use or sale;

(v)  sufficient technical, financial and other resources are
available for completion; and

(vi)  the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset can
be reliably measured.

Direct costs include employee costs incurred on development
along with an appropriate portion of relevant overheads. The
costs of internally generated developments are recognised as
intangible assets. They are subject to the same subsequent
measurement method as externally acquired intangible assets.

All other development costs are expensed as incurred.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (Continued)

2.12 Financial assets

TEETHBRBE (&)

Q12 EREE

The Group's accounting policies for financial assets other than
investments in subsidiaries, associates and a joint venture are
set out below.

Financial assets are classified into the following categories:

— financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

— loans and receivables
—  held-to-maturity investments
—  available-for-sale financial assets

Management determines the classification of its financial
assets at initial recognition depending on the purpose for
which the financial assets were acquired and where allowed
and appropriate, re-evaluates this designation at every
reporting date.

All financial assets are recognised when, and only when, the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Regular way purchases of financial assets are
recognised on trade date. When financial assets are
recognised initially, they are measured at fair value, plus, in the
case of investments not at fair value through profit or loss,
directly attributable transaction costs.

Derecognition of financial assets occurs when the rights to
receive cash flows from the financial assets expire or are
transferred and substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred.

At each reporting date, financial assets are reviewed to assess
whether there is objective evidence of impairment. If any such
evidence exists, impairment loss is determined and recognised
based on the classification of the financial asset.
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HE2017F 12831 BIEFEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.12 Financial assets (Continued)

(i

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
include financial assets held for trading and financial
assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair value
through profit or loss.

Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they
are acquired for the purpose of selling in the near term,
or it is part of a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that are managed together and for which
there is evidence of a recent pattern of short-term
profit-making. Derivatives, including separated
embedded derivatives are also classified as held for
trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments or financial guarantee contracts.

Where a contract contains one or more embedded
derivatives, the entire hybrid contract may be
designated as a financial asset at fair value through
profit or loss, except where the embedded derivative
does not significantly modify the cash flows or it is clear
that separation of the embedded derivative is
prohibited.

Financial assets may be designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss if the
following criteria are met:

—  the designation eliminates or significantly reduces
the inconsistent treatment that would otherwise
arise from measuring the assets or recognising
gains or losses on them on a different basis; or
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.12 Financial assets (Continued)

(i

(if)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(Continued)

—  the assets are part of a group of financial assets
which are managed and their performance
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with
a documented risk management strategy and
information about the group of financial assets is
provided internally on that basis to the key
management personnel; or

— the financial asset contains an embedded
derivative that would need to be separately
recorded.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the financial assets
included in this category are measured at fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. Fair
value is determined by reference to active market
transactions or using a valuation technique where no
active market exists. Fair value gain or loss does not
include any dividend or interest earned on these
financial assets. Dividend and interest income is
recognised in accordance with the Group’s policies in
note 2.20 to these financial statements.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. Loans and receivables are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any impairment losses.
Amortised cost is calculated taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate and
transaction cost. Gains and losses are recognised in the
profit or loss when the loans and receivables are
derecognised or impaired, as well as through the
amortisation process.
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HE2017F 12831 BIEFEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.12 Financial assets (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Available-for-sale financial assets

Non-derivative financial assets that do not qualify for
inclusion in any of the other categories of financial
assets are classified as available-for-sale financial assets.

All financial assets within this category are subsequently
measured at fair value. Gain or loss arising from a
change in the fair value excluding any dividend and
interest income is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in the available-for-
sale financial assets revaluation reserve in equity, except
for impairment losses (see the policy below) and foreign
exchange gains and losses on monetary assets, until the
financial asset is derecognised, at which time the
cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from equity to
profit or loss. Interest calculated using the effective
interest method is recognised in profit or loss.

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not
have a quoted market price in an active market and
whose fair value cannot be reliably measured and
derivatives that are linked to and must be settled by
delivery of such unquoted equity instruments, they are
measured at cost less any identified impairment losses.

Held-to-maturity investments

These assets are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities
that the Group’s management has the positive intention
and ability to hold to maturity. Subsequent to initial
recognition, held-to-maturity investments are measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less any identified impairment losses.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. TESHBEBE(E)
POLICIES (Continued)
2.12 Financial assets (Continued) 2128 RMEE ()

Impairment of financial assets

At each reporting date, financial assets other than at fair value
through profit or loss are reviewed to determine whether
there is any objective evidence of impairment.

Objective evidence of impairment of individual financial assets
includes observable data that comes to the attention of the
Group about one or more of the following loss events:

—  significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— abreach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

— significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an adverse
effect on the debtor; and

— asignificant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an
investment in an equity instrument below its cost.

Loss events in respect of a group of financial assets include
observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease
in the estimated future cash flows from the group of financial
assets. Such observable data includes but not limited to
adverse changes in the payment status of debtors in the
group, national or local economic conditions that correlate
with defaults on the assets in the group, and the failure to
renegotiate the repayment terms of loan and receivables that
would otherwise be past due or impaired.
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HE2017F 12831 BIEFEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.12 Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

If any such evidence exists, the impairment loss is measured
and recognised as follows:

()

(i)

Financial assets at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on
loans and receivables carried at amortised cost has been
incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition). The amount of the loss is recognised
in profit or loss of the period in which the impairment
occurs.

If, in subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is reversed to the extent that it does not result in a
carrying amount of the financial asset exceeding what
the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised at the date the
impairment is reversed. The amount of the reversal is
recognised in profit or loss of the period in which the
reversal occurs.

Available-for-sale financial assets

When a decline in the fair value of an available-for-sale
financial asset has been recognised directly in equity
and there is objective evidence that the asset is
impaired, an amount is removed from equity and
recognised in the profit or loss as impairment loss. That
amount is measured as the difference between the
asset's acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment
and amortisation) and current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that asset previously recognised in
the profit or loss.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.12 Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i) Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)

Reversals in respect of investment in equity instruments
classified as available-for-sale are not recognised in the
profit or loss. The subsequent increase in fair value is
recognised directly in other comprehensive income.
Impairment losses in respect of debt securities are
reversed if the subsequent increase in fair value can be
objectively related to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised. Reversal of impairment
losses in such circumstances are recognised in the profit
of loss.

Financial assets other than financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, loans and receivables and held-to-maturity
investments that are stated at amortised cost, impairment
losses are written off against the corresponding assets directly.
Where the recovery of loans and receivables is considered
doubtful but not remote, the impairment losses for doubtful
receivables are recorded using an allowance account. When
the Group is satisfied that recovery of loans and receivables is
remote, the amount considered irrecoverable is written off
against loans and receivables directly and any amounts held in
the allowance account in respect of that receivable are
reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
charged to the allowance account are reversed against the
allowance account. Other changes in the allowance account
and subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off
directly are recognised in profit or loss.

2.

ZE—HFEF® Annual Report 2017

TEETHBRBE (&)

212 EWMEE (8)

153

THEEZREE)
(i) FIHEEZEREE(B)

ABEERATHEEZRATAR
Bz BOY N ERERPRHER
A2 AR EBEEMERERLM
PHRETER - HRRBRZAN
EEI8INEE 59 B (B BT IR M AR 1R
BEZEMRERRE  AEKE
FZBEEBERSTERD - £%F
BT REBRZEENNER
R R -

HEREE(RAXEERBEREE
& BVE E BRI NG BR 2 B R
R FEYRIBIA RS ER B ERIN M
5 BEBBRDEREREEEME -
i 0 K e JE W R TR 3R 2 JB R AR B
FETBEUR I - BRI R AR 2 FE R IRR
BEERSERABERIIEK EXAKHE
S AR AR BEUR [ & K% K B MR IR B -
AR ASBETIANE 2 B EERA
ERERUIRME - MR EERA
IAREERERAE ZEASRET
PAREE - R W BB ER ABRBRZ
SHRARBHRAELD - BBER I HME
BRERWCIBEEEMEZSETD
RIBEARIER



154  Nan Hai Corporation Limited ~ Fa/8#ER% B R A 7

Notes to the Financial Statements
B 1% sy R B 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #ZE20174F 12 A31 B IEFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (Continued)

2.13 Inventories

TERETHBRSE (&)

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated cost of
completion and applicable selling expenses.

(i) Properties under development

The cost of properties under development for sale
comprises the acquisition cost of land, materials, labour
and other direct expenses and an appropriate
proportion of overheads, and capitalised finance cost
(see note 2.26).

(i) Completed properties held for sale

Cost is determined by apportionment of the total land
and development costs for that development project
attributable to the unsold properties.

(i) Food, beverages and merchandise goods

Cost comprises the cost of purchased goods calculated
using first-in, first-out (“FIFO") method.

(iv)  Projection equipment

Cost comprises the manufacturing cost of product and
the cost of purchased raw materials calculated using
FIFO method.

(v)  Botanic-based personal care and fragrance products

Cost comprises the manufacturing cost of product and
the cost of purchased raw materials calculated using
FIFO method.

2.14 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank and in hand,
demand deposits with banks or other financial institutions,
and short-terms highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value. For the purpose of cash
flow statement presentation, cash and cash equivalents
include bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and
form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FESHBEME(E)
POLICIES (Continued)
2.15 Financial liabilities 215 &R EE

The Group’s financial liabilities include bank and other
borrowings, trade and other payables, convertible and
exchangeable bonds and finance lease liabilities. They are
included in line items in the statement of financial position as
bank and other borrowings, finance lease liabilities, trade
payables, other employee benefits, other payables and
accruals, amount due to a director, amounts due to associates,
amounts due to related parties, convertible and exchangeable
bonds and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss.

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. All
related finance costs are recognised in accordance with the
Group's accounting policy for finance costs (see note 2.26).

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms
of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the
difference in the respective carrying amount is recognised in
profit or loss.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated
at amortised cost; any difference between the proceeds (net
of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised
in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the
effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability
for at least 12 months after the reporting date.
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2.

7FE12 A3 BHIEFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.15 Financial liabilities (Continued)

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at their fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Convertible and exchangeable bonds

Convertible bonds with conversion options which are not
settled by exchanging a fixed amount of cash for a fixed
number of the Company’s shares comprise a derivative
component and a liability component.

At initial recognition, the derivative component of the
convertible bonds is measured at fair value. Any excess of the
proceeds over the amount initially recognised as the derivative
component is recognised as the liability component.
Transaction costs relating to the issue of the convertible bonds
are allocated to the liability and derivative components in
proportion to the allocation of proceeds. The portion of the
transaction costs relating to the liability component is
recognised initially as part of the liability component. The
portion relating to the derivative component is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

The derivative component is subsequently remeasured at fair
value, with changes in fair value recognised immediately in
profit or loss. The liability component is subsequently
measured at amortised cost. The interest expense recognised
in profit or loss on the liability component is calculated using
the effective interest method.

Finance lease liabilities

Finance lease liabilities are measured at initial value less the
capital element of lease repayments (see note 2.17).
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.16 Financial guarantees issued

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the
issuer (or guarantor) to make specified payments to reimburse
the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to
make payment when due in accordance with the terms of a
debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the fair value of
the guarantee is initially recognised as deferred income within
other payables. Where consideration is received or receivable
for the issuance of the guarantee, the consideration is
recognised in accordance with the Group's policies applicable
to that category of asset. Where no such consideration is
received or receivable, an immediate expense is recognised in
profit or loss on initial recognition of any deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as deferred
revenue is amortised in profit or loss over the term of the
guarantee as income from financial guarantees issued. In
addition, provisions are recognised if and when it becomes
probable that the holder of the guarantee will call upon the
Group under the guarantee and the amount of that claim on
the Group is expected to exceed the current carrying amount
i.e. the amount initially recognised less accumulated
amortisation, where appropriate.

2.17 Leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines that
the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset or
assets for an agreed period of time in return for a payment or
a series of payments. Such a determination is made based on
an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is
regardless of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of
a lease.

() Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held under
finance leases. Leases which do not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the Group are classified as operating leases.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.17 Leases (Continued)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under
finance leases, the amounts representing the fair value
of the leased asset, or, if lower, the present value of the
minimum lease payments of such assets, are included in
property, plant and equipment and the corresponding
liabilities, net of finance charges, are recorded as
obligation under finance leases.

Subsequent accounting for assets held under finance
lease agreements corresponds to those applied to
comparable acquired assets. The corresponding finance
lease liability is reduced by lease payments less finance
charges.

Finance charges implicit in the lease payments are
charged to profit or loss over the period of the leases so
as to produce an approximately constant periodic rate
of charge on the remaining balance of the obligations
for each accounting period.

Operating lease charges as the lessee

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
lease terms except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the time pattern of benefits to be
derived from the leased assets. Lease incentives
received are recognised in profit or loss as an integral
part of the aggregate net lease payments made.
Contingent rental are charged to profit or loss in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.

Assets leased out under operating leases as the lessor

Assets leased out under operating leases are measured
and presented according to the nature of the assets.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of
the leased asset and recognised as an expense over the
lease term on the same basis as the rental income.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.17 Leases (Continued)

(iv)  Assets leased out under operating leases as the lessor

(Continued)

Rental income receivable from operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over
the periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the time
pattern of benefits to be derived from the use of the
leased asset. Lease incentives granted are recognised in
profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net
lease payments receivable.

2.18 Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the
amount of the obligation can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated at the present value
of the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

All provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Group are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Contingent liabilities are recognised in the course of the
allocation of purchase price to the assets and liabilities
acquired in a business combination. They are initially
measured at fair value at the date of acquisition, unless the fair
value cannot be measured reliably, and subsequently
measured at the higher of the amount that would be
recognised in a comparable provision as described above and
the amount initially recognised less any accumulated
amortisation, if appropriate.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.19 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share capital is
determined using the nominal value of shares that have been
issued. Any transaction costs associated with the issuing of
shares are deducted from share premium (net of any related
income tax benefit) to the extent they are incremental costs
directly attributable to the equity transaction.

2.20 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable for the sale of goods, rendering of services and
the use by others of the Group's assets yielding interest and
dividends, net of rebates and discounts. Provided it is probable
that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably,
revenue is recognised as follows:

Revenue arising from the sale of properties held for sale is
recognised when the risks and rewards of the properties are
transferred to the purchasers, which is when the construction
of relevant properties has been completed and the properties
have been delivered to the purchasers pursuant to the sales
agreement and collectability of related receivables is
reasonably assured. Deposits and instalments received on
properties sold prior to the date of revenue recognition are
included in the statement of financial position under receipt in
advance and deferred revenue.

Sales of goods are recognised upon transfer of the significant
risks and rewards of ownership to the customer. This is usually
taken as the time when the goods are delivered and the
customer has accepted the goods.

Sales of services are recognised in the accounting period in
which the services are rendered, by reference to completion
of the specific transaction assessed on the basis of the actual
service provided as a proportion of the total services to be
provided. When services are performed by an indeterminate
number of acts over a specified period of time, revenue is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the specified period of
time unless there is evidence that some other method better
represents the stage of completion.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.20 Revenue recognition (Continued)

Ticket income from the sale of tickets owned and controlled
by the Group is recognised as income when the ticket is
issued.

Sales of confectionery, merchandise and souvenir are
recognised when goods are delivered.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using
the effective interest method.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive
payment is established.

2.21 Receipt in advance and deferred revenue

Receipt in advance and deferred revenue consists primarily of
deposits and instalments received on properties sold prior to
the date of revenue recognition, deferred revenue from
prepaid service fees received from customers and fair value of
bonus liabilities granted to customers in accordance with the
announced bonus point scheme and the Group’s past
experience on the level of redemption of points. Revenue
from deposits and instalments received on properties sold is
recognised when the properties have been delivered to the
purchasers pursuant to the sales agreement and collectability
of related receivables is reasonably assured. Revenue from
prepaid service fees and bonus liabilities are recognised when
the relevant services are rendered

2.22 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value
where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and the Group will comply with all attached
conditions. Government grants are deferred and recognised in
profit or loss over the period necessary to match them with
the costs that the grants are intended to compensate.
Government grants relating to the purchase of assets are
included in liabilities as deferred government grants in the
statement of financial position and are recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the expected lives of the
related assets.

Government grants relating to income is presented in gross
under “Other operating income” in profit or loss.

2.

2.22

“ZE—+tFEFHR AnnualReport 2017 161

FTESEREE (&)

2.20 Wzt (&)

HEARBEARENH I EZMEE
R - RBELHERFHER AW o

BR ARkt mZHEEREMR
AR HERR ©

MBWATI R B E RN RRIRESRE L
DI EAERERR,

P58 M AT M e 8 e S B BEERRD

2.21 EWFERIEZE WS

TEURIA SR ST W s BB AR R
= B B AT E Y P IRERIZ £ K 0 B
MR MEPUBZENREERZ
BIEN s RIRRE Az BRETE &
EIARAEEREBELIIRD HBK
FTMEERTEPZREREZARN
BfE - XA L EMEMBEIZRS MY
HNRZ B EmRNDERBHERER
NFETREAERE KO E
WRIARETTHRER - ENREERZ
WA R E B 1R (40 B AR 7% s £

E

BB

A EBAGKEER AN EESE
SR B R RE BT 2 B RR
HRAABERER - BHBERSRTR
BANFERBRFHRMEZ R
U RERHER ANBEEE
Z BT BN B AR BER AT AR
8 SRR EH T B - W ABEARE
REBEEZ BT F RN IE R

&

Bk

B WA 2 BT R 2 AR 1R
2R THALERA -



162

Nan Hai Corporation Limited /&R G R AR

Notes to the Financial Statements
B 1% sy R B 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #ZE20174F 12 A31 B IEFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.23 Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of subsidiary, other
intangible assets, property, plant and equipment, prepaid land
lease payments under operating leases, non-current portion
of deposits and, interests in subsidiaries, associates and a joint
venture are subject to impairment testing.

Goodwill and other intangible assets with indefinite useful life
or those not yet available for use are tested for impairment at
least annually, irrespective of whether there is any indication
that they are impaired. All other assets are tested for
impairment whenever there are indications that the asset’s
carrying amount may not be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher
of fair value, reflecting market conditions less costs to sell, and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessment of
time value of money and the risk specific to the asset.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where an asset
does not generate cash inflows largely independent from
those from other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of assets that generate cash
inflows independently (i.e. a CGU). As a result, some assets are
tested individually for impairment and some are tested at CGU
level. Goodwill in particular is allocated to those CGUs that are
expected to benefit from synergies of the related business
combination and represent the lowest level within the Group
at which the goodwill is monitored for internal management
purpose.

Impairment losses recognised for CGUs, to which goodwill has
been allocated, are credited initially to the carrying amount of
goodwill. Any remaining impairment loss is charged pro rata
to the other assets in the CGU, except that the carrying value
of an asset will not be reduced below its individual fair value
less cost to sell, or value in use, if determinable.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.23 Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

An impairment loss on goodwill is not reversed in subsequent
periods. In respect of other assets, an impairment loss is
reversed if there has been a favourable change in the
estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount
and only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no
impairment loss had been recognised.

2.24 Non-current assets held for sale and disposal
groups

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held
for sale when:

they are available for immediate sale;
management is committed a plan to sell;

it is unlikely that significant changes to the plan will be
made or that the plan will be withdrawn;

an active programme to locate a buyer has been
initiated;

the asset or disposal group is being marketed at a

reasonable price in relation to its fair value; and

a sale is expected to complete within 12 months from
the date of clarification.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.24 Non-current assets held for sale and disposal
groups (Continued)

Non-current assets and disposal groups classified as held for
sale are measured at the lower of:

their carrying amount immediately prior to being
classified as held for sale in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy; and

fair value less costs to sell.

Following their classification as held for sale, non-current
assets (including those in a disposal group) are not
depreciated.

The results of operations disposed of during the year are
included in profit or loss up to the date of disposal.

2.25 Employee benefits

(i)

(if)

Short-term employee benefits

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made for
the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of
services rendered by employees up to the reporting
date.

Non-accumulating compensated absences such as sick
leave and maternity leave are not recognised until the
time of leave.

Retirement benefits

The Group operates several staff retirement schemes for
employees in Hong Kong and Mainland China, the
People’s Republic of China (“PRC"), comprising defined
contribution pension schemes and a Mandatory
Provident Fund (“MPF") scheme. The assets of these
schemes are held separately from those of the Group in
independently administered funds. The retirement
schemes are generally funded by payments from
employees and by the relevant subsidiaries of the
Group.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.25 Employee benefits (Continued)

(if)

Retirement benefits (Continued)

The subsidiaries operating in Mainland China are
required to participate in the defined contribution
retirement scheme for their employees, organised by
the relevant local government authorities. They are
required to make contributions to the retirement
schemes at a rate of 10% to 22% (depending on the
locations of the subsidiaries) of basic salaries of their
employees and there are no other further obligations to
the Group.

Before 1 December 2000, the Group operated a defined
contribution retirement scheme (the “ORSO Scheme”)
in Hong Kong for all qualified employees. The rate of
contribution payable by the Group was 5% of the
individual employees’ monthly basic salaries. The
Group's contributions under the ORSO Scheme were
reduced by contributions forfeited by those employees
who left the scheme prior to vesting fully in the
contributions. There are no legal or constructive
obligations to pay further contributions after payment
of the fixed contribution.

The Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority has
approved the ORSO Scheme as a Mandatory Provident
Fund Exempted Occupational Retirement Scheme
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance (the "MPF Schemes Ordinance”). With effect
from 1 December 2000, the MPF Scheme was also set
up under the MPF Schemes Ordinance for existing staff
who opt for this scheme and eligible staff recruited on
or after that date. When the underlying staff elects the
MPF Scheme, pension scheme benefits attributed to the
staff under the ORSO Scheme remain unchanged in the
MPF Scheme. Under the MPF Scheme, eligible
employees are required to contribute 5% of their
monthly basic salaries whereas the Group’s monthly
contribution will be 5% of the relevant employee’s basic
salaries with a maximum monthly contribution of
HKS$1,500 (2016: HKS1,500). There are no legal or
constructive obligations to pay further contributions
after payment of the fixed contribution.

2.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.25 Employee benefits (Continued)

(if)

(iii)

Retirement benefits (Continued)

Contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
are recognised as an expense in profit or loss when the
services are rendered by the employees. Liabilities and
assets may be recognised if underpayment or
prepayment has occurred and are included in current
liabilities or current assets as they are normally of a short
term nature.

Share-based employee compensation

All share-based payment arrangements granted after 7
November 2002 and had not vested on 1 January 2005
are recognised in the financial statements. The Group
operates equity-settled share-based compensation
plans for remuneration of its employees.

All employee services received in exchange for the
grant of any share-based compensation are measured
at their fair values. These are indirectly determined by
reference to the share options awarded. Their value is
appraised at the grant date and excludes the impact of
any non-market vesting conditions (for example,
profitability and sales growth targets).

All share-based compensation is recognised as an
expense in profit or loss over the vesting period if
vesting conditions apply, or recognised as an expense
in full at the grant date when the equity instruments
granted vest immediately unless the compensation
qualifies for recognition as asset, with a corresponding
increase in share option reserve in equity. If vesting
conditions apply, the expense is recognised over the
vesting period, based on the best available estimate of
the number of equity instruments expected to vest.
Non-market vesting conditions are included in
assumptions about the number of equity instruments
that are expected to become exercisable. Estimates are
subsequently revised, if there is any indication that the
number of equity instruments expected to vest differs
from previous estimates.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.25 Employee benefits (Continued)

(iii) ~ Share-based employee compensation (Continued)

At the time when the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in share option reserve
will be transferred to capital reserve. After vesting date,
when the vested share options are later forfeited or are
still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve will be
transferred to retained profits.

2.26 Capitalisation of borrowing costs

Borrowing costs attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying asset which require a substantial
period of time to be ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. Income earned
on temporary investments of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on those assets is deducted from borrowing
costs capitalized. All other borrowing costs are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

2.27 Accounting for income taxes

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and deferred
tax.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities comprise those
obligations to, or claims from, fiscal authorities relating to the
current or prior reporting period, that are unpaid at the
reporting date. They are calculated according to the tax rates
and tax laws applicable to the fiscal periods to which they
relate, based on the taxable profit for the year. All changes to
current tax assets or liabilities are recognised as a component
of income tax expense in profit or loss.

2.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.27 Accounting for income taxes (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts
used for tax purposes. Except for goodwill and recognised
assets and liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable
profits, deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which deductible temporary differences can
be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill or from initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither taxable nor
accounting profit or loss.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period the liability is settled
or the asset realised, provided they are enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are recognised in
profit or loss, or in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity if they relate to items that are charged or credited to
other comprehensive income or directly to equity.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.28 Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and prepare
segment information based on the regular internal financial
information reported to the executive directors for their
decisions about resources allocation to the Group’s business
components and for their review of the performance of those
components. The business components in the internal
financial information reported to the executive directors are
determined following the Group’s major product and service

lines.

The Group has identified the following reportable segments:

*%

Enterprise cloud services*
Property development
Culture and media services
Internet lifestyle platform**

Innovative business

By virtue of the all-rounded internet-based services, e-commerce and
total Internet+ resolutions offered for small and medium-sized
enterprises and clients in the PRC, the Group remained adamant about
the provision of cloud service for the development of digitalisation and
smart operation, and has successfully launched a series of leading to
enable cloud services corporate digitalisation and smart operation in
the industry after prolonged exploration and unremitting efforts.
Therefore, the segment and its revenue has changed its name from
“Corporate IT application services” to “Enterprise cloud services” as cloud
service has been becoming core of the business.

This segment has gradually transformed itself into a media-driven IT
enterprise from a media company. The purpose of this segment is to
build an internet lifestyle platform and attract traffic with media content.
Its commercial value will be realised through advertising, local lifestyle
services and other means. Therefore, the name of the segment is
amended from “New media” to “Internet lifestyle platform” to adapt its
commercial strategy.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.28 Segment reporting (Continued)

Information about other business activities and operating
segments that are not reportable are combined and disclosed
in “all other segments”. All other segments included trading of
securities and property management.

Each of these operating segments is managed separately as
each of the product and service lines requires different
resources as well as marketing approaches. All inter-segment
transfers are carried out at arm'’s length prices.

The measurement policies the Group uses for reporting
segment results under HKFRS 8 are the same as those used in
its financial statements prepared under HKFRSs, except that:

Certain bank and other interest income
Certain finance costs
Income tax expense

Corporate income and expenses which are not directly
attributable to the business activities or any operating
segment

are not included in arriving at the operating results of the
operating segment.

Segment assets include all assets but amounts due from
related parties, amounts due from associates and available-for-
sale financial assets. In addition, corporate assets which are not
directly attributable to the business activities of any operating
segment are not allocated to a segment, which primarily
applies to the Group's headquarter.

Segment liabilities exclude corporate liabilities which are not
directly attributable to the business activities of any operating
segment and are not allocated to a segment. These include
provision for tax, bank and other borrowings and amounts
due to a director/associates.

No asymmetrical allocations have been applied to reportable
segments.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.29 Related parties

()

A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of key management personnel of
the Group or the Company’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions apply:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

(i)  Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of the employees of the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of key
management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

(viii)  The entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the Group's parent.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (Continued)
2.29 Related parties (Continued)

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity and include:

(i) that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner;
and

(i)  dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or
domestic partner.

3. ADOPTION OF NEW/AMENDED HKFRSs 3.

3.1 Adoption of new/amended HKFRSs — effective
1 January 2017

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first time the
following new/amended HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA, which
are relevant to and effective for the Group’s financial
statements for the annual period beginning on 1 January

2017:
Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative
Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets

for Unrealised Losses

Annual Improvements to Amendments to HKFRS 12,
HKFRSs 2014-2016 Disclosure of Interests in
Cycle Other Entities

Amendments to HKAS 7 — Disclosure Initiative

The amendments introduce an additional disclosure that will
enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes in
liabilities arising from financing activities.

A reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of
these items is provided in note 41(b). Consistent with the
transition provisions of the amendments, the Group has not
disclosed comparative information for the prior year. Apart
from the additional disclosure in note 41(b), the application of
these amendments has had no impact on the Group'’s
consolidated financial statements.
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ADOPTION OF NEW/AMENDED HKFRSs
(Continued)

3.1 Adoption of new/amended HKFRSs — effective

1 January 2017 (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 12 — Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for
Unrealised Losses

The amendments relate to the recognition of deferred tax
assets and clarify some of the necessary considerations,
including how to account for deferred tax assets related to
debt instruments measured at fair value.

The adoption of the amendments has no impact on these
financial statements as the clarified treatment is consistent
with the manner in which the Group has previously
recognised deferred tax assets.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle — Amendments
to HKFRS 12, Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

The amendments issued under the annual improvements
process make small, non-urgent changes to standards where
they are currently unclear. They include amendments to
HKFRS 12, Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities, to clarify
that the disclosure requirements of HKFRS 12, other than the
requirements to disclose summarised financial information,
also apply to an entity’s interests in other entities classified as
held for sale or discontinued operations in accordance with
HKFRS 5, Non-Current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations.

The adoption of the amendments to HKFRS 12 has no impact
on these financial statements as the latter treatment is
consistent with the manner in which the Group has previously
dealt with disclosures relating to its interests in other entities
classified as held for sale or discontinued operations in
accordance with HKFRS 5.
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3. ADOPTION OF NEW/AMENDED HKFRSs

(Continued)

3.2 Impact of new/amended HKFRSs which are
issued but not yet effective

The following new/amended HKFRSs, potentially relevant to
the Group’s financial statements, have been issued, but are
not yet effective and have not been early adopted by the
Group. The Group's current intention is to apply these changes
on the date they become effective.

Annual Improvements to

HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

Amendments to HKFRS 2

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 15

Amendments to HKFRS 15

Amendments to HKAS 40

HK(FRIC)-Int 22

Amendments to HKFRS 9

HKFRS 16

HK(FRIC)-Int 23

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 28,
Investments in Associates
and Joint Ventures!

Classification and Measurement
of Share-Based Payment
Transactions'

Financial Instruments'

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers!

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Clarifications to
HKFRS 15)!

Transfers of Investment
Property'

Foreign Currency Transactions
and Advance Consideration'

Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation’
Leases?

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments®

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019

8 The amendments were originally intended to be effective for periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2016. The effective date has now been
deferred/removed. Early application of the amendments continues to

be permitted.
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3. ADOPTION OF NEW/AMENDED HKFRSs

(Continued)
3.2 Impact of new/amended HKFRSs which are

issued but not yet effective (Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle —
Amendments to HKAS 28, Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures

The amendments issued under the annual improvements
process make small, non-urgent changes to standards where
they are currently unclear. They include amendments to HKAS
28, Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures, clarifying
that a Venture Capital organisation’s permissible election to
measure its associates or joint ventures at fair value is made
separately for each associate or joint venture.

Amendments to HKFRS 2 — Classification and Measurement of
Share-Based Payment Transactions

The amendments provide requirements on the accounting for
the effects of vesting and non-vesting conditions on the
measurement of cash-settled share-based payments; share-
based payment transactions with a net settlement feature for
withholding tax obligations; and a modification to the terms
and conditions of a share-based payment that changes the
classification of the transaction from cash-settled to equity-
settled.

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial assets. Debt instruments that
are held within a business model whose objective is to hold
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows (the business
model test) and that have contractual terms that give rise to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding (the contractual cash
flow characteristics test) are generally measured at amortised
cost. Debt instruments that meet the contractual cash flow
characteristics test are measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI") if the objective of the
entity’'s business model is both to hold and collect the
contractual cash flows and to sell the financial assets. Entities
may make an irrevocable election at initial recognition to
measure equity instruments that are not held for trading at
FVTOCI. All other debt and equity instruments are measured at
fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL").
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3. ADOPTION OF NEW/AMENDED HKFRSs 3. B REFTEAMBRE
(Continued) R ()

3.2 Impact of new/amended HKFRSs which are 3.2 EEMEMKRER I KB

issued but not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (Continued)

HKFRS 9 includes a new expected loss impairment model for
all financial assets not measured at FVTPL replacing the
incurred loss model in HKAS 39 and new general hedge
accounting requirements to allow entities to better reflect
their risk management activities in financial statements.

HKFRS 9 carries forward the recognition, classification and
measurement requirements for financial liabilities from HKAS
39, except for financial liabilities designated at FVTPL, where
the amount of change in fair value attributable to change in
credit risk of the liability is recognised in other comprehensive
income unless that would create or enlarge an accounting
mismatch. In addition, HKFRS 9 retains the requirements in
HKAS 39 for derecognition of financial assets and financial
liabilities.

Based on the Group’s financial instruments and risk
management policies as at 31 December 2017, the directors
of the Company anticipate to have potential impact on initial
application of HKFRS 9 in respect of certain equity securities
classified as available-for-sale investment carried at fair value.
These securities qualified for designation as measured at
FVTOCI under HKFRS 9, however, the Group plans not to elect
the option for the designation and will measure these
securities at fair value with subsequent fair value gains or
losses to be recognised in profit or loss. The other financial
assets and financial liabilities will continue to be measured on
the same bases as are currently measured under HKAS 39.

In addi